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ATLAS MINING COMPANY
110 Greene Street - Suite 1101

New York, NY  10012

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

We cordially invite you to attend the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Wednesday, October 27,
2009 at 11:00 a.m., Eastern Time Zone, at ______________________.  The meeting will be the first meeting of
shareholders since the Company became a public company in 2002.  You can attend in person or listen by means of a
webcast.  If you attend in person, you will have an opportunity to meet our directors and officers.  After the formal
business of the meeting, there will be a question and answer period.

The official Notice of Meeting, Proxy Statement, and the Form of Proxy are enclosed with this letter. The matters
listed in the Notice of Meeting are described in the attached Proxy Statement.

The Board of Directors welcomes and appreciates the interest of all our shareholders in the Company’s affairs, and
encourages shareholders to vote at this Annual Meeting.  We hope you will attend the meeting, but whether or not you
expect to be physically present, please vote your shares, either by signing, dating and promptly returning the proxy
card in the accompanying postage paid envelope, or by voting by telephone or on the Internet using the instructions
printed on the proxy card.  This will assure that your shares are represented at the meeting.  Even though you execute
this proxy or vote by telephone or the Internet, you may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by giving
written notice of revocation to the Secretary of the Company, by executing and delivering a later dated proxy (either
in writing or via telephone or the Internet) or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting.  If you attend the meeting
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you will be able to vote in person if you wish to do so, even if you have previously returned your proxy card, or voted
via telephone or the Internet.

Your vote is important to us, and we appreciate your prompt attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Andre Zeitoun
President and Chief Executive Officer
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

OCTOBER 27, 2009

Important Notice regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials
for the Stockholder Meeting to be Held on October 27, 2009

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders are available at
www.proxyvote.com

To the Shareholders of Atlas Mining Company:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Atlas Mining Company (the
“Company”), an Idaho corporation, will be held at _________________, on October 27, 2009, at 11:00 a.m., Eastern
Time Zone, for the following purposes as described in the attached Proxy Statement:

1.  To elect five directors to hold office for terms ending at the 2010 Meeting of
Shareholders, or until such shareholder’s respective successors are elected and
qualified.

2.  To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to change
the name of the Company to Applied Minerals, Inc.

3.  To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to increase
the authorized number of shares of Company Common Stock from 60,000,000 to
120,000,000.

4.  To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to
authorize preferred stock whose terms can be determined by the Board of
Directors.

5.  To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to provide
that the number of directors is to be fixed from time to time by resolution of the
Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution.

6.  To approve the reincorporation of the Company into the State of Delaware
through a merger with a newly-formed, wholly-owned Delaware subsidiary.

7.  To transact such other business as may properly come before such meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Pursuant to the Bylaws, the Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on August 28, 2009, as the record date
for determination of shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting.

So far as management of the Company is aware, no business will properly come before the Annual Meeting other than
the matters set forth above.
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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON OCTOBER 27, 2009: The Notice of Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, the Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, which
serves as the Annual Report to Shareholder s, and the Quarterly Report of 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,
2009 are available at www.proxyvote.com

By Order of the Board of Directors

Andre Zeitoun
President and Chief Executive Officer

New York, New York
September 17, 2009
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY
110 Greene Street – Suite 1101

New York, NY  10012

PROXY STATEMENT
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD OCTOBER 27, 2009

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of Atlas Mining
Company (the "Company," “Atlas,” “we,” “us” or “our”) of proxies to be used at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on October 27, 2009.  This Proxy Statement and accompanying forms of proxy , together with the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, which serves as our Annual Report to
Shareholders and the Quarterly Report of 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2009, are first being sent or given
to shareholders on September 17, 2009.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials
This year we are using the “Notice and Access” system recently adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
relating to the delivery of proxy materials over the Internet.  As a result, we mailed you a notice about the Internet
availability of the proxy materials instead of paper copies.  Shareholders will have the ability to access the proxy
materials over the Internet and to request a paper copy of the materials by mail or by e-mail.  Instructions on how to
access the proxy materials over the Internet or to request a paper copy may be found on the Notice.  We believe that
the notice and access rules will allow us to use Internet technology that many shareholders prefer, assure more prompt
delivery of the proxy materials, lower our cost of printing and delivering the proxy materials, and minimize the
environmental impact of printing paper copies.

The Proxy Statement and our Annual Report to Shareholders are available at www.proxyvote.com.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Why did I receive these proxy materials?

We are providing these proxy materials in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of Atlas Mining
Company, an Idaho corporation, of proxies to be voted at our 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and at any
adjournment or postponement.

You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. It takes place on October 27, 2009, beginning at 11:00
a.m., Eastern Time Zone, at __________________, in New York, New York.

This Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement and form of proxy and voting instructions are being sent or
delivered to shareholders starting September 17, 2009.

Will the Annual Meeting be webcast?

Our Annual Meeting also will be webcast on October 27, 2009.  You are invited to visit www.proxyvote.com at 11:00
a.m., Eastern Time Zone, on October 27, 2009 to access the webcast of the Meeting.

Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Holders of Atlas Common Stock at the close of business on August 28, 2009 are entitled to receive notice of the
meeting and to vote such shareholder’s shares at the Annual Meeting.  As of that date, there were 59,215,628 shares of
common stock outstanding and entitled to vote.  Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter
properly brought before the Meeting.

What is the difference between holding shares as a shareholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

If your shares are registered directly in your name with Atlas’s transfer agent, Standard Registrar & Transfer (Draper,
UT), you are the “shareholder of record” of those shares.  This Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement and
accompanying documents have been provided directly to you by Atlas.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other holder of record, you are considered the
“beneficial owner” of those shares.  This Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement and the accompanying documents
have been forwarded to you by your broker, bank or other holder of record.  As the beneficial owner, you have the
right to direct your broker, bank or other holder of record how to vote your shares by using the voting instruction card
or by following such shareholder’s instructions for voting by telephone or the Internet.

What is "Notice and Access"?
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“Notice and Access” generally refers to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission governing how companies
must provide proxy materials.  Under the notice and access model, a company may select either of the following two
options for making proxy materials available to stockholders:

·  the full set delivery option; or
·  the notice only option.

A company may use a single method for all its stockholders, or use full set delivery for some while adopting the
notice only option for others.
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What is the Full Set Delivery Option?

Under the full set delivery option, a company delivers all proxy materials to its stockholders.  This delivery can be by
mail or, if a stockholder has previously agreed, by e-mail.  In addition to delivering proxy materials to stockholders,
the company must also post all proxy materials on a publicly accessible website and provide information to
stockholders about how to access that website.  In connection with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the
Company has not elected to use the full set delivery option.

What is the Notice Only Option?

Under the notice only option, a company must post all its proxy materials on a publicly accessible website. However,
instead of delivering its proxy materials to stockholders, the company instead delivers a “Notice of Internet Availability
of Proxy Materials.”  The notice includes, among other matters:

·  information regarding the date and time of the meeting of stockholders as well
as the items to be considered at the meeting;

·  information regarding the website where the proxy materials are posted; and

·  various means by which a stockholder can request paper or e-mail copies of the
proxy materials.

If a stockholder requests paper copies of the proxy materials, these materials must be sent to the stockholder within
three business days.  Additionally, paper copies must be sent via first class mail.

The Company has elected to use the Notice Only Option in connection with its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

How do I vote?

You may vote using any of the following methods:

·  By Mail:
If you are a shareholder of record, b e sure to complete, sign and date the proxy card or voting instruction card and
return it to:

Atlas Mining Company
110 Greene St – Ste 1101
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New York, NY  10012

If you are a shareholder of record and you return your signed proxy card but do not indicate your voting preferences,
the persons named in the proxy card will vote the shares represented by that proxy as recommended by the Board of
Directors.

·  Via The Internet:
The Internet voting procedures established by Atlas for shareholders of record are designed to authenticate your
identity, to allow you to give your voting instructions and to confirm that those instructions have been properly
recorded.

The website for Internet voting is www.proxyvote.com. Please have your proxy card handy when you go online. You
will be able to confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded.  If you vote on the Internet, you also can
request electronic delivery of future proxy materials.

Internet voting facilities for shareholders of record will be available 24 hours a day, and will close at 11:59 p.m.,
Eastern Time Zone, on October 26, 2009.
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The availability of Internet voting for beneficial owners will depend on the voting processes of your broker, bank or
other holder of record.  Therefore, if you are a beneficial owner, we recommend that you follow the voting
instructions in the materials you receive.

If you vote on the Internet, you do not have to return your proxy card or voting instruction card.

·  By Telephone:
The telephone voting procedures established by Atlas for shareholders of record are designed to authenticate your
identity, to allow you to give your voting instructions and to confirm that those instructions have been properly
recorded.

Instructions for voting by telephone are included on your proxy card.  Please have your proxy card handy when you
dial in.

Telephone voting facilities for shareholders of record will be available 24 hours a day, and will close at 11:59 p.m.
Eastern time on October 26, 2009.

The availability of telephone voting for beneficial owners will depend on the voting processes of your broker, bank or
other holder of record.  Therefore, if you are a beneficial owner, we recommend that you follow the voting
instructions in the materials you receive.

If you vote by telephone, you do not have to return your proxy card or voting instruction card.

·  In Person At The Annual Meeting:
All shareholders may vote in person at the Annual Meeting.  You may also be represented by another person at the
Meeting by executing a proper proxy designating that person.  If you are a beneficial and not a record owner of shares,
you must obtain a legal proxy from your broker, bank or other holder of record and present it to the inspectors of
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election with your ballot to be able to vote at the Meeting.

Your vote is important.  You can save us the expense of a second mailing by voting promptly.

What can I do if I change my mind after I vote my shares?

If you are a shareholder of record, you can revoke your proxy before it is exercised by:

·  written notice to the President of the Company;
·  timely delivery of a valid, later dated proxy or a later dated vote by telephone
or  on the Internet; or

·  voting by ballot at the Annual Meeting.

If you are a beneficial owner of shares, you may submit new voting instructions by contacting your bank, broker or
other holder of record.  You may also vote in person at the Annual Meeting if you obtain a legal proxy as described in
the answer to the previous question.

All proxies that have been properly completed and delivered and not revoked will be voted at the Annual Meeting.

Is there a list of shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

The names of shareholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available at the Annual Meeting
and for ten days prior to the Meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting by contacting the President of the
Company between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Eastern Time Zone, at our principal executive offices located
at 110 Greene Street, Suite 1101, New York, New York 10012.

9
[Missing Graphic Reference]

What are the voting requirements to elect the Directors and to approve each of the proposals discussed in this Proxy
Statement?

Proposal Vote Required
Discretionary

Voting Allowed?

Election of Directors Plurality Yes

        Change of the name of the Company
to Applied Minerals, Inc.

Majority of votes
cast * No

        Increase the authorized number of
shares of Company common stock

Majority of votes
cast * No

Authorize flexible preferred stock
Majority of votes

cast * No

        Number of directors determined by
resolution of the board of directors

Majority of votes
cast * No
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Reincorporation from Idaho to Delaware
Majority of votes

cast * No

     * the tem “votes cast” include votes “for” and “against,” but does not include ballots marked “abstain” and do es not
include broker non-votes

The presence of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting, in person or represented by proxy, is necessary to constitute a quorum.  Abstentions and “broker non votes” are
counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining a quorum.  A “broker non vote” occurs when a bank,
broker or other holder of record holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because
that holder does not have discretionary voting power under New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) rules governing
discretionary voting by NYSE members for that particular item and has not received instructions from the beneficial
owner.

If you are a beneficial owner, your bank, broker or other holder of record is permitted under NYSE rules to vote your
shares on the election of Directors, even if the record holder does not receive voting instructions from you.  The record
holder may not vote on the other matters being submitted for a shareholder vote without instructions from
you.  Without your voting instructions on these matters, a broker non vote will occur.

·  Election of Directors
The election is for directors of the Company.  If the reincorporation is approved, the directors of the Delaware
corporation will be the same as those elected to the Board of the Idaho corporation.

Directors are elected under a plurality voting standard, so that the candidates receiving a plurality of votes cast (the
most “for” votes) are elected.  Abstentions and “against” votes are not counted under a plurality voting standard.

·  Change The Name of The Company to Applied Minerals, Inc.
The proposal is for an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

The votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to change the
name of the Company.  Abstentions and broker non-votes are not counted as votes “for” or “against” this proposal.
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·  Increase The Authorized Number of Shares of Company Common Stock
The proposal is for an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Idaho corporation.

The votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to increase the
authorized number of shares of Company Common Stock. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not counted as votes
“for” or “against” this proposal.

·  Authorize Flexible Preferred Stock
The proposal is for an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Idaho corporation.

The votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to authorize
flexible preferred stock.  Abstentions and broker non-votes are not counted as votes “for” or “against” this proposal.
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·  Number of Directors Determined By Resolution of The Board of Directors
The proposal is for an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Idaho corporation.

The votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to provide that
the number of directors is determined from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors.  Abstentions and
broker non-votes are not counted as votes “for” or “against” this proposal.

·  Reincorporation From Idaho To Delaware
The votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” the merger with and into our wholly owned subsidiary (the
“Delaware corporation” or “Atlas Delaware”) for the purpose of changing our state of incorporation from Idaho to
Delaware.  Abstentions and broker non votes are not counted as votes “for” or “against” this proposal.

Because your bank, broker or other holder of record does not have discretionary voting authority to vote your shares
on any proposal except the election of directors absent specific instructions from you, it is therefore important that you
vote, or direct the holder of record to vote, on the proposals other than the election of directors.

What are the rights and the conditions to implement the reincorporation proposal?

Shareholders who follow specified procedures and do not vote for the reincorporation proposal may receive the fair
value of such shareholder’s shares.  The Board of Directors may abandon and not implement the reincorporation
proposal even if approved by shareholders if the holders of more than .5% of the outstanding shares deliver a written
notice of such shareholder’s intent to demand payment for such shareholder’s shares.

What is the relationship between the reincorporation and the proposals to amend the Idaho Articles of Incorporation
being voted on?

If the reincorporation is approved and implemented, the content of the certificate of incorporation of the Delaware
corporation will depend on the outcome of the shareholder vote on proposals 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6.  If the shareholders
approve a particular proposal, the certificate of incorporation of the Delaware corporation will include language
substantially the same as in the proposal.  If the shareholders do not approve a particular proposal, the certificate of
incorporation of the Delaware corporation will not include the language in the proposal, but will contain the language
in the current Idaho Articles of Incorporation.  The proposals to amend the Idaho Articles of Incorporation are not
interdependent.

The proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission require that if in a reincorporation, the certificate of
incorporation of the surviving corporation (in this case, the Delaware corporation) is materially different from the
Articles of Incorporation of the disappearing corporation ( the Idaho corporation),  the shareholders of the
disappearing corporation must be asked to approve the material and different provisions individually and separate and
apart from the approval of the reincorporation.

11
[Missing Graphic Reference]

Could other matters be decided at the Annual Meeting?

At the date this Proxy Statement went to press, we did not know of any matters to be raised at the Annual Meeting
other than those referred to in this Proxy Statement.
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If you have returned your signed and completed proxy card and other matters are properly presented at the Annual
Meeting for consideration, the Proxy Committee appointed by the Board of Directors (the persons named in your
proxy card if you are a shareholder of record) will have the discretion to vote on those matters for you.

Who will pay for the cost of this proxy solicitation?

We will pay the cost of soliciting proxies.  Proxies may be solicited on our behalf by Directors, officers or employees
in person or by telephone, electronic transmission and facsimile transmission.

Who will count the votes?

A Company employee will tabulate the votes and act as inspector of election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR ISSUES

The Nomination Process
The Board of Directors has not created a separate Nomination Committee or a Charter for such a committee.  Rather,
the Board as a whole performs such functions and each director is eligible to participate and has participated in the
nomination process.

The general criteria that our Board uses to select nominees include the following:  individuals reputation for integrity,
honesty and adherence to high ethical standards; such person’s demonstrated business acumen, experience and ability
to exercise sound judgment in matters that relate to the current and long-term objectives of the Company; such
shareholder’s willingness and ability to contribute positively to the decision making process of the Company; such
person’s commitment to understand the Company and its industry and to regularly attend and participate in meetings of
the Board and its committees; such person’s interest and ability to understand the sometimes conflicting interests of the
various constituencies of the Company, which include stockholders, employees, customers, creditors and the general
public; such person’s ability to act in the interests of all stakeholders; and no nominee should have, or appear to have, a
conflict of interest that would impair the nominee’s ability to represent the interests of all of the Company’s
stockholders and to fulfill the responsibilities of a director.  There are, however, no specific minimum qualifications
that nominees must have in order to be selected.

The Board will consider director candidates recommended by our stockholders.  In evaluating candidates
recommended by our stockholders, the Board of Directors applies the same criteria discussed above.  Any stockholder
recommendations for director nominees proposed for consideration by the Board should include the nominees ’ name
and qualifications for Board membership and should be addressed in writing to the President, Atlas Mining Company,
110 Greene St., Suite 1101, New York, New York 10012. There have been no changes in the procedures by which
shareholders may recommend candidates for director.

The Board has no set process for identifying and evaluating nominees for director, including shareholder nominees.
Messrs. Levy and Weiss were originally recommended for election as directors by Mr. Taft, a beneficial
shareholder.  Mr. Taft was recommended by Messrs. Levy and Weiss, directors.  Mr. Stone was recommended by Mr.
Zeitoun, a director and CEO.  Mr. Zeitoun was elected a director pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement
with Material Advisors LLC (“Material Advisors”) .

Meetings and Meeting Attendance
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During the year ended December 31, 2008, there were 16 meetings of the Board of Directors. Each of the incumbent
directors who were on the Board of Directors during 2008 attended at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the
Board of Directors.

Members of the Board are expected to attend annual shareholder meetings, including the upcoming shareholder
meeting.  The meeting will be the first shareholder meeting since the company became a public company.

Committees
We do not have nominating, auditing or compensation committees and there were no procedures by which
shareholders might recommend nominees to the Board of Directors.  Rather the Board of Directors as a whole perform
s the functions which would otherwise be performed by the audit, compensation and nominating committees.  Our
board views the addition of standing audit, compensation and nominating committees as an unnecessary additional
expense and process to the Company given its stage of development.   In 2008, there was a Special Committee,
initially consisting of Mr. Levy and later Mr. Weiss to (i) review and investigate the conduct of the prior management
of the Company and any issues arising there from and (ii) review and evaluate the Company’s business, financial
condition, assets, strategy, prospects and management and recommend to the Board various alternatives to improve
the Company’s performance and prospects.  The Special Committee met approximately nine times in 2008.

13
[Missing Graphic Reference]

Director Independence
The only directors deemed to be independent under the independence standards of Nasdaq are Messrs. Levy and
Stone.  They are also independent under the enhanced independence standards of Section 10A-3 of the Securities
Exchange Act.  Messrs. Zeitoun, Taft, and Weiss are not independent under the Nasdaq standards of
independence.  Mr. Zeitoun is an employee. Mr. Weiss was a consultant who served as Chief Restructuring Officer in
2008 and 2009 and continued to serve as a consultant in 2009.  Mr. Taft is not independent because of the size o f his
security holdings.  William Jacobson and Ronald Price, who served as directors during part of 2008, were not
independent because they were employees.

Audit Committee Financial Expert
The Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Levy is an audit committee financial expert as this term is defined in
the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and is independent under the independence standards of Nasdaq
and the enhanced independence standards of Section 10A-3 of the Securities Exchange Act.

Audit Committee Report
The Board of Directors has not created a separate audit committee or a charter for such a committee.  The Board of
Directors acts as an audit committee.  The Board believes that a separate audit committee is not needed in light of the
size of the Company and the involvement of the Board of Directors in Company operations.

In the discharge of its responsibilities, the Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed with management and the
independent auditors the Company’s audited financial statements for fiscal year 2008.  In addition,

A.  The audit committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements with management;

B.  The audit committee has discussed with the independent auditors the matters
required to be discussed by the statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as
amended;
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C.  The audit committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the
independent accountant required by applicable requirements of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant’s
communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and has
discussed with the independent accountant the independent accountant’s
independence; and

D.  Based on the review and discussions referred to in paragraphs (A) through (C)
above, the audit committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the
audited financial statements be included in the company’s annual report on Form
10-K for the last fiscal year for filing with the Commission.

Directors performing the function of the Audit Committee:

John Levy
David Taft
Morris Weiss
Andre Zeitoun

(Note:  Mr. Stone was not a member of the Board of Directors at the time that the Annual Report on Form 10-K was
approved.)

Policy on Board of Directors’ Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors is responsible for appointing, setting compensation and overseeing the work of the
independent auditors.  The Board of Directors has established a policy regarding pre-approval of all audit and
non-audit services provided by the independent auditors.  On an ongoing basis, management communicates specific
projects and categories of services for which advance approval of the Board of Directors is requested.  The Board of
Directors reviews these requests and advises management if the Board of Directors approves the engagement of the
independent auditors for specific projects.  On a periodic basis, management reports to the Board of Directors
regarding the actual spending for such projects and services compared to the approved amounts.
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Management is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the Company’s financial statements.  The independent
registered public accounting firm is responsible for performing an independent audit of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and for issuing a report thereon.  The
Board of Directors has independently met and held discussions with management and the independent registered
public accounting firm.

Director Compensation For The Year Ended December 31, 2008

The following table sets forth compensation to Directors in 2008.

Name

Fees
Earned or
Paid in

Cash (1) (2)

Stock
Awards (1)

(3) Total ($)
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John Levy $148,000 $52,000 $200,000

Morris D. Weiss 56,667 60,000 116,667

David A. Taft 10,000 - 0 - 10,000

William Jacobson - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Ronald Price - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

(1 )

Directors fees are, except as noted below, $10,000 per quarter, except that Mr. Weiss was paid $30,000
for the third quarter of 2008.  Directors can elect to receive shares in lieu of cash, valued at the market
price as of the beginning of a quarter.  Stock awards represent the value of shares issues as a result of
elections to receive stock in lieu of cash.

(2 ) For service on a special committee, Mr. Levy received $160,000 and Mr. Weiss $76,667.

(3) As of December 31, 2008, aggregate stock awards for director-related work
were as follows:  Mr. Levy – 95,957 shares; Mr. Weiss - 112,744 shares.

(4) Mr. Weiss also received compensation as an employee and a consultant.  See
“Summary Compensation Table” and “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal
Year-End” under “Executive Compensation and Highly Paid Employees”.

Mr. Levy was elected Chairman of the Board on August 20, 2009.  Beginning with the fourth quarter of 2009, his fees
for serving as director and Chairman will be $12,500 per quarter. As additional compensation for serving as
Chairman, he will receive options to purchase 125,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per
share.  Such options will vest quarterly beginning on October 1, 2009, provided he is a director and Chairman at the
beginning of the relevant quarter.

Shareholder Communication to the Board of Directors.
Shareholders may communicate with the Board of Directors by sending an email or a letter to Atlas Mining Company
Board of Directors, c/o President, 110 Greene Street, Suite 1101, New York, New York, 10012.  The President will
receive the correspondence and forward it to the individual director or directors to whom the communication is
directed or to all directors in not directed to one or more specifically.

Code of Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and our senior financial officers.  A
copy of our Code of Conduct and Ethics can be obtained at no cost, by telephone at (208) 556-1181 or by mail
at:  Atlas Mining Company, 110 Greene Street, Suite 1101, New York, New York, 10012.  We believe our Code of
Conduct and Ethics is reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct; provide full,
fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in public reports; comply with applicable laws; ensure prompt
internal reporting of code violations; and provide accountability for adherence to the code.
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SECURITIES OWNERSHIP

The following discussion sets forth information regarding share ownership of certain shareholders and management.
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Authorized Shares
As of August 28, 2009, the Company had:

·  60,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock;
·  59,215,628 issued shares of common stock

·  17,937,234 shares of Common Stock issuable on the exercise of outstanding
stock options and on the conversion of 10% PIK Election Convertible Notes
“PIK Notes”.

The issuable shares in excess of 60 million cannot be issued until the Articles of Incorporation are amended to
increase the number of authorized shares as requested by Proposal 3 in the proxy statement.  The issuance of PIK
Notes on December 30, 2008 put the Company in a position of having insufficient authorized shares to satisfy its
obligations to issue shares.

Ownership Tables
The following table sets forth, as of August 28, 2009, information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common
stock with respect to each of the named executive officers, each of our directors, each person known by us to own
beneficially more than 5% of the common stock, and all of our directors and executive officers as a group.  Each
individual or entity named has sole investment and voting power with respect to shares of common stock indicated as
beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws, where applicable, except where otherwise
noted.  The percentage of common stock beneficially owned is based on 59,215,628 shares of common stock
outstanding as of August 28, 2009 plus a person’s shares subject to options granted after December 30, 2008 that have
vested and shares issuable on conversion of PIK Notes .

Name and Address (1)

Number of Shares of
Common Stock

Beneficially Owned
(2)

Percentage of
Common Stock

Beneficially Owned

Andre Zeitoun (3) (4) (5) 2,492,727 4.1%
John Levy (4) 114,187 *
Morris D. Weiss (4) (6)    831,342 1.3%
David A. Taft (4) (7) (8) 13,969,915 23.6%
Evan Stone (9) 12,230 *
Christopher Carney (3) (5) 1,18,824 2.0%
Barbara Suveg (10) 100 *
William T. Jacobson (11) (12) 3,320,083 5.6%
Michael Lyon (13) 75,000 *
Ronald Short (14) - 0 - *

All Officers and Directors as a
Group 21,931,580 37.6%

IBS Capital LLC (8) 16,969,915 25.6%
Material Advisors, LLC 6,654,706 10.0%

* Less than 1%

(1)
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Unless otherwise indicated, the address of the persons named in this column is
c/o Atlas Mining Company, 110 Greene Street, Ste. 1101, New York, NY
10012.
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(2) Included in this calculation are shares deemed beneficially owned by virtue of
the individual’s right to acquire them within 60 days of the date of this report that
would be required to be reported pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.  For purposes of this table, (i) shares issuable on
conversion of the PIK Notes are not deemed acquirable within 60 days and (ii)
options held by Material Advisors are not deemed to be exercisable within 60
days.  Except as noted below, all shares are owned directly and the person has
sole voting power.

(3) Executive Officer.

(4) Director.
(5) Number of shares includes shares issuable to Material Advisors on the exercise

of options vested as of September 1, 2009 and conversion of 10% PIK Election
Convertible Notes held by Material Advisors and Mr. Zeitoun even though until
the articles of incorporation are amended to increase the authorized
shares.  Shares attributed to each of Messrs. Zeitoun and Carney reflect
ownership interests in Material Advisors .

(6) Number of shares includes an option to acquire 100,000 shares granted on May
1, 2009.

(7) Mr. Taft is the president of IBS Capital, LLC.  He has beneficial ownership of
shares owned by funds of which IBS Capital LLC is the general partner, having
sole voting and investment power.

(8) IBS Capital LLC, Two International Place, 24th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts
02110, is the beneficial owner of shares held by funds it manages by virtue of
the right to vote and dispose of the securities.  One fund, the IBS Turnaround
Fund (QP) (A Limited Partnership), owned 8,413,598 shares or 14.2% of
outstanding shares at July 27, 2009.  Another fund, IBS Turnaround Fund (A
Limited Partnership), owned 3,131,042 or 5.3% of the outstanding shares at July
27, 2009. Mr. Taft is president of IBS Capital LLC.   Another fi=und, IBS
Opportunity Fund (BVI), Ltd, owned 2,425,275 shares, ____% of the
outstanding shares as of July 27, 2009.   Ownership does not include shares
issuable on conversion of PIK Notes.

(9) Nominee for Director.

(10) Functioned as principal accounting officer during 2008.
(11) Former Executive Officer and Director. President and CEO for part of

2008.  Information derived from a Form 4 filed July 27, 2007.

(12) The Company has entered to an agreement with Mr. Jacobson whereby he will
transfer to the Company 3,044,083 shares of Common Stock upon settlement of
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certain litigation.
(13) Former Interim Chief Executive Officer for part of 2008.

(14) Operations Manager Contract Mining Division in 2008.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Review, approval or ratification of transactions with related persons.
Our Board of Directors has a written policy whereby it reviews any transaction involving the Company and a related
party before the transaction or upon any significant change in the transaction or relationship.  There are no limitations
on the types of transactions, except for ordinary business travel and entertainment.  There are no set standards other
than fairness.  For these purposes, a related party transaction includes any transaction required to be disclosed
pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Transactions with Related Persons

Stock Purchase Transactions
David A. Taft, a director, is the president of IBS Capital LLC (“IBS”), a Massachusetts limited liability company, whose
principal business is investing in securities.  IBS is the general partner of the IBS Turnaround Fund (QP), which is a
Massachusetts limited partnership, and IBS Turnaround Fund (LP), which is a Massachusetts limited partnership.  Set
forth below are purchases of Common Stock from the Company by the funds since January 1, 2008:

Date of Purchase

IBS
Turnaround
Fund (QP)

IBS
Turnaround
Fund (LP)

Price Per
Share

May 23, 2008 413,262 170,071 $0.60
June 27. 2008 1,538,685 461,315 0.50
September 23, 2008 1,019,265 680,735 0.50
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The closing market prices on the purchase dates were $0.63, $0.62, and $0.50 per share, respectively.  Mr. Taft was
not a director at the time of the transactions.

PIK Note Transactions

Beginning on December 30, 2008, the Company has sold $3,850,000 of 10% PIK Election Convertible Notes due
December 15, 2018 (“PIK Notes”) in four tranches.  The notes varied only as to the conversion price, which in each case
was at or above the market price on the date of sale.   The conversion prices range from $.35 to $.70. Such note is
convertible into shares of Company common stock at the conversion price per share at any time after the Company
has authorized sufficient shares to conve rt all such amounts outstanding under the notes into common stock.  The
amount outstanding will be mandatorily converted into common stock at the conversion price per share when (i)
Company has authorized a sufficient number of shares to convert amounts outstanding under all of the 10% PIK
Election Convertible Notes into common stock, (ii) the average market price for the common stock is in excess of the
conversion price and (iii) either (a) the Company has filed and caused to become effective a registration statement for
the resale of the number of shares of common stock into which the outstanding amount of the note is convertible, or
(b) such shares are resalable under Rule 144.  Interest on notes of such series may be paid by issuance of additional
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notes, by increasing the principal amounts under such notes, or in cash. Interest payable on such note through June 15,
2009 has been paid by the issuance of additional PIK Notes.

The principal under the notes is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration or conversion of the notes as
described below. The notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable (including by issuance of additional
in-kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each year commencing June 15, 2009. The
number of shares issued on conversion of a note will be derived by dividing the principal and accrued interest on the
note by the conversion price (the “Strike Price”). The Strike Price will be subject to adjustment in the event of a
dividend or distribution on Company’ common stock in shares of common stock, subdivision or combination of
Company outstanding common stock, or reclassification of Company’s outstanding common stock.  A noteholder may
accelerate the entire amount due under its note upon the occurrence of certain events of default or, after July 1, 2010,
in the event there is insufficient common stock available for conversion of all the notes in the Series.

The following table sets forth purchases of PIK Notes by Mr. Zeitoun personally.

Date of Purchase
Principal
Amount

Conversion
Price per
Share

December 31, 2008 $50,000 $0.35

The closing market prices on the trading day immediately before the purchases were $0.14 and $0.55 per share,
respectively.

The following table sets forth purchases of PIK Notes by Material Advisors, of which Mr. Zeitoun is Manager.

Date of Purchase
Principal
Amount

Conversion
Price per
Share

April 8 , 2009 $2 5,000 $0. 35
May 4 , 2009 1 5,000 0. 50

The closing market prices on the trading day immediately before the purchase were $0.25 per share.

Set forth b elow is information about purchases of 10% PIK Election Notes by IBS Turnaround Fund (QP) and IBS
Turnaround Fund (LP).

Purchaser and Principal
Amount Conversion

Date of Purchase

IBS
Turnaround
Fund (QP)

IBS
Turnaround
Fund (LP)

Price Per
Share

December 30, 2008 $360,000 $ 140,000 $0.35
May 4, 2009 320,000 180,000 0.50

The closing market prices on the trading day immediately before the purchases were $0.14 and $0.55 per share,
respectively.
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Agreement with William Jacobson

On April 26, 2009, the Company entered into a release and settlement agreement with William T. Jacobson, formerly
Chairman and CEO of the Company and certain members of his family.  The Company agreed to pay (i) up to
$293,000 in defense of the class action litigation, Benson v. Atlas Mining Company (“Class Action Litigation”) and (ii)
$170,000 upon complete resolution of the Class Action Litigation, the amounts are expected to be funded by the
proceeds of the Company’s insurance policies.  William Jacobson waived all claims under any potentially applicable
insurance policy issued to the Company and agreed to transfer to the Company 3,044,083 shares of Company common
stock within three business days of approval by the court of the settlement of certain class action litigation, which is
still pending.  The agreement provides for mutual releases of all claims.

Agreement with Ronald Price

On December 12, 2008, Ronald Price resigned as a director of the Company and as an officer and director of one of
the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to the terms of a separation agreement (the “Separation Agreement”).  Pursuant to
the Separation Agreement, Mr. Price is to render certain cooperation and services.  Pursuant to the Separation
Agreement, until March 1, 2009, he was paid amounts equal to the compensation under his employment agreement
with the subsidiary, which employment agreement was terminated by the Separation Agreement (at the rate of
$200,000 per year).  For the period from March 1, 2009 to February 28, 2010, he is being paid $50,000, such amount
to be paid in monthly installments of $4,167.

Management Agreement With Material Advisors

Messrs. Zeitoun and Carney were appointed to positions with the Company pursuant to an agreement with
Management Advisors, of which they are members and owners.

On December 30, 2008, the Company entered into a Management Agreement with Material Advisors, a management
services company (“Manager”).  The Management Agreement has a term ending on December 31, 2010 with automatic
renewal for successive one year periods unless either Manager or Company provides 90 days prior notice of
cancellation to the other party or pursuant to the termination provisions of the Management Agreement.  Under the
Management Agreement, Manager is to perform or engage others, including Mr. Zeitoun, a principal of Manager,
Christopher Carney and Eric Basroon (“Management Personnel”) to perform senior management services including such
services as are customarily provided by a chief executive officer but not (unless otherwise agreed) services
customarily provided by a chief financial officer (it was subsequently agreed to have Mr. Carney perform as Interim
Chief Financial Officer).  Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Andre Zeitoun is serving as the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

The services provided by Manager include, without limitation, consulting with the Board of Directors of the Company
and the Company’s management on business and financial matters, including matters related to (i) new business
development, creating and implementing the Company’s business plan and overseeing and supervising the Company’s
operations, (ii) preparation of operating budgets and business plans, (iii) Company’s corporate and financial structure,
(iv) formulation of long term business strategies, (v) recruiting senior management, (vi) financing, (vii) transactions
with third parties, including mergers and acquisitions, (viii) evaluating potential sale or exit opportunities, structuring
and negotiating a sale of the Company, or leveraged recapitalization, and (ix) resolving investigations and litigation
involving the Company.
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Manager is paid an annual fee of $1,000,000 per year for the three year term of the Management Agreement, payable
in equal monthly installments of $83,333.  Manager will be solely responsible for the compensation of the
Management Personnel and the Management Personnel will not be entitled to any direct compensation or benefits
from the Company (including in the case of Mr. Zeitoun, for service on the Board).  The Management Agreement
does not specify the levels of compensation to Messrs. Zeitoun or Carney. Additionally, the Company granted
Manager non-qualified stock options to purchase, for $0.70 per share (the “$0.70 Option”) a number of shares of the
Company equal to 10% of the outstanding common stock of the Company on a fully diluted basis (which shall vest in
equal monthly installments over three years).  On December 31, 2008, the closing stock price of the Company’s
Common Stock was $0.15.  The following sets forth the treatment of the $0.70 Option in the event of a “going private
transaction.”  Upon the consummation of a transaction resulting in (i) the Company ceasing to be a SEC reporting
company, or having less than 300 shareholders of record and (ii) David A. Taft, IBS Capital LLC, The IBS
Turnaround Fund L.P., The IBS Turnaround Fund (QP), The IBS Opportunity Fund (BVI). Ltd., or any of their
affiliates or related entities own in the aggregate more than 50% of the outstanding equity capital of the Company
immediately following such transaction (a “Going Private Transaction”), the $0.70 option will be cancelled and replaced
by a non-qualified option (the “Going Private Option”), accompanied by a tandem stock appreciation right (the
“SAR”).  The Going Private Option will provide Manager the right to purchase the same percentage of Company’s(or its
successor’s) outstanding shares of common stock after giving effect to the going private transaction that were subject
to the $0.70 Option.  The SAR will entitle Manager to receive either shares of common stock or cash equal in value to
the excess of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of exercise over the base price per share
under the SAR.  The exercise price of the Going Private Option and the base price under the SAR will be the fair
market value per share to be paid in the Going Private Transaction to shareholders who are not investing in the going
private vehicle.  The term of the $0.70 Option, the Going Private Option and the SAR will be 10 years.  During such
periods, the Going Private Option and the SAR will be fully exercisable.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our officers, directors, and any person who beneficially
owns more than 10% of our common stock to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.  Executive officers, directors, and more than 10% shareholders are required by regulation
to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms which they file.  During 2008, certain of our directors and
executive officers who own our stock filed Forms 3 or Forms 4 with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
information on these filings reflects the current ownership position of all such individuals.  To the best of our
knowledge, during 2008 all such filings by our officers and directors were made timely, except (i) due to an
administrative error in each instance, Ronald Price (former director) did not file required Form 5, and Morris Weiss
filed required Forms 3 and 4 late (attributable to delay in advisor obtaining Edgar Codes) and (ii) for voluntary filings
reflecting ownership in Material Advisors by Mr. Carney and Mr. Zeitoun.
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PROPOSALS REQUIRING YOUR VOTE

PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
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Nominees for Directors

The Board of Directors currently consists of five members.  The Company’s directors are to be elected at each annual
meeting of shareholders.  At this Annual Meeting, five directors are to be elected to serve until the next annual
meeting of shareholders or until such director’s successors are elected and qualified.  The nominees for the Board of
Directors are John F. Levy, David A. Taft, Morris D. Weiss, Andre Zeitoun, and Evan D. Stone as set forth in the
table below describing Company Officers and Directors.  Each of Mr. Levy, Mr. Taft, Mr. Weiss, Mr. Zeitoun and
Mr. Stone are recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company.  In the event that any of the nominees for
director should become unable to serve if elected, it is intended that shares represented by proxies which are executed
and returned will be voted for such substitute nominee(s) as may be recommended by the Company’s existing Board of
Directors.

The five nominees receiving the highest number of votes cast at the Annual Meeting will be elected as the Company’s
directors to serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until  their  successors are elected and qualified.

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company fix the number of directors at five.  The current number of directors is
five. Proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees named.

The terms of all directors expire at the Annual Meeting.  Directors are elected to serve until the next annual meeting of
shareholders.  Officers are appointed annually by the Board of Directors and serve at the pleasure of the Board.

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF EACH OF THE FOUR
NOMINEES.

Information About Nominees

The following table provides the names, positions, ages and principal occupations of our current directors, and those
who are nominated for election as a director at the Annual Meeting:

Name and Position with
the Company Age Director/Officer Since Principal Occupation

Andre Zeitoun 36

Chief Executive
Officer, President and
Director since January
2009

President, Chief
Executive Officer and
Director of Company

John Levy 53
Director since January
2008

CEO of Board
Advisory

David A. Taft 51
Director since October
2008

President, IBS Capital
LLC

Morris D. Weiss 50
Director since January
2008

Managing Director
Investment Banking at
MDB Capital Group
LLC

Evan D. Stone 37 Director nominee Partner, Lee & Stone
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(nominee for director)
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Andre Zeitoun, Chief Executive Officer, President, Director. Mr. Zeitoun is manager of Material Advisors LLC
(“Material Advisors”) which provides managerial services to the Company pursuant to a Management Agreement
entered into as of January 1, 2009.  Mr. Zeitoun was elected as a director and as CEO pursuant to the terms of the
Management Agreement as described in “Related Party Transactions.”

Mr. Zeitoun was a Portfolio Manager at SAC Capital/CR Intrinsic Investors from March 2007 through December
2008.  At SAC, he led a team of six professionals and managed a several hundred million dollar investment portfolio
focused on companies that required a balance sheet recapitalization and/or operational turnaround.  Many of these
investments required Mr. Zeitoun to take an active role in the turnaround process.  From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Zeitoun
headed the Special Situations Group at RBC Dain Rauscher as a Senior Vice President and head of the division.  He
managed all group matters related to sales, trading, research and the investment of the firm’s proprietary capital.  From
1999 to 2003 Mr. Zeitoun was a Senior Vice President at Solomon Smith Barney.  In this role, Mr. Zeitoun led a
Special Situations sales trading research team serving middle market institutions.  Mr. Zeitoun is a graduate of
Canisius College.

John Levy, Director.  Since May 2005, Mr. Levy has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Board Advisory, a
consulting firm that advises companies in the areas of corporate governance, corporate compliance, financial reporting
and financial strategies.  From November 2005 to March 2006, Mr. Levy served as Interim Chief Financial Officer of
Universal Food & Beverage Company, which filed a voluntary petition under the provisions of Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Act on August 31, 2007.  From November 1997 to May 2005, Mr. Levy served as Chief
Financial Officer of MediaBay, Inc., a NASDAQ company and provider of spoken word audio content.  While at
MediaBay, he also served for a period as its Vice Chairman.

Mr. Levy is a director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Take-Two Interactive Software, Inc., a publicly
traded company that develops, markets, distributes and publishes interactive entertainment software games; Lead
Director and Audit Committee Chairman of Gilman Ciocia, Inc, a financial planning and tax preparation firm; a
director of PNG Ventures, Inc., which, through its subsidiaries, engages in the production and wholesale distribution
of vehicle-quality liquid natural gas in the western United States serving airports, public transit, refuse, seaports,
regional trucking, taxis, and government fleets markets; PNG filed a voluntary petition under the provisions of
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Act on September 10, 2009.  Mr. Levy is a director and a member of the
Audit Committee of Applied Energetics, Inc, which specializes in the development and application of high power
lasers, high voltage electronics, advanced optical systems, and energy management systems technologies.

Mr. Levy is a Certified Public Accountant with nine years experience with the national public accounting firms of
Ernst & Young, Laventhol & Horwath and Grant Thornton. Mr. Levy has a B.S. degree in economics from the
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania and received his M.B.A. from St. Joseph's University in
Philadelphia.

David A. Taft, Director.  Mr. Taft is the President of IBS Capital, LLC, a private investment company based in
Boston, Massachusetts which he founded in 1990.  Prior to founding IBS Capital, Mr. Taft spent ten years working in
corporate finance with Drexel Burnham Lambert, Winthrop Financial and Merrill Lynch.  Mr. Taft is a graduate of
Amherst College and Amos Tuck School of Business Administration at Dartmouth College.
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Morris D. Weiss, Director.  During the period from November 1, 2008 until April 30, 2009, Mr. Weiss served as Chief
Restructuring Officer of the Company and since then has served as a consultant with respect to the settlement of
certain litigation.
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Since May 2009, Mr. Weiss has been Managing Director of Investment Banking at MDB Capital Group.  From 2002
to2008, Mr. Weiss was Managing Director and Head of Investment Banking for Tejas Securities Group, Inc., a
subsidiary of Tejas Incorporated.  He co-founded the investment banking department at Tejas in 2004, which raised
capital in excess of $1.3 billion for private and public companies in a variety of industries.  Mr. Weiss was a member
of the Board of Directors of Trenwick America LLC, a private insurance holding company.  From 1997 to 2001, he
served as Senior Vice President and General Counsel for National Bancshares Corporation of Texas (AMEX: NBT),
which was sold in a $100 million transaction at the end of 2001.  Before that Mr. Weiss was a partner at the law firm
of Weil, Gotshal & Manges, LLP in the Business Finance and Restructuring Department, where he practiced for more
than 11 years, the last three as a partner.

Mr. Weiss holds a BS in Finance from Babson College and a JD from South Texas College of Law, and is licensed to
practice law in Texas, New York and Florida.  He also holds the series 7, 24 and 63 securities licenses.

Evan D. Stone, Director. Mr. Stone has represented hedge funds, private equity funds, venture capital funds and public
and private corporations on a wide range of sophisticated corporate and securities matters.  Mr. Stone is co-founder of
Lee & Stone LLP, a Dallas based law firm specializing in services for the investment community.  Prior to
co-founding Lee & Stone in 2009, Mr. Stone served as Vice President and General Counsel for Dallas-based
investment manager, Newcastle Capital Management, L.P., which Mr. Stone joined in 2006.  Prior to Newcastle, from
2003 through 2006, Mr. Stone worked in the mergers and acquisitions department of the international law firm
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP in New York.  Prior to Skadden, Mr. Stone served as a member of the
investment banking department at Merrill Lynch & Co. and Vice President, Corporate Development at Borland
Software, Inc.  In addition to his work on behalf of investors at Lee & Stone, Mr. Stone currently serves as General
Counsel and Secretary of Wilhelmina International, Inc., a leading model and artist management firm, to which
offices he was appointed in 2009.  Mr. Stone is also a director of Wilhelmina.

Mr. Stone received his BA from Harvard University and a joint JD/MBA from the University of Texas at Austin.
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OVERVIEW OF PROPOSALS 2 THROUGH 6

PROPOSALS 2, 3, 4, AND 5 ARE PROPOSALS FOR AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
(“IDAHO ARTICLES”) OF THE COMPANY (THE “COMPANY” OR “ATLAS”).  THE PROPOSALS ARE
INDEPENDENT AND NOT INTERDEPENDENT SO THAT THE APPROVAL OR FAILURE TO APPROVE A
PARTICULAR PROPOSAL DOES NOT AFFECT ANY OTHER PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE ARTICLES OF
INCORPORATION OF THE COMPANY.

PROPOSAL 6 IS A PROPOSAL TO REINCORPORATE THE COMPANY IN DELAWARE
(“REINCORPORATION PROPOSAL”), WHICH WOULD BE EFFECTED BY A MERGER OF THE COMPANY
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INTO THE COMPANY’S WHOLLY-OWNED DELAWARE SUBSIDIARY ORGANIZED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF THE MERGER, WITH THE DELAWARE CORPORATION BEING THE ONLY ENTITY SURVIVING THE
MERGER (“ATLAS DELAWARE”).

IF THE REINCORPORATION IS APPROVED AND IMPLEMENTED, THE PROVISIONS OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF ATLAS DELAWARE (“DELAWARE CERTIFICATE”) WILL DEPEND
ON WHETHER ANY OR ALL OF PROPOSALS 2, 3, 4, AND 5 ARE APPROVED.  IF A PROPOSAL TO
AMEND THE IDAHO ARTICLES IS APPROVED, THE DELAWARE CERTIFICATE WILL CONTAIN A
PROVISION SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS THE LANGUAGE IN THE PROPOSAL.  IF A PROPOSAL TO
AMEND THE IDAHO ARTICLES IS NOT APPROVED, THE PROVISION CURRENTLY IN THE IDAHO
ARTICLES WILL BE CARRIED OVER TO THE DELAWARE CERTIFICATE.

PROPOSAL 2: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO CHANGE THE NAME OF
THE COMPANY TO APPLIED MINERALS, INC.

Proposal 2 is an amendment to the articles of incorporation of the Company to change the name of the corporation to
Applied Minerals, Inc.

Exact language of the current and proposed provision, the Idaho Articles currently provide:

The name of this corporation is: Atlas Mining Company

If the Proposal 2 is approved, the Idaho Articles will be amended to provide:

The name of this corporation is Applied Minerals, Inc.

Consequences of Shareholder Vote

If Proposal 2 is not approved, the name will remain Atlas Mining Company.

Proposal 2 is not dependent on the vote with respect to any other proposal.

If Proposal 6, the Reincorporation Proposal is approved and implemented, the name of Atlas Delaware will depend on
whether or not Proposal 2 is approved.  If it is approved, the name will be Applied Minerals, Inc.  If it is not approved,
the name will be Atlas Mining Company.
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Reason for the Recommended Change

The Company was incorporated in 1924 to engage in silver mining activities at a mine known as the Atlas Mine in the
Coeur d’Alene Mining District in Idaho.  The mining activities were unsuccessful and while the Company still owns
the Atlas Mine property, there are no plans to exploit the property.
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The Board of Directors believes that the name Applied Minerals, Inc. better describes the Company’s business and
intended business.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR PROPOSAL 2, AN
AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO CHANGE THE NAME OF THE COMPANY TO APPLIED

MINERALS INC.

PROPOSAL 3: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO INCREASE THE NUMBER
OF AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMPANY COMMON STOCK

Proposal 3 is an amendment to the articles of incorporation of the Company to increase the number of authorized
shares of Common Stock

Exact language of the current and proposed provision:

The Idaho Articles currently provide:

The total authorized capital stock of this corporation shall be sixty million (60,000,000) no par, common shares...

If the amendment is approved, the Idaho Articles will be amended to provide:

The total authorized capital stock of this corporation shall be one hundred twenty million (120,000,000) par value
$.001, common shares...

Consequences of Shareholder Vote

If Proposal 3 is not approved, the number of authorized shares and the par value of the Common Stock will not be
changed.

Proposal 3 is not dependent on the vote with respect to any other proposal.

If Proposal 6, the Reincorporation Proposal, is approved and implemented, the terms of the Delaware Certificate
relating to the Common Stock will depend on whether Proposal 3 is approved.  If Proposal 3 is approved, the
Delaware Certificate will provide for one hundred twenty million shares and $.001 par value.  If it is not approved, the
number of authorized shares and the par value of the Common Stock of Atlas Delaware will be sixty million and no
par value.

As explained in the next section, the proposed increase in the number of authorized shares will enable the Company
issue shares issuable on exercise of certain outstanding options and on conversion of certain outstanding notes.

Reason for the Recommended Change

Beginning in mid-2008, the Company’s contract mining business, the Company’s sole source of operating revenue in
2007 and 2008, began to feel the effects of the recession as mining activities slowed down.  By the end of 2008, the
Board of Directors determined to terminate the contract mining business.  The Company, however, continued to have
significant on-going expenses related to “legacy” issues (defending a securities class action and other litigation and
amending certain reports filed with the SEC and preparing financial statements and disclosures so that it could file
delinquent reports with the SEC, among other things) and to on-going business (such as management compensation,
the costs of an appraisal of the Dragon Mine, and marketing and related expenses).
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The Company would have preferred to finance the on-going expenses through the sale of Common Stock  but by the
end of December 2008 there were only 784,372 shares of authorized but unissued shares.  Until the Company became
current in its SEC filings, calling a shareholder meeting to approve an increase in the number of authorized shares
created a risk of an enforcement action by the SEC.  In order to finance on-going expenses, the Company, beginning
on December 30, 2008, has sold $4,050,000 of 10% PIK Election Convertible Notes Due 2018 (“PIK Notes”) which,
after the Company has sufficient authorized shares of Common Stock, are convertible into 10,150,549 shares of
Common Stock.   The Company has used and will use the proceeds of the PIK Notes for working capital. The holders
of the notes can put them to the Company at any time after July 1, 2010. There are not at this time sufficient
authorized shares so that all of the PIK Notes are convertible into Common Stock.   The terms of the PIK Notes are
described in detail under “Related Party Transactions; Transactions with Related Parties; PIK Note Transactions” above.

To secure the management services of Material Advisors, the Company entered into a management agreement
effective January 1, 2009 pursuant to which it granted Material Advisors options to purchase 6,583,277 shares of
Common Stock at $.70 per share .   The proceeds to the Company upon exercise would be $4,608,294.  The Company
has not determined the use of proceeds of funds upon exercise.   Pursuant to the management agreement, the
principals of Material Advisors now serve in the following positions with the Company:  Andre Zeitoun is President
and Chief Executive Officer and Christopher T. Carney is Interim Chief Financial Officer.   The terms of the options
are described in detail under detail under “Related Party Transactions; Transactions with Related Parties; Management
Agreement with Material Advisors LLC” above.

In 2009, the Company granted or took action to confirm the grant to Morris Weiss, a director, options to purchase
400,000 shares of Common Stock at $.70 per share for his services as Chief Restructuring officer and as a consultant.
  The proceeds to the Company upon exercise would be $280,000.  The Company has not determined the use of
proceeds of funds upon exercise.  The terms of the options are described in footnote 7 to the Summary Compensation
Table below.

As a result of the issuance of the foregoing convertible notes and options and other outstanding options to purchase
Common Stock, the Company has outstanding obligations to issue 17,937,234 shares of Common Stock, 17,152,862
shares in excess of the currently authorized 60,000,000 shares.  If the Company were to issue Common Stock in
excess of the authorized number of shares, the issuance of such shares would be void or voidable.  If the Company
fails to authorize sufficient shares of Common Stock to satisfy outstanding options, the holders of the options would
have a cause of action against the Company.

In order to satisfy the obligations to issue shares of Common Stock, it is necessary to amend the certificate of
incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares.  The Board of Directors believes that authorized shares of
Common Stock in the amount of one hundred million are appropriate in light of outstanding obligations to issue
Common Stock and current and anticipated financing needs.  The Company does not have any current specific plans
to raise additional funds in the future, but its business plan makes it likely that it will be required to raise additional
funding.  There are no plans other than as set forth above for the issuance of shares.  There are no plans to seek
shareholder approval for the issuance of additional shares if the number of authorized shares is increased.

The effect of issuing shares to satisfy the above obligations after an increase in the number of authorized shares will
be dilutive to existing shareholders.

The change in par value has no material effect on the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR PROPOSAL 3, APPROVAL OF
AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED SHARES

OF COMPANY COMMON STOCK

PROPOSAL 4: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO AUTHORIZE FLEXIBLE
PREFERRED STOCK

Proposal 4 is an amendment to the articles of incorporation of the Company to authorize flexible Preferred Stock.

Exact language of the Current and Proposed Provision:

The Idaho Articles currently provide:

The total authorized capital stock of this corporation shall be...ten million (10,000,000) of one dollar ($1.00) par value
noncumulative, nonvoting, nonconvertible, preferred shares.
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If the amendment is approved, the Idaho Articles will be amended to provide:

The total authorized capital stock of this corporation shall be...ten million (10,000,000) of par value $.001.

Further, the following language would be added to the Idaho Articles immediately after the amended language above.

Designations, Powers, Preferences and Rights, in Respect of the Shares of Preferred Stock.
(1) Shares of the Preferred Stock may be issued in one or more series at such time

or times and for such consideration or considerations as the Board of Directors
may determine.  All shares of any one series shall be of equal rank and identical
in all respects.

(2) Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors to fix from time
to time, by resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of any series of
Preferred Stock, the designation of such series, and the powers, preferences and
rights of the shares of such series, and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions thereof, including the following:

(a) The distinctive designation and number of shares comprising such series,
which number may (except where otherwise provided by the Board of
Directors in creating such series) be increased or decreased (but not below the
number of shares then outstanding) from time to time by like action of the
Board of Directors;

(b)The dividend rate or rates on the shares of such series and the preferences, if
any, over any other series (or of any other series over such series) with respect
to dividends, the terms and conditions upon which and the periods in respect of
which dividends shall be payable, whether and upon what conditions such
dividends shall be cumulative and, if cumulative, the date or dates from which
dividends shall accumulate;
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(c)Whether or not the shares of such series shall be redeemable, the limitations
and restrictions with respect to such redemptions, the time or times when, the
price or prices at which and the manner in which such shares shall be
redeemable, including the manner of selecting shares of such series for
redemption if less than all shares are to be redeemed;

(d)The rights to which the holders of shares and such series shall be entitled, and
the preferences, if any, over any other series (or of any other series over such
series), upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution
of assets or winding-up of the Corporation, which rights may vary depending
on whether such liquidation, dissolution, distribution or winding-up is
voluntary or involuntary, and, if voluntary, may vary at different dates;

(e)Whether or not the shares of such series shall be subject to the operation of a
purchase, retirement or sinking fund, and, if so, whether and upon what
conditions such purchase, retirement or sinking fund shall be cumulative or
noncumulative, the extent to which and the manner in which such fund shall be
applied to the purchase or redemption of the shares of such series for
retirement or to other corporate purposes and the terms and provisions relative
to the operation thereof;

(f) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible into or
exchangeable for shares of stock of any other class or classes, or any other
series of the same class and, if so convertible or exchangeable, the price or
prices or the rate or rates of conversion or exchange and the method, if any, of
adjusting the same, and any other terms and conditions of such conversion or
exchange;

(g)The voting powers, full and/or limited, if any, of the shares of such series; and
whether or not and under what conditions the shares of such series (alone or
together with the shares of one or more other series having similar provisions)
shall be entitled to vote separately as a single class, for the election of one or
more additional directors of the Corporation in case of dividend arrearages or
other specified events, or upon other matters;

(h)Whether or not the issuance of any additional shares of such series, or of any
shares of any other series, shall be subject to restrictions as to issuance, or as to
the powers, preferences or rights of any such other series;
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(i)Whether or not the holders of shares of such series shall be entitled, as a matter
of right, to subscribe for or purchase any part of any new or additional issue of
stock of any class or of securities convertible into stock of any class and, if so
entitled, the qualifications, conditions, limitations and restrictions of such right;
and

(j)Any other preferences, privileges and powers, and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions of
such series, as the Board of Directors may deem advisable and as shall not be
inconsistent with the provisions of th ese Articles of Incorporation.
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Consequences of Shareholder Vote

If Proposal 4 is not approved, the current provisions relating to Preferred Stock will not be changed.

Proposal 4 is not dependent on the vote with respect to any other proposal.

If Proposal 6, the Reincorporation Proposal is approved and implemented, the provisions on the Delaware Certificate
relating to Preferred Stock will depend on whether Proposal 4 is approved.  If Proposal 4 is approved, the Delaware
Certificate will contain provisions substantially the same as to the provisions in Proposal 4.  If Proposal 4 is not
approved, the terms of the Preferred Stock of the Atlas Delaware will be substantially the same as the Company’s
current provision.

Reason for the Recommended Change

In the current Idaho Articles, the shares of Preferred Stock are designated “noncumulative nonvoting nonconvertible
preferred” shares.  Under Idaho law and the Idaho Articles, the Board of Directors does not have power to fix any terms
of the Preferred other than that the shares are “noncumulative nonvoting nonconvertible preferred,” so any Preferred
Stock that might be issued could have no economic terms.  For example, the Preferred could have no terms relating to
a dividend or liquidation rights.  In effect, the Preferred Stock is useless for most purposes for which the Company
would issue Preferred Stock.

It is proposed to make the Preferred Stock “flexible preferred.”  The designations as “noncumulative nonvoting
nonconvertible” would be eliminated and the Preferred Stock could be issued by the Board of Directors from time to
time on any number of occasions, without stockholder approval, as one or more separate series of shares comprised of
any number of the authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock, designated by resolution of the Board of
Directors, stating the name and number of shares of each series and setting forth separately for such series the relative
rights, privileges and preferences thereof, including, if any, the: (i) rate of dividends payable thereon; (ii) price, terms
and conditions of redemption; (iii) voluntary and involuntary liquidation preferences; (iv) provisions of a sinking fund
for redemption or repurchase; (v) terms of conversion to Common Stock, including conversion price; and (vi) voting
rights.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors would have increased flexibility in taking prompt advantage of future potential
acquisition and equity financing transactions without the expense and delay of calling meetings of the stockholders to
authorize increases in authorized capital.

The Preferred Stock could be issued under circumstances and in a manner so that the effects could include the dilution
of ownership interests of the holders of Common Stock in the Company, the continuation of the current management
of the Company, prevention of mergers with or business combinations by the Company and the discouragement of
possible tender offers for shares of Common Stock.  If convertible into Common Stock, on the conversion into
Company Common Stock the voting power and percentage ownership of holders of the Company’s Common Stock
would be diluted and such issuances could have an adverse effect on the market price of the Company’s Common
Stock.  The Preferred Stock could also be used in connection with the implementation by the Board of Directors of a
shareholder rights plan, sometimes referred to as a “poison pill.”  For example, a class or series of the Preferred Stock
could be designated that would be convertible into Company Common Stock upon the acquisition by a third party of a
specified percentage of the Company’s voting stock.
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Additionally, the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock with certain rights, preferences and privileges senior to those
held by the Company’s Common Stock could diminish the rights of holders of Company Common Stock to receive
dividends if declared by the Board and to receive payments upon the liquidation of the Company.  If shares of
Preferred Stock are issued, approval by holders of such shares, voting as a separate class, could be required prior to
certain mergers with or business combinations by the Company.

These factors could discourage attempts to purchase control of the Company even if such change in control may be
beneficial to holders of Common Stock.  Moreover, the issuance of Preferred Stock having general voting rights
together with the Common Stock to persons friendly to the Board could make it more difficult to remove incumbent
management and directors from office even if such changes would be favorable to shareholders generally.  If shares of
Preferred Stock are issued with conversion rights, the attractiveness of the Company to a potential tender offeror for
the Common Stock may be diminished.  The purchase of the additional shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock
necessary to gain control of the Company may increase the cost to a potential tender offeror and prevent the tender
offer from being made even though such offer may have been desirable to many of the Common Stockholders.  The
ability of the Board, without any additional shareholder approval, to issue shares of the Company Preferred Stock with
such rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions as determined by the Board could be employed as an antitakeover
device.

The proposal for the authorization of flexible Preferred Stock does not reflect knowledge on the part of the Board of
Directors or management of any proposed takeover or other attempt to acquire control of the Company.  Management
may in the future propose other measures designed to address hostile takeovers apart from those proposed in this
Proxy Statement, if warranted from time to time in the judgment of the Board of Directors.

The Board believes that the financial flexibility offered by flexible Preferred Stock outweighs any of its
disadvantages.  To the extent issuance of flexible Preferred Stock may have antitakeover effects, such issued Preferred
Stock may encourage persons seeking to acquire the Company to negotiate directly with the Board, enabling the
Board to consider the proposed transaction and other strategic alternatives with adequate time and flexibility in order
to discharge effectively its obligation to act on the proposed transaction in a manner that best serves all the
shareholders’ interests.  It is also the Board’s view that the existence of flexible Preferred Stock should not discourage
anyone from proposing a merger or other transaction at a price reflective of the true value of the Company and which
is in the best interests of its shareholders.

There are no present plans, understandings or agreements for, and the Company is not engaged in any negotiations
that will involve, the issuance of flexible Preferred Stock.  There are no plans to seek shareholder approval for the
issuance of shares if the number of authorized shares is increased.

                 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE PROPOSAL 4,
APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO AUTHORIZE FLEXIBLE PREFERRED
STOCK

PROPOSAL 5: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO PROVIDE THAT THE
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS IS TO BE FIXED FROM TIME TO TIME BY RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO A RESOLUTION.

Proposal 5 is an amendment to the articles of incorporation of the Company to provide that the number of directors is
to be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution.

Exact language of the Current and Proposed Provision:
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The certificate of incorporation currently provides:

The number of directors shall be five.
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If the amendment is approved, the certificate of incorporation will be amended to provide:

The number of directors shall be fixed from time to time solely by resolution of the Board of Directors, acting by not
less than a majority of the directors then in office.

Consequences of Shareholder Vote

If Proposal 5 is not approved, the current provision fixing the number of directors at five will remain unchanged.

Proposal 5 is not dependent on the vote with respect to any other proposal.

If Proposal 6, reincorporation in Delaware is approved and implemented, the provision in the Delaware certificate
relating to the number of directors will depend on whether Proposal 5 is approved.  If Proposal 5 is approved, the
Delaware Certificate will contain a provision substantially the same as the language of Proposal 5.  If it is not
approved, the Delaware Certificate will contain a provision substantially the same as the current provision fixing the
number at five.

Reason for the Recommended Change

The current provision fixes the number of directors at five.  It does not allow the directors to increase the number of
directors or decrease the number of directors.  Under Idaho law, a vacancy in the Board of Directors does not impair
the ability of the remaining board members to act as a board, although under Idaho law, if the number of directors is
fixed in the bylaws, a quorum is a majority of such number.  If the number is not fixed, a quorum is a majority of the
directors then in office.

The Board of Directors believes that it would be a better practice to allow the directors to set the number of directors
from time to time, expanding the size of the board if appropriate to bring on directors with knowledge and experience
that could be useful to the Company and decreasing the size of the board as necessary on the creating of vacancies that
will not soon be filled, thereby avoiding situations in which a quorum constitutes more than a simple majority of the
directors then in office.

If Proposal 5 is approved, the Board of Directors currently intends to adopt a resolution fixing the number of directors
at five .

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE PROPOSAL 5, APPROVAL OF AN
AMENDMENT TO THE IDAHO ARTICLES TO PROVIDE THAT THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORS IS TO BE
FIXED FROM TIME TO TIME BY RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO A

RESOLUTION.

PROPOSAL 6: REINCORPORATION IN DELAWARE.
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Proposal 6 is the merger of the Company with and into our wholly-owned subsidiary, Atlas Delaware, which was
created for the merger.  The purpose of the merger is to change our state of incorporation from Idaho to Delaware.

Consequences of Shareholder Vote

If Proposal 6 is approved and implemented, the terms of the certificate of incorporation for the Delaware corporation
will depend on which if any of Proposals 2 through 5 which are approved.

If Proposal 6 is not approved, the Company will remain an Idaho corporation.

Proposal 6 is not dependent on the vote with respect to any other proposal, except as set forth above.

The address and telephone of principal executive offices of Atlas Delaware will be the same as the Company’s.
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At the effective time of the merger, the Company would file with the Delaware Secretary of State a certificate of
incorporation that would govern the Company as a Delaware corporation, in substantially the form attached, with
variations indicating alternative provisions as any or all proposals 2, 3, 4, and 5 are approved.

In addition, if Proposal 6 is approved, the bylaws of Atlas Delaware, the surviving Delaware corporation, will be in
substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix C (the “Delaware Bylaws”).

Copies of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended to date (the “Idaho Articles”), and the Bylaws of
the Company, as amended to date (the “Idaho Bylaws”), are filed as Exhibits to our periodic reports with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission and are also available for inspection at the principal office of the
Company.  The Idaho Articles were filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 4 to Form SB-2 filed with the Commission
on June 11, 2002.  The Idaho Bylaws were filed as Exhibit 3(ii)1 to F or m 8-K file d on April 1, 2008.  Copies will be
sent to shareholders free of charge upon written request to the Company at 110 Greene Street, Suite 1101, New York,
NY 10012.

Atlas Delaware was incorporated under Delaware law for purposes of this transaction , under the name of Atlas
Mining Sub, Inc., as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.  As of the date and time immediately prior to the
effective date of the reincorporation merger, if the reincorporation merger is effected, Atlas Delaware will not have
any material assets or liabilities and will not have carried on any material business.

Management believes that reincorporation in Delaware is beneficial to the Company because Delaware corporate law
is more comprehensive, widely used and extensively interpreted than other state corporate laws, including Idaho
corporate law.

The Reincorporation Merger
The reincorporation merger would be effected pursuant to the Merger Agreement in substantially the form attached as
Appendix A.

Upon completion of the reincorporation merger, the Company would cease to exist as a corporate entity and Atlas
Delaware would continue to operate the business of the Company.  The discussion of the reincorporation merger set
forth below is qualified in its entirety by reference to the attached Merger Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of Common Stock, no par value per share, of Atlas Mining
Company would be converted automatically into one share of Common Stock of Atlas Delaware upon the effective
date of the reincorporation merger.  The par value of the Common Stock would be no par value if Proposal 2 is not
approved and $.001 par value if Proposal 3 is approved.  Each stock certificate representing issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock of Atlas would continue to represent the same number of shares of Common Stock of Atlas
Delaware.  If the Company and Atlas Delaware effect the reincorporation merger, stockholders of the Company would
not need to exchange such shareholder’s existing stock certificates of the Company for stock certificates of Atlas
Delaware.  Stockholders may, however, exchange such shareholder’s certificates if they choose to do so.  Assuming
that the Company and Atlas Delaware effect the reincorporation merger, Atlas Delaware may decide to issue
substitute stock certificates in the future to replace the current certificates that are outstanding.  If Atlas Delaware were
to decide to issue substitute stock certificates, Atlas Delaware would notify its stockholders.
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Company and Atlas Delaware agree to take all actions that Delaware law and
Idaho law require for the Company and Atlas Delaware to effect the reincorporation merger.
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The Merger Agreement provides that the respective obligations of the Company and Atlas Delaware under the Merger
Agreement are subject to the following conditions:

·  The stockholders of the Company have approved, the Merger Agreement;

·  Notices of the shareholder’s intent to demand payment if the proposed action is
effectuated have not been delivered with respect to more than 0.5% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock; and

·  No court or governmental authority, whether by statute, rule, regulation,
executive order, decree, ruling, injunction or other order, has prohibited,
restrained, enjoined or restricted the consummation of the reincorporation
merger.

If the Company and Atlas Delaware effect the reincorporation merger, (i) all employee benefit plans of the Company
would be continued by Atlas Delaware, (ii) each stock option issued and outstanding whether pursuant to such plans
or otherwise would be converted automatically into a stock option with respect to the same number of shares of
Common Stock of Atlas Delaware, upon the same terms and subject to the same conditions as set forth in the
applicable plan under which the award was granted and in the agreement reflecting the award, and (iii) each PIK Note
would be assumed and the conversion rights would be converted automatically conversion rights with respect to the
same number of shares of Common Stock of Atlas Delaware, upon the same terms and subject to the same conditions
as set forth in the PIK Notes.

If the stockholders of the Company approve the reincorporation merger, the Company and Atlas Delaware plan to
effect the reincorporation merger as soon as practicable after the 2009 Annual Meeting.

The Merger Agreement provides that the Board of Directors of either the Company or Atlas Delaware may abandon
the reincorporation merger for any reason, notwithstanding shareholder approval.

If the stockholders do not approve the reincorporation merger, the Company and Atlas Delaware would not
consummate the merger and the Company would continue to operate as an Idaho corporation.
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Under Idaho law, stockholders of the Company may have appraisal rights with respect to the reincorporation
proposal.  See Dissenters or Appraisal Rights below.

Vote Required for the Reincorporation Proposal
Idaho law requires that the votes cast “for” must exceed the votes cast “against” to approve the Merger
Agreement.  Abstentions and broker non votes will not be counted.  A vote in favor of the reincorporation proposal is
a vote to approve the Merger Agreement and therefore the reincorporation merger.  A vote in favor of the
reincorporation proposal is also effectively a vote in favor of the Certificate of Incorporation of Atlas Delaware as set
forth in Appendix B, subject as to alternative provisions as to whether any or all of proposals 2, 3, 4, or 5 are
approved, and the Bylaws of Atlas Delaware, as set forth in Appendix C.

Principal Reasons for the Reincorporation Proposal
The Company was originally incorporated in Idaho on March 1 , 1925.  The laws of Idaho were apparently suitable
for the Company’s operations at the time.

The Board of Directors has determined that the legal structures of, and case law construing, Delaware law would
better suit the current needs of the Company and its stockholders than Idaho law does.  In particular, in the opinion of
the Board of Directors,

·  More so than most states, including Idaho, Delaware has established progressive
principles of corporate governance that the Company could draw upon when
making business and legal decisions;

·  Delaware provides a more appropriate and flexible corporate and legal
environment in which to operate than currently exists in the State of Idaho and
that the Company and its stockholders would benefit from such an environment;
and
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·  The well-established body of case law construing Delaware law, which has
developed over the last century, provides businesses with a greater degree of
predictability than Idaho provides.

Additionally, management believes that, as a Delaware corporation, the Company would be better able to continue to
attract and retain qualified directors and officers than it would be able to as an Idaho corporation, in part, because
Delaware law provides more predictability with respect to the issues of what constitutes an actionable breach of
fiduciary duties and the liability of directors and officers than Idaho law does. The increasing frequency of claims
against directors and officers that are litigated has greatly expanded the risks to directors and officers of exercising
their respective duties.  The amount of time and money required to respond to and litigate such claims can be
substantial. Although Idaho law and Delaware law both permit a corporation to include a provision in the corporation’s
articles of incorporation or certificate, as the case may be, that in certain circumstances reduces or limits the monetary
liability of directors for breaches of fiduciary duty of care, Delaware law, as stated above, provides to directors and
officers more predictability than Idaho does and, therefore, provides directors and officers of a Delaware corporation a
greater degree of comfort as to such director’s  risk of liability than that afforded under Idaho law.

Antitakeover Implications
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The Company is subject to the Idaho Control Share Acquisition Law, which is designed to protect minority
shareholders in the event that a person acquires or proposes to acquire, directly or indirectly, by tender offer or
otherwise, shares giving it at least 20%, at least 33 1/3% or more than 50% of the voting power in the election of
directors.  This law applies to a publicly held Idaho corporation which has at least 50 shareholders unless a provision
in the corporation's bylaws or articles, adopted in accordance with this law, makes an express election not to be
subject to this law. We do not have any such provisions in our articles or bylaws.

Under the Idaho Control Share Acquisition Law, an acquiring person is required to deliver to the corporation an
information statement disclosing, among other things, the identity of the person, the terms of the acquisition or
proposed acquisition, and the financing of this acquisition.  An acquiring person cannot vote those shares acquired in a
control share acquisition that exceed one of the cited thresholds unless a resolution approved by 66 2/3% of the voting
power of all shares entitled to vote thereon, excluding shares held by the acquirer or an officer or director, approves of
such voting power.  At the request of the acquiring person, such a resolution must be put forth before shareholders at a
special meeting held within 55 days after receipt of the information statement, provided that the acquiring person
undertakes to pay the costs of the special meeting and delivers to the corporation copies of definitive financing
agreements with responsible entities for any required financing of the acquisition.  If an information statement has not
been delivered to the corporation by the 10th day after the acquirer obtains shares in excess of one of the above
thresholds, or the shareholders of the corporation have voted not to accord voting rights to the acquirer's shares, the
corporation may redeem all, but not less than all, of the acquirer's shares at fair market value.  Shares that are not
accorded voting rights pursuant to this law regain their voting rights when acquired by another person in an
acquisition that is not subject to this law.

The Company is also subject to the Idaho Business Combination Act, which prohibits a publicly held corporation
from engaging in certain business combinations with an “interested shareholder” for a period of three years after the date
of the transaction in which the person became an interested shareholder unless, among other things, (i) the
corporation's articles of incorporation or bylaws include a provision, adopted in accordance with this law, that
expressly provides that the corporation is not subject to the statute (we do not have any such provisions in our articles
or bylaws), or (ii) a committee of the corporation's Board of Directors approves of the business combination or the
acquisition of the shares before the date such shares were acquired.  After the three year moratorium period, the
corporation may not consummate a business combination unless, among other things, it is approved by the affirmative
vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares, other than those beneficially owned by the
interested shareholder or an affiliate or associate thereof, entitled to vote or the business combination meets certain
minimum price and form of payment requirements.  An interested shareholder is defined to include, with certain
exceptions, any person who is the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the outstanding voting
shares of the corporation.  Business combinations subject to this law include certain mergers, consolidations,
recapitalizations, and reverse share splits.
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The application of the Idaho Control Share Acquisition Law and the Idaho Business Combination Law may have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of the Company.

The Delaware General Corporation Law (“ GCL ”) has a provision called “Business Combinations with Interested
Stockholders Act.”  The Delaware provision is not applicable to corporations with less than 2,000 record stockholders,
unless the corporation elects to be covered.  Atlas Delaware has only about 1,560 record stockholders.  Atlas
Delaware has elected to be governed by the Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders Act.  The Delaware
GCL has no provision similar to the Idaho’s Control Share Acquisition Act.
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The Delaware Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders Act generally operates to prevent a wide variety of
transactions between the corporation, on one hand, and an “interested shareholder” and its affiliates, on the other
hand.  It generally prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an”
interested stockholder” for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an
interested stockholder, unless (i) prior to such date the Board of Directors of the corporation approved either the
business combination or the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, (ii) upon
consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested
stockholder owns at least 85% of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation excluding shares owned by officers
or directors of the corporation and by certain employee stock plans, or (iii) on or after such date the business
combination is approved by the Board of Directors of the corporation and by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3%
of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation that is not owned by the interested stockholder.  A “business
combination” generally includes mergers, asset sales and similar transactions between the corporation and the
interested stockholder, and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the stockholder.  An “interested
stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns 15% or more of the corporation’s voting
stock or who is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and, together with his affiliates and associates, has owned
15% or more of the corporation’s voting stock within three years.

Accordingly, the Delaware Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders Act can serve to provide Atlas
Delaware with significantly more protections against unwanted takeovers than the Company has.  The Board of
Directors of the Company, however, is not proposing the reincorporation in order to prevent any known or suspected
change in control of the Company and is not aware of any present attempt by any person to acquire control of the
Company or to obtain representation on the Company’s Board of Directors.

No Change in the Board Members, Business, Management, or Employee Benefit Plans
The reincorporation proposal would affect only a change in the legal domicile of the Company and certain other
changes of a legal nature, the most significant of which are described in this proxy statement.  The proposed
reincorporation merger would NOT result in any change in the business, management, fiscal year, assets or liabilities,
or employee benefit plans.  Assuming that the Company and Atlas Delaware effect the reincorporation merger, the
directors and officers of the Company immediately prior to the effective date of the reincorporation merger will
continue to be the directors and officers of Atlas Delaware.  All stock options and convertible securities issued and
outstanding would automatically be converted into a stock option or convertible securities with respect to the same
number of shares of Atlas Delaware, upon the same terms and subject to the same conditions under which the award
was granted and in the agreement reflecting the award.  Approval of the reincorporation proposal would constitute
approval of the assumption of these plans by Atlas Delaware.  Assuming the Company and Atlas Delaware effect the
reincorporation merger, Atlas Delaware would continue other employee benefit arrangements of the Company upon
the terms and subject to the conditions currently in effect.

Comparison of Shareholder Rights Before and After the Reincorporation Merger

There are significant differences between the rights of our stockholders under,

·  on one hand, the Delaware General Corporation Law (“Delaware GCL”), the
Delaware Certificate of Incorporation (“Delaware Certificate”) and the Bylaws of
the Delaware company (“Delaware Bylaws”) (collectively, such rights, the
“Delaware Rights”); and,
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·  on the other hand, the Idaho Business Corporation Act (the “Idaho BCA”) and
Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation (“Idaho Articles”) and the current
Bylaws (“Idaho Bylaws”) (collectively, such rights, the “Idaho Rights”).

Set forth below is a description that summarizes some significant differences in the Delaware Rights and the Idaho
Rights.

The summary of the differences is significant because if the stockholders of the Company approve the reincorporation
proposal and the reincorporation merger becomes effective, the Delaware Certificate and the Delaware Bylaws in
effect immediately prior to the effective date of the reincorporation merger would become the certificate of
incorporation and bylaws of Atlas Delaware.  The Delaware Certificate with possible variations (depending on which,
if any, of Proposals 2, 3, 4, or 5 are adopted) is attached as Appendix B.  The Delaware Bylaws are attached as
Appendix C.  All statements in this proxy statement concerning such documents are qualified by reference to the
complete provisions of the documents.

In addition to the differences described below, the Delaware Certificate and the Delaware Bylaws include certain
technical differences from the Idaho Articles and Idaho Bylaws that constitute, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, insignificant differences between Delaware law and Idaho law.

The description below is not intended to be relied upon as a complete description of the differences, and is qualified in
its entirety by reference to Idaho BCA, Delaware GCL, the Idaho Articles and Idaho Bylaws, and the Delaware
Certificate and Delaware Bylaws.

The discussion below discusses the Idaho Rights as they currently exist and the Delaware Rights as they would exist if
the reincorporation merger is approved.  The discussion does not refer to such rights as they could be amended by
amendments to, on one hand, the Delaware Certificate or Delaware Bylaws or, on the other hand, the Idaho Articles or
Idaho Bylaws or by other factors not in existence or contemplated by the Board of Directors.  Such amendments could
include, among other things, a classified Board of Directors, cumulative voting, or changes from, or back to, default
rules in the statute.  Other factors not in existence or contemplated include the issuance of Preferred Stock.  None of
such amendments or other factors is currently contemplated by the Board of Directors.
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Idaho Rights Delaware Rights
References below are to the
Idaho Articles of Incorporation,
the Bylaws of the Company,
and the Idaho Business
Corporation Act.

References below are to the
Delaware Certificate of
Incorporation and the Bylaws of
Delaware, and the Delaware
General Corporation Law.

ISSUES RELATING TO DIRECTORS
Number of directors The number is fixed at five.

(Article VI of the Idaho
Articles)

The Delaware rights will depend
on whether Proposal 5 is
approved.

If Proposal 5 is approved, the
number can be fixed from time
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to time solely by resolution of
the Board of Directors, acting by
not less than a majority of the
directors then in office.

If Proposal 5 is not approved, the
number will remain fixed at five.

If Proposal 5 is approved, the
Board of Directors currently
intends to adopt a resolution
fixing the number of directors at
f ive .

Quorum for a
meeting of the Board
of Directors

Three.

(Based on Section
30-1-825(1)(a) of the Idaho
BCA)

1/3 of total number.

(Article II, Section 7 of the
Delaware By-Laws)

Vote Required for
removal of a director
by shareholders

The number of votes cast to
remove the director exceeds the
number of votes cast not to
remove

(Section 30-1-725(3) of the
Idaho BCA)

A majority in voting power of
outstanding shares

(Section 141(j) of the Delaware
GCL)

Personal liability of
directors for
monetary damages

The Idaho Articles provide:

“A director shall not be held
liable to the company or its
shareholders for monetary
damages for any action taken or
any failure to take any action as
a director except to the
minimum degree required
under Idaho law as it now
exists or hereafter may be
amended.”

(Article VII of the Idaho
Articles)

The articles provide, in
accordance with Section
102(b)(7) of the Delaware GCL,
that

A director shall have no personal
liability to the corporation or its
stockholders for monetary
damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director, provided that
such provision shall not
eliminate or limit the liability of
a director:

(i) For any breach of the
director's duty of loyalty to the
corporation or its stockholders;
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Personal liability of
directors for
monetary damages
(continued)

Based on the timing of the
adoption of this provision, it is
appears intended to implement
Section 30-1-202(d) of the
Idaho BCA which permits the
articles to be amended to
eliminate monetary damages
under certain circumstances.

A provision eliminating or
limiting the liability of a
director to the corporation or its
shareholders for money
damages for any action taken,
or any failure to take any
action, as a director, except
liability for:
(i)   The amount of a financial
benefit received by a director to
which he is not entitled,
(ii)  An intentional infliction of
harm on the corporation or the
shareholders,
(iii) For unlawful dividends,
stock purchases, or
redemptions, or
(iv)  An intentional violation of
criminal law.

(ii) for acts or omissions not in
good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of law;

(iii) for unlawful dividends,
stock purchases, or redemptions;
or

(iv) for any transaction from
which the director derived an
improper personal benefit.

(Article Fifth, Section 6 of the
Delaware Certificate)

SHAREHOLDER ACTIONS ISSUES
Shareholder vote
required to amend
articles/certificate

The votes cast favoring the
amendment exceed the votes
cast opposing the amendment,
unless the Board of Directors
conditions approval of the
amendment on a higher
percentage

(Section 30-1-725(3) of the
Idaho BCA)

A majority of the outstanding
stock entitled to vote

(Section 242(b)(1) of the
Delaware GCL)

Shareholder vote
required to amend
bylaws

The votes cast favoring the
amendment exceed the votes
cast opposing the amendment.

(Section 30-1-725(3) of the
Idaho BCA)

Affirmative vote of the majority
of shares present in person or
represented by proxy at the
meeting and entitled to vote on
the subject matter.
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(Section 216(3) of the Delaware
GCL)
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An asset sale that
requires shareholder
approval

If the disposition would leave
the corporation without a
significant continuing
business activity. If a
corporation retains a business
activity that represented at
least twenty-five percent
(25%) of total assets at the end
of the most recently
completed fiscal year, and
twenty-five percent (25%) of
either income from continuing
operations before taxes or
revenues from continuing
operations for that fiscal year,
in each case of the corporation
and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis, the
corporation will conclusively
be deemed to have retained a
significant continuing
business activity.

(Section 30-1-1202(2)) of the
Idaho BCA)

The sale of all or substantially
all of the assets.

(Section 271(a) of the Delaware
GCL)

Shareholder vote
required to approve
merger, share
exchange, or asset
sale that requires
shareholder approval

A majority of the votes
entitled to be cast, unless the
board conditions approval on
a higher percentage

(Section 30-1-725(3) of the
Idaho BCA)

A majority of the outstanding
stock entitled to vote

(Section 251(c) of the Delaware
GCL)

Exceptions to the
requirement for
shareholder approval
of mergers

Approval by shareholders of a
subsidiary is not required in
“short-form mergers” (where
parent owns 90% or more of
the voting securities of the
subsidiary)

1.  Short-form mergers (where
parent owns 90% or more of the
voting securities)

(Section 253(a) of the Delaware
GCL)

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

44



(Section 30-1-725(3) of the
Idaho BCA) 2.  No vote required by

shareholders in a merger if (a)
the merger agreement does not
amend the existing certificate of
incorporation, (b) each share of
the stock of outstanding
immediately before the effective
date of the merger is an identical
outstanding or treasury share
after the merger, and (c) either
no shares of Common Stock and
no shares, securities or
obligations convertible into such
stock are to be issued or
delivered under the plan of
merger, or the authorized and
unissued shares or the treasury
shares of Common Stock to be
issued or delivered under the
plan of merger plus those
initially issuable upon
conversion of any other shares,
securities or obligations to be
issued or delivered under such
plan do not exceed 20% of the
shares of Common Stock of such
constituent corporation
outstanding immediately prior to
the effective date of the merger.

(Section 251(f) of the Delaware
GCL)
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Whether action of
shareholders by
written consent is
permitted

Permissible only if all
shareholders consent

(Section 30-1-704 of the Idaho
BCA)

Prohibited by Delaware
Certificate

(Article Fifth, Section 7 of the
Delaware Certificate)

Terms of the
advance notice

Advance notice bylaws are contained in the Idaho Bylaws and
the Delaware Bylaws.
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bylaws
There are three major bases for comparing the Bylaws:  the
timing of shareholder notice, the content of the notice, and
information to be provided by a person nominated as a director
by a shareholder.

1. Timing of the shareholder’s
notice

In order to be timely, a
shareholder’s notice shall be
delivered not later than the
close of business on the 90th
day prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding
year’s annual meeting; however,
that in the event that the date of
the annual meeting is more than
30 days before or more than 60
days after such anniversary
date, notice must be delivered
not later than the close of
business on the later of the 90th
day prior to such annual
meeting or the 10th day
following the day on which
public announcement of the
date of such meeting is first
made.

1. Timing of the shareholder’s
notice

In order to be timely, a
shareholder’s notice shall be
delivered not later than the close
of business on the 90th day prior
to the first anniversary of the
preceding year’s annual meeting;
however, that in the event that
the date of the annual meeting is
more than 30 days before or
more than 60 days after such
anniversary date, notice must be
delivered not later than the close
of business on the later of the
90th day prior to such annual
meeting or the 10th day
following the day on which
public announcement of the date
of such meeting is first made.

2.  Content of the Shareholder
Notice

Such shareholder’s notice shall
set forth (A) as to each person
whom the shareholder proposes
to nominate for election or
reelection as a director all
information relating to such
person that is required to be
disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for election of directors
in an election contest, or is
otherwise required, in each case
pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), (including such
person’s written

2.  Content of the Shareholder
Notice

The Delaware Bylaws require
that the notice that includes the
same information as required by
the Idaho Bylaws and also the
following information that is not
required by the Idaho Bylaws:

(e) a description of any
agreement, arrangement or
understanding with respect to
such business between or among
the Proponent and any of its
affiliates or associates, and any
others (including such
shareholder’s names) acting in
concert with any of the
foregoing, and a
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Terms of the
advance notice
bylaws (continued)

2.  Content of the Shareholder
Notice
     (Continued)

consent to being named in the
proxy statement as a nominee
and to serving as a director if
elected); (B) as to any other
business that the shareholder
proposes to bring before the
meeting, a brief description of
the business desired to be
brought before the meeting,
the reasons for conducting
such business at the meeting
and any material interest in
such business of such
shareholder and the beneficial
owner, if any, on whose behalf
the proposal is made; and
(C) as to the shareholder
giving the notice and the
beneficial owner, if any, on
whose behalf the nomination
or proposal is made (i) the
name and address of such
shareholder, as they appear on
the Corporation’s books, and of
such beneficial owner and
(ii) the class and number of
shares of the Corporation
which are owned beneficially
and of record by such
shareholder and such
beneficial owner.

2.  Content of the Shareholder
Notice
     (Continued)

representation that the Proponent
will notify the Corporation in
writing of any such agreement,
arrangement or understanding in
effect as of the record date for
the meeting promptly following
the later of the record date or the
date notice of the record date is
first publicly disclosed, (f) a
description of any agreement,
arrangement or understanding
(including any derivative or
short positions, profit interests,
options, hedging transactions,
and borrowed or loaned shares)
that has been entered into as of
the date of the Proponent's
notice by, or on behalf of, the
Proponent or any of its affiliates
or associates, the effect or intent
of which is to mitigate loss to,
manage risk or benefit of share
price changes for, or increase or
decrease the voting power of the
Proponent or any of its affiliates
or associates with respect to
shares of stock of the
Corporation, and a
representation that the Proponent
will notify the Corporation in
writing of any such agreement,
arrangement or understanding in
effect as of the record date for
the meeting promptly following
the later of the record date or the
date notice of the record date is
first publicly disclosed, (g) a
representation that the Proponent
is a holder of record or
beneficial owner of shares of the
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Corporation entitled to vote at
the annual meeting and intends
to appear in person or by proxy
at the meeting to propose such
business, and (h) a
representation whether the
Proponent intends to deliver a
proxy statement and/or form of
proxy to holders of at least the
percentage of the Corporation's
outstanding shares required to
approve the proposal and/or
otherwise to solicit proxies from
stockholders in support of the
proposal.
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Terms of the
advance notice
bylaws (continued)

3.  Information to be provided
as a nominee.

No provision

(Section 2.4(a)(2) of the Idaho
Bylaws)

3.  Information to be provided as
a nominee.

To be eligible to be a nominee
for election or reelection as a
director of the Corporation, a
person must deliver  . . . a
written questionnaire with
respect to the background and
qualification of such person and
the background of any other
person or entity on whose behalf
the nomination is being made
(which questionnaire shall be
provided by the Secretary upon
written request) and a written
representation and agreement (in
the form provided by the
Secretary upon written request)
that such person (i) is not and
will not become a party to (A)
any agreement, arrangement or
understanding with, and has not
given any commitment or
assurance to, any person or
entity as to how such person, if
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elected as a director of the
Corporation, will act or vote on
any issue or question (a "Voting
Commitment") that has not been
disclosed to the Corporation or
(B) any Voting Commitment
that could limit or interfere with
such person's ability to comply,
if elected as a director of the
Corporation, with such person's
fiduciary duties under applicable
law, (ii) is not and will not
become a party to any
agreement, arrangement or
understanding with any person
or entity other than the
Corporation with respect to any
direct or indirect compensation,
reimbursement or
indemnification in connection
with service or action as a
director that has not been
disclosed therein, and (iii) in
such person's individual capacity
and on behalf of any person or
entity on whose behalf the
nomination is being made,
would be in compliance, if
elected as a director of the
Corporation, and will comply
with, applicable law and all
applicable publicly disclosed
corporate governance, conflict of
interest, corporate opportunities,
confidentiality and stock
ownership and trading policies
and guidelines of the
Corporation.

Article I, (Section 13 of the
Delaware Bylaws)
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APPRAISAL RIGHTS
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Exceptions
to Appraisal
Rights

Idaho law provides appraisal rights in certain situation in
which Delaware law does not provide appraisal rights.

Idaho law provides:

No appraisal rights are available for the holders of shares of
any class or series of shares which are:

(i) Listed on the New York stock exchange or the American
stock exchange or designated as a national market system
security on an interdealer quotation system by the national
association of securities dealers, inc.; or
(ii)  Not so listed or designated, but have at least two thousand
(2,000) record and beneficial shareholders and the outstanding
shares of such class or series have a market value of at least
twenty million dollars ($20,000,000), exclusive of the value
of such shares held by its subsidiaries, senior executives,
directors and beneficial shareholders owning more than ten
percent (10%) of such shares.

(Section 30-1-1302 of the Idaho BCA)

The Company has more than 2,000 record and beneficial
shareholders and as of the date of this proxy statement, the
market value of its shares exclusive of the value of such
shares held by its subsidiaries, senior executives, directors and
beneficial shareholders owning more than ten percent (10%)
of such shares exceeds $20 million.

No appraisal rights are available for the
holders of any class of shares

(1)where the shares are:

(i) listed on a national securities exchange
or

(ii) held of record by more than 2,000
record holders.

(The Company’s shares are not held of
record of 2,000 shareholders.0

(2) for any shares of stock of the
constituent corporation surviving a merger
if the merger did not require for its
approval the vote of the stockholders of
the surviving corporation as provided in §
251(f) referred to above.

(3) Notwithstanding (1) and (2) above,
appraisal rights are available for the
shares of a constituent corporation if the
holders thereof are required by the terms
of an agreement to accept for such stock
anything except:
a. Shares of stock of the corporation
surviving or resulting from such merger or
consolidation;
b. Shares of stock of any other
corporation, , which shares of stock at the
effective date of the merger or
consolidation will be either listed on a
national securities exchange or held of
record by more than 2,000 holders;
c. Cash in lieu of fractional shares
described in the foregoing subparagraphs
a. and b. of this paragraph; or
d. Any combination of the shares of stock,
and cash in lieu of fractional shares
described in the foregoing subparagraphs
a., b. and c. of this paragraph.
(Section 262(b) of the Delaware GCL)
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Exceptions to
Appraisal Rights
(continued)

However, the Idaho BCA
provides that foregoing
exceptions to the availability
of dissenters’ rights do not
apply where

Shares or assets of the
corporation are being acquired
or converted, a person, or by
an affiliate of a person, who:

(A)  Is or was within one year
the beneficial owner of twenty
percent or more of the voting
power of the corporation,
excluding any shares acquired
pursuant to an offer for all
shares for consideration of the
same kind and of a value
equal to or less than that paid
in connection with the
corporate action; or

(B)   has, or had within one
year, the power to cause the
appointment or election of
twenty-five percent or more of
the directors to the Board of
Directors of the corporation;
or

(C) who is, or within one year
was, a senior executive or
director of the corporation or a
senior executive of any
affiliate thereof, and that
senior executive or director
will receive, as a result of the
corporate action, a financial
benefit not generally available
to other shareholders as such,
other than:

(i)  Employment, consulting,
retirement or similar benefits
(x) established separately and
not as part of or in
contemplation of the corporate
action; or (y)   that are not
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more favorable than those
existing before the corporate
action or, if more favorable,
that have been approved by
qualified (disinterested)
directors; or
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Exceptions to
Appraisal Rights
(continued)

(D)  In the case of a director of
the corporation who will, in the
corporate action, become a
director of the acquiring entity
or one of its affiliates, rights
and benefits as a director that
are provided on the same basis
as those afforded by the
acquiring entity generally to
other directors of such entity or
such affiliate.

(Section 30-1-1302 of the Idaho
BCA)

As of the date of this proxy
statement David Taft may be
considered the beneficial owner
of in excess of 20% of the
voting power of outstanding
shares.

INDEMNIFICATION
Advancement of
Expenses to Officers
and Directors Before
Final Disposition of
a Proceeding

Advancement of expenses to
pay for or reimburse the
reasonable expenses before
final disposition of a
proceeding is in the discretion
of the Board of Directors

(Section 10.2 of the Bylaws)

If the officer or director delivers
the undertaking required by the
statute, advancement is
mandatory.

(Article V, Section 3 of the
Delaware Bylaws)
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DISSENTERS OR APPRAISAL RIGHTS ARE AVAILABLE UNDER IDAHO BCA FOR THE
REINCORPORATION
Shareholders who follow the procedures set forth in Sections 30-1-1301 through 30-1-1331 of the Idaho Business
Corporations Act, copies of which are annexed hereto as Appendix D, may be entitled to dissent from the
reincorporation, and to obtain payment in cash for such shareholder’s shares of the Company's Common Stock.

The following summary of the Idaho Business Corporations Act as it relates to dissenters' rights is not intended to be a
complete statement such provisions and is qualified in its entirety by the reference to the copy of the applicable
sections of the Idaho BCA annexed hereto.

  1.           Any shareholder who wishes to dissent to the reincorporation and obtain payment for such shareholder’s
shares must deliver to the Company before the vote is taken written notice of such shareholder’s intent to demand
payment for such shareholder’s shares if the proposed action is effectuated, and the shareholder must not vote such
shareholder’s shares in favor of the proposed action. If a shareholder does not satisfy these requirements, such
shareholder is not entitled to exercise such shareholder’s dissenters' rights and to receive payment for such
shareholder’s shares.  A shareholder’s failure to vote against the reincorporation proposal will not constitute a waiver of
the appraisal.  A vote against the reincorporation proposal will not in itself  be deemed to satisfy requirements the
requirement to deliver written notice of intent to demand payment.

 2.            If the proposed corporate action is approved by the required vote at a meeting of shareholders, the Company
is required to (and the Company will), within ten days after the corporate action is taken, deliver to those    
shareholders that have given prior written notice of such shareholder’s intent to dissent and have refrained from voting
in favor of the proposed action, a written notice which must:

(a)Specify the date of the first announcement to shareholders of the principal
terms of the proposed corporate action (“Announcement Date”) and require the
shareholder asserting appraisal rights to certify:

(i)  Whether or not beneficial ownership of those shares for which appraisal
rights are asserted was acquired before the Announcement Date; and

          (ii) That the shareholder did not vote for the transaction;

(b) State where the demand for payment must be sent and where and when
certificates for certificated shares must be deposited;

(c)Set a date by which the Company must receive the payment demand, which
date may not be fewer than 40 nor more than 60 days after the date the notice
by the Company is delivered (“Return Date”);

(d)State that, if requested in writing, the Company will provide, to the
shareholders so requesting, the number of shareholders who return the forms
by the specified date and the total number of shares owned by them;

(e)State the date by which the notice to withdraw must be received, which date
must be within twenty (20) days after the Return Date; and

(f)Be accompanied by a copy of the applicable sections of the Idaho BCA
regarding appraisal.
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3.             A shareholder who receives notice described in paragraph (2) above and who wishes to exercise appraisal
rights must certify on the form sent by the Company whether the beneficial owner of such shares acquired beneficial
ownership of the shares before the Announcement Date. In addition, a shareholder who wishes to exercise appraisal
rights must execute and return the form and deposit the shareholder’s certificates in accordance with the terms of the
notice described in paragraph (2) above. A shareholder who has complied with such procedures may nevertheless
decline to exercise appraisal rights and withdraw
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from the appraisal process by so notifying the Company in writing by the date set forth in the notice described in
paragraph (2) above. A shareholder who fails to so withdraw from the appraisal process may not thereafter withdraw
without the Company’s written consent.  A shareholder who does not execute and return the form and deposit that
shareholder’s share certificates shall not be entitled to payment.

4.           Within 30 days of the Return Date, the Company is required to (and the Company will), except as set forth in
(5) below, remit to dissenters who have made demand and have deposited such shareholder’s certificates, the amount
which the Company estimates to be the fair value of the shares, with interest if any has accrued. The remittance shall
be accompanied by:

(a)  the Company's closing balance sheet and statement of income for a fiscal year
ending not more than 16 months before the date of remittance, and income
statement for that year, a statement of changes in shareholders' equity for that
year, and the latest available interim financial statements, if any;

(b)  A statement of the Company's estimate of fair value for the shares;

(c)  A statement that shareholders have the right to demand further payment and
that if any shareholder does not do so within the time period specified therein,
such shareholder shall be deemed to have accepted such payment in full
satisfaction of the Company’s obligations.

5.           The Company may elect to withhold payment described in (4) from any shareholder who did not certify that
beneficial ownership of all of the shareholder’s shares for which appraisal rights are asserted was acquired before the
Announcement Date.  If the Company elected to withhold payment, it is required to (and the Company will), within
thirty days after the Return Date, it must :

(a)  Provide the information referred to in paragraph 4(a)and (b);

(b)  Notify the shareholders that: they may accept the Company’s estimate of fair
value, plus interest, in full satisfaction of such shareholder’s demands or
demand appraisal as described in paragraph 6 below; those shareholders who
wish to accept such offer must so notify the Company of such shareholder’s
acceptance of the Company’s offer within thirty days after receiving the offer;
and those shareholders who do not satisfy the requirements for demanding
appraisal described in paragraph 6 below shall be deemed to have accepted
the Company’s offer. Within ten days after receiving the shareholder’s
acceptance, the Company must pay in cash the amount it offered to each
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shareholder who agreed to accept the Company’s offer in full satisfaction of
the shareholder’s demand.  Within forty days after sending the notice
described, the Company must pay in cash the amount it offered to pay to each
shareholder who do not satisfy the requirements for demanding appraisal
described in paragraph  6 below.

6.           A shareholder paid pursuant paragraph 4 above, who is dissatisfied with the amount of the payment must
notify the Company in writing of that shareholder’s estimate of the fair value of the shares and demand payment of that
estimate plus interest, less any payment already made. A shareholder offered payment paragraph 5, who is dissatisfied
with that offer must reject the offer and demand payment of the shareholder’s stated estimate of the fair value of the
shares plus interest.  A shareholder who fails to notify the Company in writing of that shareholder’s demand to be paid
the shareholder’s stated estimate of the fair value plus interest  within thirty days after receiving the Company’s
payment or offer of payment under paragraphs 4 or 5, waives the right to demand payment under this section and shall
be entitled only to the payment made or offered pursuant to those respective sections.

7.           If a shareholder makes demand for payment under paragraph 6, which remains unsettled, the Company shall
commence a proceeding within sixty  days after receiving the payment demand and petition the court to determine the
fair value of the shares and accrued interest. If the Company does not commence the proceeding within the sixty-day
period, it shall pay in cash to each shareholder the amount demanded, plus interest. Each shareholder made a party to
the proceeding is entitled to judgment: (a) for the amount, if any, by which the court finds the fair value of the
shareholder’s shares, plus interest, exceeds the amount paid by the Company to the shareholder for such shares; or (b)
for the fair value, plus interest, of the shareholder’s shares for which the Company elected to withhold payment under
paragraph 6.
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ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF THE REINCORPORATION MERGER
The reincorporation merger would be accounted for as a reverse merger whereby, for accounting purposes, the
Company would be considered the acquirer and Atlas Delaware would be treated as the successor to the historical
operations of the Company.  Accordingly, the historical financial statements of the Company, which the Company
previously reported to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Forms 10-K and 10-Q, among other forms, as of
and for all periods through the date of this proxy statement, would be treated as the financial statements of Atlas
Delaware.

REGULATORY APPROVAL
To the Company’s knowledge, no regulatory or governmental approval or filings are necessary in connection with the
consummation of the reincorporation merger.  The only filings necessary in connection with the consummation of the
reincorporation merger would be the filing of articles of merger with the Secretary of State of Idaho and the filing of a
certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of Delaware.

CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The Company has been advised by its counsel, K&L Gates LLP, that, for federal income tax purposes, no gain or loss
would be recognized by the holders of the Common Stock of the Company a result of the consummation of the
reincorporation merger and no gain or loss would be recognized by the Company or Atlas Delaware.  In addition,
counsel has advised the Company that each former holder of Common Stock of the Company would have the same
basis in the Common Stock of Atlas Delaware received by such person pursuant to the reincorporation merger as such

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

55



holder had in the Common Stock of the Company held by such person immediately prior to the consummation of the
reincorporation merger, and such person’s holding period with respect to such Common Stock of Atlas Delaware
would include the period during which such holder held the corresponding Common Stock of Atlas, provided the
latter was held by such person as a capital asset immediately prior to the consummation of the reincorporation merger.

State, local or foreign income tax consequences to stockholders may vary from the federal tax consequences described
above.

STOCKHOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT SUCH SHAREHOLDER’S OWN TAX ADVISERS AS TO THE EFFECT
OF THE REINCORPORATION MERGER UNDER APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR FOREIGN
INCOME TAX LAWS.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 6, APPROVAL OF
THE REINCORPORATION OF THE COMPANY INTO THE STATE OF DELAWARE.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The only executive officers of the Company are Andre Zeitoun are Christopher T. Carney.  Information about them is
set forth below.

Name and Position with
the Company Age Director/Officer Since Principal Occupation

Andre Zeitoun 36 January 2009

President, Chief
Executive Officer and
Director of Company

Christopher T. Carney 39 February 2009

Interim Chief Financial
Officer of the
Company

Information about Mr. Zeitoun is provided above under “Nominees for Directors”.
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Christopher T. Carney, Interim Chief Financial Officer.  Pursuant to the Management Agreement between Material
Advisors LLC and the Company, he was appointed to his position as Interim Chief Financial Officer in February
2009.

From March 2007 until December 2008, Mr. Carney was an analyst at SAC Capital/CR Intrinsic Investors, LLC, a
hedge fund, where he evaluated the debt and equity securities of companies undergoing financial restructurings and
operational turnarounds.  From March 2004 until October 2006, Mr. Carney was a distressed debt and special
situations analyst for RBC Dain Rauscher Inc., a registered broker dealer.  Mr. Carney graduated with a BA in
Computer Science from CUNY-Lehman College and an MBA from Tulane University.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Introduction
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The Board of Directors has not created a separate compensation committee or a charter for such committee and the
Board of Directors as a whole acts as a compensation committee.  The Board of Directors does not believe a separate
compensation committee is needed in view of the size of the Company, the involvement of the Board of Directors in
Company affairs, and the history and structure of executive compensation.  Persons whose compensation is being
determined or negotiated by the Board of Directors do not participate in the Board deliberations.  The Board has not
used compensation consultants.

Executive Compensation
The following Summary Compensation table contains information about the compensation received by the executive
officers and highly paid employees for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)

Option
Awards ($)

(1) Total ($)

Michael T. Lyon
Interim CEO (2) (3) 2008 $100,417 $- 0 - $35,328 $135,754
William T. Jacobson
Chairman/Director, 2008 124,583 - 0 - 88,151 212,734
President, CEO (4) (5) 2007 177,083 - 0 - 88,151 265,234
Ronald Price
Director, CEO NanoClay 2008 197,917 - 0 - 290,600 488,517
Technologies, Inc. (6) 2007 167,708 51,975 557,851 777,534
Morris D. Weiss
Director, Chief Restructuring
Officer (7) (8) 2008 50,000 - 0 - 13,353 63,353
Barbara S. Suveg
Interim Corporate Secretary, 2008 182,070 - 0 - - 0 - 182,070
Accountant (9) (10) 2007 132,283 - 0 - - 0 - 132,283
Ronald Short
Operations Manager 2008 167,070 - 0 - - 0 - 167,070
Contract Mining Division 2007 121,713 - 0 - - 0 - 121,713

(1) This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes with respect to the 2008 fiscal year for the fair value of stock
options granted to each individual in 2008 in accordance with SFAS
123(R).  Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of
estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions.  These amounts
reflect the Company’s accounting expense for these awards, and do not
correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive
officers.
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(2 )
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Mr. Lyon was appointed interim CEO on June 28, 2008 for six months.  His appointment terminated on
December 28, 2008.  Initially, the employment contract provided for a monthly salary of $12,500 to
serve as President and Chief Executive Officer and the grant of five year options to purchase 50,000
shares at $0.65 per share, the options vesting ratably and monthly over the employment period.  The
employment agreement was amended in September, 2008 to provide for a salary of $18,000 per month
and options to acquire an additional 25,000 at $0.71 per share, such options vesting ratably and monthly.

(3) The exercise prices were set at the market price of the common stock as of the
day of grant except.

(4) Mr. Jacobson was Chairman at all times during 2007 and during 2008 until June
28, 2008.  He was CEO and President during the same period except for the
period from July 9, 2007 to November 30, 2007.  His employment agreement
was in effect at all times.  Mr. Jacobson resigned as Chairman, CEO and
president on June 28, 2008.

(5 )

Mr. Jacobson entered into a five year employment contract dated October 1, 2004 that provided for
annual salaries of $120,000, $150,000, $200,000, $225,000, $250,000 and provided for options to
acquire up to 3,500,000 shares of common stock over a five year period at $0.18 per share.  1.5 million
options vested on January 1, 2005 and an additional 500,000 were scheduled to vest each January 1
thereafter.  The closing market price on October 1, 2004 was $0.295. The employment contract provided
that in the event of termination by the Company for reasons other than theft or fraud, Mr. Jacobson
would be entitled to two years salary, health benefits and vesting of unvested options and the ability to
exercise options for two years after termination.

(6 )

On December 12, 2008, Ronald Price resigned as a director of the Company pursuant to the terms of a
separation agreement (the “Separation Agreement”).  He was not an employee of the Company.  He also
resigned as an officer and director of Nano Clay & Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company that
has been administratively dissolved.  Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Mr. Price is to render certain
cooperation and services.  Pursuant to the Agreement, until March 1, 2009, he was paid amounts equal to
the compensation under his employment agreement with Nano Clay & Technologies, Inc., which was
terminated by the Agreement (at the rate of $200,000 per year).  For the period from March 1, 2009 to
February 28, 2010, he will be paid $50,000, such amount is to be paid in monthly installments of
$4,167.  Under the Separation Agreement, Mr. Price is subject to certain confidentiality and
non-disparagement agreements and also to a non-compete agreement that expires in 2010.

Mr. Price entered into a three year employment contract dated March 9, 2006 that provided for annual salaries of
$150,000, $175,000, $200,000.  The employment contract provided that in the event of termination by the Company
for reasons other than just cause, Mr. Price would be entitled to six month’s salary.

(7) Mr. Weiss served as Chief Restructuring Officer from the period November 1,
2008 to May 1, 2009 and as a consultant thereafter.  The Company entered into
a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with Mr. Weiss, a director,
on November 1, 2008 pursuant to which Mr. Weiss served as Chief
Restructuring Officer for a period of six months.  The Consulting Agreement
provided that Mr. Weiss’ duties included:  (i) oversight and management of (1)
pending and anticipated securities, corporate, insurance and other significant
litigation involving the Company or its affiliates, (2) the disposition of the
contract mining business and such other businesses and entities in which the
Company holds an interest as may be determined by the Board, and (3) such
other matters as agreed upon by Mr. Weiss and the Board; (ii) advising the
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Board and senior management of the Company with respect to other significant
restructuring matters, and (iii) such other duties and responsibilities on which
the Board and the Consultant shall mutually agree.

The Consulting Agreement provided for compensation in the form of stock options and cash.  The stock option
compensation under the Agreement was 550,000 options to acquire Company common stock with an exercise price
of $0.70 per share and expiring in ten years.  250,000 options vested during the term of the Agreement and 300,000
options would vest at the end of the Agreement unless the Board determined that Mr. Weiss’ performance was not
satisfactory, in which case the number of options awarded was at the discretion of the Board.  The reported closing
price of the Company’s stock on October 31, 2008 was $0.28.  The board concluded that Mr. Weiss’ performance was
more than satisfactory and thus 300,000 options vested at the end of the Consulting Agreement (for a total of 550,000
options as provided under the agreement).  The cash
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compensation under the Agreement was $100,000 during the term of the Consulting Agreement plus a bonus of up to
$100,000, the award of which was dependent on a Board determination as to whether Mr. Weiss’ performance was
satisfactory and the amount of such bonus was at the discretion of the Board.  The board determined that Mr. Weiss’
performance was more than satisfactory thus the amount of the cash bonus was $100,000 and the Board and
Mr. Weiss agreed the amount would be payable in six monthly installments.

In addition, on May 1, 2009, Mr. Weiss agreed to review the documentation to be generated in connection with the
negotiation of the final settlement agreements in the class action in which the Company was a defendant and the
insurance coverage litigation involving the Company.  As compensation for such services, the Board granted
Mr. Weiss 100,000 options to acquire Company common stock with an exercise price of $0.70 per share, expiring in
ten years, and vesting on completion of the final settlement agreements.  The reported closing price of the Company’s
stock on April 30, 2009 was $0.49.

(8 )

Ms. Suveg entered into a three-year employment contract dated August 8, 2007 to serve as Chief
Financial Officer at a salary of $168,000.  The employment contract called for the grant of options to
purchase 250,000 shares at $2.41 per share, 100,000 of which vested on the grant date and 100,000 and
50,000 were to vest on the first and second anniversaries.  No options were exercised.  The employment
contract provided that in the event of termination by the Company for reasons other than theft of fraud,
Ms. Suveg would be entitled to two years salary, health benefits and vesting of unvested options and the
ability to exercise options for two years after termination.  We treated Ms. Suveg’s voluntary resignation
as a breach of her employment agreement and we recognized no amounts for financial statement
reporting purposes in accordance with SFAS 123(R) with respect to the option grants.

(9) Pursuant to her employment agreement, Ms. Suveg was designated as Chief
Financial Officer from August 8, 2007 until November 13, 2007.  She was not
employed during the period from November 14, 2007 until November 30,
2007.  While she was employed in 2007 and 2008, she functioned as principal
financial officer.  She resigned as interim corporate secretary on January 11,
2008.  She terminated as an employee on March 31, 2009 although she
continues as a consultant.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2008
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The following table provides information on the holdings as of December 31, 2008 of stock options granted to the
named executive officers.  This table includes unexercised and unvested option awards. Each equity grant is shown
separately for each named executive officer.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END

Name Grant Date

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options

Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options

Unexercisable

Equity
Incentive
Plan

Awards
Number of
Securities
Uncerlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options

Option
Exercise
Price

Option
Expiration Date

Michael T. Lyon 06/30/2008 50,000 - 0 - - 0 - $0.65 06/30/2013
09/08/2008 25,000 - 0 - - 0 - $0.71 09/08/2013

William T. Jacobson - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Ronald Price - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Morris D. Weiss (1) 11/01/2008 83,334 466,666 300,000 $0.70 10/31/2019

Barbara S. Suveg - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Ronald Short - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

(1)  See information in footnote 7 to the Summary Compensation Table.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
PMB Helin Donovan, LLP was selected by our Board of Directors as the Company’s independent accountant for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 and for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009.  Representatives of PMB
Helin Donovan will not be attending the shareholder meeting.

Changes in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant
As noted in the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 27, 2008, on August 20, 2008, Company
dismissed Chisholm, Bierwolf & Nilson, LLC (“Chisholm”) as independent auditors.

The decision to change accountants was approved by the Board of Directors.  Chisholm was not the auditor with
respect to and hence rendered no report on Company financials for the years ended December 31, 2007 or 2008.  With
respect to financial statements for periods for which Chisholm acted as independent auditor, it did not render a report
containing an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, or an opinion that was qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles.
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The decision to dismiss Chisholm was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of a
special committee of the Board of Directors.

There were no disagreements with Chisholm on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreement, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Chisholm, would
have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its report.

On August 21, 2008, the Company retained PMB Helin Donovan LLP (“PMB”) as independent auditors for the
purposes of auditing the financial statements.  PMB’s reports on the financial statements for the periods ending
December 31, 2007 and 2008 were included in the Annual Reports for the periods ending December 31, 2007 and
2008.

The Company provided Chisholm with a copy of the disclosures made above in the accounting section hereof and in a
letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission, Chisholm stated that it was “in agreement with only those
statements...as they relate to our firm.”

The Company has provided PMB Helin Donovan with a copy of the disclosures made in the Accounting section
hereof and requested that Chisholm furnish it with a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission
stating whether it agrees with such statements and, if not, stating the respects in which it does not agree.

Fees payable to PMB
The following table presents fees for audit services rendered by PMB Helin Donovan, the independent auditor for the
audit of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

PMB Helin Donovan,
LLC

December
31, 2008

December
31, 2007

Audit Fees (1) $44,338 $48,912
Audit-Related Fees - 0 - - 0 -
Tax Fees (2) - 0 - - 0 -
All Other Fees (3) - 0 - - 0 -

Total $44,338 $48,912

51
[Missing Graphic Reference]

(1) Fees for audit services billed or expected to be billed relating to fiscal 2007
consisted of (a) audit of the Company’s financial statements, (b) reviews of the
Company’s quarterly financial statements, statutory and regulatory audits,
consents and other services related to SEC matters, (c) audit of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting with the objective of obtaining
reasonable assurance about whether effective control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects, and (d) attestation of management’s
assessment of internal control, as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Section 404.
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Fees for audit services billed or expected to be billed relating to fiscal 2008 consisted of (a) audit of the Company’s
financial statements, and (b) reviews of the Company’s quarterly financial statements, statutory and regulatory audits,
consents and other services related to SEC matters.

(2)           Tax fees represent the aggregate fees paid for professional services,
principally including fees for tax compliance and tax advice.

(3) All other fees represent the aggregate fees paid for products and services that are
not included in the “Audit fees,” “Audi-related fees,” and “Tax fees” sections.  The
Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of non-audit services is
compatible with maintaining the principal registered public accounting firm’s
independence.

PROPOSALS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR 2010 ANNUAL MEETING
Shareholders who, in accordance with SEC Rule 14a-8, wish to present proposals for inclusion in the proxy materials
to be distributed in connection with next year’s Annual Meeting Proxy Statement must submit such shareholder’s
proposals so that they are received at the Company’s principal executive offices no later than the close of business on
December 1, 2009.  As the rules of the SEC make clear, simply submitting a proposal does not guarantee that it will
be included.

Shareholders who wish make nominations not pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-8 must provide notice within 10 days after
the public announcement of the 2010 annual meeting date.  To be in proper form, a shareholder’s notice must include
the specified information concerning the proposal or nominee as described in our Bylaws.  A shareholder who wishes
to submit a proposal or nomination is encouraged to seek independent counsel about our Bylaw and SEC
requirements.

The Company will not consider any proposal or nomination that does not meet the Bylaw and SEC requirements for
submitting a proposal or nomination.

OTHER MATTERS
The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will be presented at the meeting.  If any other business is
properly brought before the meeting, it is intended that proxies in the enclosed form will be voted in respect thereof in
accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxies.

Whether you intend to be present at this meeting or not, you are urged to return your proxy promptly.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC   allows us to “incorporate by reference” the information we file with it, which means that we can disclose
important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is
considered to be part of this proxy statement.

The information set forth under the following captions and on the following pages in the Company’s Annual Report of
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference thereto:

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation 17 - 23

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 24
Item 9.      24
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Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure

In addition, t he information set forth under the following captions and on the following pages in the Company’s
Quarterly Report of 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2009 is incorporated herein by reference thereto:

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2009 (unaudited) and
December 31, 2008 3 - 4
Consolidated Statements of Operations  and Comprehensive
Loss(unaudited) for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30,
2009 and 2008 5 - 6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the
Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008  7 - 8
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)  9 - 19

Item 2.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations  19 - 24

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 24

The reports identified above are available at on the following website:   www.proxyvote.com and are without charge
to security holders upon written or oral request. Requests should be directed to: Atlas Mining Company, 110 Greene
Street, Suite 1101, New York, NY  10012, (208)  556-1181. The reports will be mailed no later than one business day
after the request.   The reports are also available on the website of the SEC , www.sec.gov .

By order of the Board of Directors.

Andre Zeitoun, President and CEO
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Appendix A

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “Merger Agreement”) is entered into as of the ___ day of
_________, 2009 by and between Atlas Mining Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Surviving Corporation”), and
Atlas Mining Company, an Idaho corporation (“Merging Corporation”). Surviving Corporation and Merging
Corporation are sometimes collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Constituent Corporations.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Surviving Corporation is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Merging Corporation;
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WHEREAS, Merging Corporation is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Idaho; and

WHEREAS, Surviving Corporation and Merging Corporation and their respective Boards of Directors deem it
advisable and in the best interests of the corporations and their respective stockholders to merge Merging Corporation
with and into Surviving Corporation pursuant to the Idaho Business Corporation Act and the Delaware General
Corporate Law upon the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants, herein contained, and other valuable
consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree that Merging
Corporation shall be merged with and into Surviving Corporation (the “Merger”) pursuant to the terms and conditions
herein set forth.

AGREEMENT

1.General.

1.1            The Merger. On the Effective Date (as herein defined) of the Merger, Merging Corporation shall be merged
with and into Surviving Corporation and the separate existence of Merging Corporation shall cease and Surviving
Corporation shall survive such Merger. The name of Surviving Corporation shall be Atlas Mining Company if
Proposal 2 in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting is not approved by shareholders of the Merging
Corporation and Applied Minerals, Inc.   if it is approved by shareholders.

1.2            Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The certificate of incorporation of Surviving Corporation as in
effect immediately prior to the Effective Date in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A shall be the certificate of
incorporation of Surviving Corporation after consummation of the Merger.  If after the shareholder vote at the 2009
Annual Meeting, any of Proposals 2, 3, 4, or 5 is not approved by shareholders, the certificate will be amended to
include corresponding provisions from the articles of incorporation of the Merging Corporation, all as set forth in the
Proxy Statement. The Bylaws of Surviving Corporation as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date shall be
the Bylaws of Surviving Corporation after consummation of the Merger.

1.3            Directors and Officers. The directors and officers of Merging Corporation shall, from and after the
Effective Date, be the directors and officers of Surviving Corporation, until the earlier of their resignation or removal
or until their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified.

1.4            Property and Liabilities of Constituent Corporations. On the Effective Date, the separate existence of
Merging Corporation shall cease and Merging Corporation shall be merged into Surviving Corporation. Surviving
Corporation, from and after the Effective Date, shall possess all the rights, privileges, powers and franchises of
whatsoever nature and description, of a public as well as of a private nature, and be subject to all the restrictions,
disabilities and duties of each of the Constituent Corporations; all rights, privileges, powers and franchises of each of
the Constituent Corporations, and all property, real, personal and mixed,
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of and debts due to either of the Constituent Corporations on whatever account as well for stock subscriptions as all
other things in action or belonging to each of the Constituent Corporations shall be vested in Surviving Corporation;
and all property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises, and all other interests shall be thereafter as effectually the
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property of Surviving Corporation as they were of the several and respective Constituent Corporations and the title to
any real estate vested by deed or otherwise in either of the Constituent Corporations shall not revert or be in any way
impaired by reason of the Merger. All rights of creditors and all liens upon the property of the Constituent
Corporations shall be preserved unimpaired, and all debts, liabilities and duties of the Constituent Corporations
thenceforth shall attach to Surviving Corporation, and may be enforced against it to the same extent as if said debts,
liabilities and duties had been incurred or contracted by it. Any claim existing or action or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal or administrative, pending by or against either Constituent Corporation may be prosecuted to judgment or
decree as if the Merger had not taken place, or Surviving Corporation may be substituted in such action or proceeding.

1.5            Further Assurances. Merging Corporation agrees that, at any time, or from time to time, as and when
requested by Surviving Corporation, or by its successors and assigns, it will execute and deliver, or cause to be
executed and delivered in its name by its last acting officers, or by the corresponding officers of Surviving
Corporation, all such conveyances, assignments, transfers, deeds or other instruments, and will take or cause to be
taken such further or other action as Surviving Corporation, its successors or assigns may deem necessary or desirable
in order to evidence the transfer, vesting or devolution of any property, right, privilege or franchise or to vest or
perfect in or confirm to Surviving Corporation, its successors and assigns, title to and possession of all the property,
rights, privileges, powers, franchises and interests referred to in this Section 1 herein and otherwise to carry out the
intent and purposes hereof.

1.6            Effective Date. The Merger shall become effective on the later of (a) the day on which an executed copy of
a Certificate of Ownership and Merger is filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in the manner
required by the Delaware General Corporation Law and (b) the day on which an executed copy of Articles of Merger
are filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Idaho in the manner required by the Idaho Business Corporation
Act (the “Effective Date”).

2.              Conversion of Securities on Merger.

2.1            Effect of Merger on Capital Stock. Each share of Merging Corporation’s common stock, no par value per
share (other than shares (“Dissenting Shares”) that are owned by shareholders (“Dissenting Shareholders”) that are entitled
to and properly exercise appraisal rights pursuant Chapter 13 of the Idaho Business Corporation Act), issued and
outstanding immediately before the Effective Date shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of
the holder thereof, be converted into and become one (1) validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of
Surviving Corporation’s common stock, $0.001 par value per share (the “Surviving Corporation Stock”). Each share of
Surviving Corporation’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger
shall be canceled without any consideration being issued or paid therefore, without any further action on the part of
the holder thereof.

2.2            Effect of Merger on Options and PIK Notes. Each option of the Merging Corporation issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Date shall be (a) converted into and shall be an identical security of the
Surviving Corporation subject to the same agreement and terms as then exist with respect thereto, and (b)  in the case
of securities to acquire common stock of the Merging Corporation, converted into the identical right to acquire the
same number of shares of Surviving Corporation Stock as the number of shares of common stock of the Merging
Corporation that were acquirable pursuant to such option, warrant or other security. Each 10% PIK Election
Convertible Note due 2018 of the Merging Corporation issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Date shall be (a) converted into and shall be an identical security of the Surviving Corporation subject to the same
agreement and terms as then exist with respect thereto, and (b)  in the case of securities to acquire common stock of
the Merging Corporation, converted into the identical right to acquire the same number of shares of Surviving
Corporation Stock as the number of shares of common stock of the Merging Corporation that were acquirable
pursuant to such option, warrant or other security.
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2.3            Certificates. At and after the Effective Date, all of the outstanding certificates which immediately prior
thereto represented shares of Merging Corporation stock (other than Dissenting Shares), or options, warrants or other
securities of the Merging Corporation, shall be deemed for all purposes to evidence ownership of and to represent the
shares of Surviving Corporation Stock, or options, warrants or other securities of Surviving Corporation, as the case
may be, into which the shares of Merging Corporation stock, or options, warrants or other securities of the Surviving
Corporation, as the case may be, represented by such certificates have been converted as herein provided and shall be
so registered on the books and records of the Surviving Corporation or its transfer agent. The registered owner of any
such outstanding certificate shall, until such certificate shall have been surrendered for transfer or otherwise accounted
for to the Surviving Corporation or its transfer agent, have and be entitled to exercise any voting and other rights with
respect to, and to receive any dividends and other distributions upon, the shares of Surviving Corporation Stock, or
options, warrants or other securities of Surviving Corporation, as the case may be, evidenced by such outstanding
certificate, as above provided.

2.4            Appraisal Rights. No Dissenting Shareholder shall be entitled to shares of Surviving Corporation Stock
hereunder if the holder thereof shall have failed to perfect or shall have effectively withdrawn or lost such holder’s
right to appraisal under the Idaho Business Corporation Act, and any Dissenting Shareholder shall be entitled to
receive only the payment provided by the Idaho Business Corporation Act with respect to Dissenting Shares owned by
such Dissenting Shareholder. If any person or entity who otherwise would be deemed a Dissenting Shareholder shall
have failed to properly perfect or shall have effectively withdrawn or lost the right to appraisal with respect to any
shares which would be Dissenting Shares but for that failure to perfect or withdrawal or loss of the right to appraisal,
such Dissenting Shares shall thereupon be treated as though such Dissenting Shares had been converted into shares of
Surviving Corporation Stock.

3.              Foreign Qualification. Surviving Corporation covenants and agrees, to the extent required by applicable
law, to register or qualify, as applicable, to do business as a foreign corporation in those states in which Merging
Corporation is qualified to do business immediately prior to the Effective Date.

4.              Conditions to the Obligations of the Constituent Corporations to Effect the Merger.

4.1            Approval by Stockholders. The stockholders of Merging Corporation shall have approved the Merger and
this Merger Agreement in accordance with Idaho law.

4.2            Appraisal Rights.  Holders of no more than 0.5% of the outstanding shall deliver written notice of such
shareholder’s intent to demand payment for such shareholder’s shares if the proposed action is effectuated

4.3            Governmental Approvals; No Restraints. No statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling,
injunction or other order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) shall have been enacted, entered,
promulgated or enforced by any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction that prohibits, restrains,
enjoins or restricts the consummation of the Merger.

5.              Amendment. The respective Boards of Directors of the Constituent Corporations may amend this Merger
Agreement at any time prior to the Effective Date, provided that an amendment made subsequent to the approval of
the Merger by the stockholders of Merging Corporation shall not (a) alter or change the amount or kind of shares,
securities, cash, property or rights to be received under this Merger Agreement by the shareholders of Merging
Corporation; (b) alter or change any term of the Certificate of Incorporation of Surviving Corporation; or (c) alter or
change any of the terms and conditions of this Merger Agreement if such alteration or change would adversely affect
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6.              Miscellaneous.

6.1            Counterparts. This Merger Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and via facsimile or
other similar electronic transmission, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which taken together
shall constitute one Merger Agreement.

6.2            Termination. This Merger Agreement may be terminated and the Merger abandoned at any time prior to the
Effective Date, whether before or after stockholder approval of this Merger Agreement, by the consent of the Board of
Directors of either of the Constituent Corporations.

6.3            Governing Law. The Merger and this Merger Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of the State of Delaware.

6.4            No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Merger Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and is not
intended to and shall not confer upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder.

6.5            Severability. If any provision of this Merger Agreement (or any portion thereof) or the application of any
such provision (or any portion thereof) to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in
any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provision hereof (or the remaining portion thereof) or the application of such provision to any other person or
circumstances.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Constituent Corporations have executed this Merger Agreement as of the date and year
first above written.

MERGING CORPORATION:
Atlas Mining Company
an Idaho corporation
110 Greene St – Ste 1101
New York, NY  10012

By:
Its:

SURVIVING CORPORATION:
Atlas Mining Sub, Inc.
a Delaware corporation
110 Greene St – Ste 1101
New York, NY  10012
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By:
Its:
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Appendix B Certificate of Incorporation of Atlas Mining Sub, Inc. (“Delaware Corporation”), into which Atlas Mining
Company will be merged if Reincorporation Proposal is Approved, with variations depending of shareholder votes on
Proposals 2, 3, 4, and 5

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

Alternative #1 (If Proposal 2 is Approved) Applied Minerals, Inc.

Alternative #2 (If Proposal 2 is NOT Approved) Atlas Mining Company

FIRST:

         Alternative #1 (If Proposal 2 is Approved)

The name of the Corporation is and shall be Applied Minerals, Inc. (hereinafter in this Certificate of Incorporation
called the “Corporation”).

    Alternative #2 (If Proposal 2 is NOT Approved) Atlas Mining Company

The name of the Corporation is and shall be Atlas Mining Company (hereinafter in this Certificate of Incorporation
called the “Corporation”).

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

68



SECOND: The principal office and place of business of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is located at 1209
Orange Street, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle; and the name and post office address of the
registered agent of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is The National R gistered Agents, Inc., 160 Greentree
Drive, Suite 101 , in the City of Dover , County of Kent , Delaware.

THIRD: The nature of the business, or objects or purposes to be transacted, promoted or carried on are as follows:

To engage in, conduct, perform or participate in every kind of commercial, agricultural, mercantile, manufacturing,
mining, transportation, industrial or other enterprise, business, work, contract, undertaking, venture or operation.

To buy, sell, manufacture, refine, import, export and deal in all products, goods, wares, merchandise, substances,
apparatus, and property of every kind, nature and description, and to construct, maintain, and alter any buildings,
works or mines.

To enter into, make and perform contracts of every kind with any person, firm or corporation.

To do all and everything necessary, suitable, convenient or proper for the accomplishment of any of the purposes or
the attainment of one or more of the objects herein enumerated, or of the powers herein named, or which shall at any
time appear conducive to or expedient for the protection, or benefit of the Corporation, either as holder of, or
interested in, any property or otherwise, to the same extent as natural persons might or could do, in any part of the
world.
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To conduct any of its business in the State of Delaware and elsewhere, including in the term "elsewhere" any of the
states, districts, territories, colonies or dependencies of the United States, and in any and all foreign countries and to
have one or more offices, and to hold, purchase, mortgage and convey real and personal property, without limit as to
amount, within or (except as and when forbidden by local laws) without the State of Delaware.

To carry on any other business to any extent and in any manner not prohibited by the laws of Delaware or, where the
Corporation may seek to do such business elsewhere, by local laws.

The foregoing clauses shall be construed both as objects and powers, but no recitation or declaration of specific or
special objects or powers herein enumerated shall be deemed to be exclusive; but in each and every instance it is
hereby expressly declared that all other powers, not inconsistent therewith, now or hereafter permitted or granted
under the laws of Delaware, or by the laws of any other state or country into which the Corporation may go or seek to
do business, are hereby expressly included as if such other or general powers were herein set forth.

FOURTH:

Altern     Alternative #1 (If Proposal 2 is Approved and Proposal 4 is Approved)

A.  Authorized Shares and Classes of Stock.

The total number of shares and classes of stock that the Company shall have authority to issue is 130,000,000 million
shares, which shall be divided into two classes, as follows:  10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value of $.001

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

69



per share, and 120,000,000 shares of Common Stock, the par value of $.001 per share.

B.  Designations, Powers, Preferences and Rights, in Respect of the Shares of Preferred Stock.

(1) Shares of the Preferred Stock may be issued in one or more series at such time or times and for such consideration
or considerations as the Board of Directors may determine.  All shares of any one series shall be of equal rank and
identical in all respects.

(2) Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors to fix from time to time, by resolution or
resolutions providing for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the designation of such series, and the powers,
preferences and rights of the shares of such series, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including
the following:

(a) The distinctive designation and number of shares comprising such series, which number may (except where
otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in creating such series) be increased or decreased (but not below the
number of shares then outstanding) from time to time by like action of the Board of Directors;

(b) The dividend rate or rates on the shares of such series and the preferences, if any, over any other series (or of any
other series over such series) with respect to dividends, the terms and conditions upon which and the periods in
respect of which dividends shall be payable, whether and upon what conditions such dividends shall be cumulative
and, if cumulative, the date or dates from which dividends shall accumulate;

(c) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be redeemable, the limitations and restrictions with respect to such
redemptions, the time or times when, the price or prices at which and the manner in which such shares shall be
redeemable, including the manner of selecting shares of such series for redemption if less than all shares are to be
redeemed;
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(d) The rights to which the holders of shares and such series shall be entitled, and the preferences, if any, over any
other series (or of any other series over such series), upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution,
distribution of assets or winding-up of the Corporation, which rights may vary depending on whether such liquidation,
dissolution, distribution or winding-up is voluntary or involuntary, and, if voluntary, may vary at different dates;

(e) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be subject to the operation of a purchase, retirement or sinking fund,
and, if so, whether and upon what conditions such purchase, retirement or sinking fund shall be cumulative or
noncumulative, the extent to which and the manner in which such fund shall be applied to the purchase or redemption
of the shares of such series for retirement or to other corporate purposes and the terms and provisions relative to the
operation thereof;

(f) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible into or exchangeable for shares of stock of any other
class or classes, or any other series of the same class and, if so convertible or exchangeable, the price or prices or the
rate or rates of conversion or exchange and the method, if any, of adjusting the same, and any other terms and
conditions of such conversion or exchange;

(g) The voting powers, full and/or limited, if any, of the shares of such series; and if the certificate of incorporation
provides that the number of directors shall be fixed from time to time solely by resolution of the Board of Directors,
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acting by not less than a majority of the directors then in office, whether or not and under what conditions the shares
of such series (alone or together with the shares of one or more other series having similar provisions) shall be entitled
to vote separately as a single class, for the election of one or more additional directors of the Corporation in case of
dividend arrearages or other specified events, or upon other matters;

(h) Whether or not the issuance of any additional shares of such series, or of any shares of any other series, shall be
subject to restrictions as to issuance, or as to the powers, preferences or rights of any such other series;

(i) Whether or not the holders of shares of such series shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to subscribe for or
purchase any part of any new or additional issue of stock of any class or of securities convertible into stock of any
class and, if so entitled, the qualifications, conditions, limitations and restrictions of such right; and

(j) Any other preferences, privileges and powers, and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, and
qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such series, as the Board of Directors may deem advisable and as shall not
be inconsistent with the provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation.

C.  Limitations, Relative Rights and Powers in Respect of Shares of Common Stock.

(l) After the requirements with respect to preferential dividends, if any, on the Preferred Stock (fixed pursuant to
Section B) shall have been met and after the Corporation shall have complied with all the requirements, if any, with
respect to the setting aside of sums as purchase, retirement or sinking funds (fixed pursuant to Section B), then and not
otherwise the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared from time to
time by the Board of Directors.

(2) After distribution in full of the preferential amount, if any, (fixed pursuant to Section B) to be distributed to the
holders of Preferred Stock in the event of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or
winding-up of the Corporation, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive all the remaining assets
of the Corporation of whatever kind available for the distribution to stockholders ratably in proportion to the number
of shares of Common Stock held by them respectively.
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(3) Except as may be otherwise required by law or by this Certificate of Incorporation, each holder of Common Stock
shall have one vote in respect of each share of stock held by him on all matters voted upon by the stockholders.

D.  Other Provisions.

(l) Except as may be provided in the resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors pursuant to Section B with
respect to any series of Preferred Stock, no holder of stock of any class of the Corporation shall be entitled as of right
to purchase or subscribe for any part of any unissued stock of any class, or of any additional stock of any class of
Capital Stock of the Corporation, or to any bonds, certificates of indebtedness, debentures, or other securities
convertible into stock of the Corporation, now or hereafter authorized, but any such stock or other securities
convertible into stock may be issued and disposed of pursuant to resolution by the Board of Directors to such persons,
firms, corporations or associations and upon such terms and for such consideration as the Board of Directors in the
exercise of its discretion may determine and as may be permitted by law.  Any and all shares of stock so issued for
which the consideration so fixed has been paid or delivered to the Corporation shall be fully paid and not liable to any
further call.
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(2) In no case shall fractions of shares of any class of stock be issued by the Corporation, but in lieu thereof the
Corporation shall, at its option, make a cash adjustment or issue fractional Scrip Certificates, in such form and in such
denominations as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.  Such Scrip Certificates shall be
exchangeable on or before such date or dates as the Board of Directors may determine, when surrendered with other
similar Scrip Certificates in sufficient aggregate amounts, for certificates for fully paid and non-assessable full shares
of the respective stocks for which such Scrip Certificates are exchangeable, and new Scrip Certificates of a like tenor
for the remaining fraction of a share, if any.  Such Scrip Certificates shall not entitle any holder thereof to voting
rights, dividend rights or any other rights of a stockholder or any rights other than the rights therein set forth, and no
dividend or interest shall be payable or shall accrue with respect to Scrip Certificates or the interests represented
thereby.  All such Scrip Certificates which are not surrendered in exchange for shares of stock on or before their
respective expiration dates shall thereafter be void and of no effect whatever.

     Alternative#2 (If Proposals 3and 4 are NOT Approved)

The total authorized capital stock of this corporation shall be sixty million (60,000,000) no par, common shares, and
ten million (10,000,000) of one dollar ($1.00) par value noncumulative nonvoting nonconvertible preferred shares

 Alternative #3 (If Proposal 3 is Approved and Proposal 4 is NOT Approved)

The total number of shares and classes of stock that the Company shall have authority to issue is 110,000,000 shares,
which shall be divided into two classes, as follows:  10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, one dollar ($1.00) par value
noncumulative nonvoting nonconvertible preferred shares, and 1 2 0,000,000 shares of Common Stock, the par value
of $.001 per share.

   Alternative#4 (If Proposal 3is NOT Approved and Proposal 4 is Approved)

A.  Authorized Shares and Classes of Stock

The total number of shares and classes of stock that the Company shall have authority to issue is 70,000,000 shares,
which shall be divided into two classes, as follows:  10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $.001 par value
noncumulative nonvoting nonconvertible preferred shares, and 60,000,000 shares of Common Stock, the par value of
$.001 per share.
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B.  Designations, Powers, Preferences and Rights, in Respect of the Shares of Preferred Stock.

(1) Shares of the Preferred Stock may be issued in one or more series at such time or times and for such consideration
or considerations as the Board of Directors may determine.  All shares of any one series shall be of equal rank and
identical in all respects.

(2) Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors to fix from time to time, by resolution or
resolutions providing for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the designation of such series, and the powers,
preferences and rights of the shares of such series, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including
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the following:

(a)  The distinctive designation and number of shares comprising such series, which
number may (except where otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in
creating such series) be increased or decreased (but not below the number of
shares then outstanding) from time to time by like action of the Board of
Directors;

(b)  The dividend rate or rates on the shares of such series and the preferences, if
any, over any other series (or of any other series over such series) with respect
to dividends, the terms and conditions upon which and the periods in respect of
which dividends shall be payable, whether and upon what conditions such
dividends shall be cumulative and, if cumulative, the date or dates from which
dividends shall accumulate;

(c)  Whether or not the shares of such series shall be redeemable, the limitations and
restrictions with respect to such redemptions, the time or times when, the price
or prices at which and the manner in which such shares shall be redeemable,
including the manner of selecting shares of such series for redemption if less
than all shares are to be redeemed;

(d)  The rights to which the holders of shares and such series shall be entitled, and
the preferences, if any, over any other series (or of any other series over such
series), upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution of
assets or winding-up of the Corporation, which rights may vary depending on
whether such liquidation, dissolution, distribution or winding-up is voluntary or
involuntary, and, if voluntary, may vary at different dates;

(e)   Whether or not the shares of such series shall be subject to the operation of a
purchase, retirement or sinking fund, and, if so, whether and upon what
conditions such purchase, retirement or sinking fund shall be cumulative or
noncumulative, the extent to which and the manner in which such fund shall be
applied to the purchase or redemption of the shares of such series for retirement
or to other corporate purposes and the terms and provisions relative to the
operation thereof;

(f)  Whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible into or
exchangeable for shares of stock of any other class or classes, or any other series
of the same class and, if so convertible or exchangeable, the price or prices or
the rate or rates of conversion or exchange and the method, if any, of adjusting
the same, and any other terms and conditions of such conversion or exchange;

(g)  The voting powers, full and/or limited, if any, of the shares of such series; and if
the articles provide that the number of directors whether or not and under what
conditions the shares of such series (alone or together with the shares of one or
more other series having similar provisions) shall be entitled to vote separately
as a single class, for the election of one or more additional directors of the
Corporation in case of dividend arrearages or other specified events, or upon
other matters;

(h)  
Whether or not the issuance of any additional shares of such series, or of any
shares of any other series, shall be subject to restrictions as to issuance, or as to
the powers, preferences or rights of any such other series;

(i) 
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Whether or not the holders of shares of such series shall be entitled, as a
matter of right, to subscribe for or purchase any part of any new or additional
issue of stock of any class or of securities convertible into stock of any class
and, if so entitled, the qualifications, conditions, limitations and restrictions of
such right; and

         (j)Any other preferences, privileges and powers, and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions
of such series, as the Board of Directors may deem advisable and as shall not
be inconsistent with the provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation.
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C.  Limitations, Relative Rights and Powers in Respect of Shares of Common Stock.

(l) After the requirements with respect to preferential dividends, if any, on the Preferred Stock (fixed pursuant to
Section B) shall have been met and after the Corporation shall have complied with all the requirements, if any, with
respect to the setting aside of sums as purchase, retirement or sinking funds (fixed pursuant to Section B), then and not
otherwise the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared from time to
time by the Board of Directors.

(2) After distribution in full of the preferential amount, if any, (fixed pursuant to Section B) to be distributed to the
holders of Preferred Stock in the event of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or
winding-up of the Corporation, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive all the remaining assets
of the Corporation of whatever kind available for the distribution to stockholders ratably in proportion to the number
of shares of Common Stock held by them respectively.

(3) Except as may be otherwise required by law or by this Certificate of Incorporation, each holder of Common Stock
shall have one vote in respect of each share of stock held by him on all matters voted upon by the stockholders.

D.  Other Provisions.

(l) Except as may be provided in the resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors pursuant to Section B with
respect to any series of Preferred Stock, no holder of stock of any class of the Corporation shall be entitled as of right
to purchase or subscribe for any part of any unissued stock of any class, or of any additional stock of any class of
Capital Stock of the Corporation, or to any bonds, certificates of indebtedness, debentures, or other securities
convertible into stock of the Corporation, now or hereafter authorized, but any such stock or other securities
convertible into stock may be issued and disposed of pursuant to resolution by the Board of Directors to such persons,
firms, corporations or associations and upon such terms and for such consideration as the Board of Directors in the
exercise of its discretion may determine and as may be permitted by law.  Any and all shares of stock so issued for
which the consideration so fixed has been paid or delivered to the Corporation shall be fully paid and not liable to any
further call.

(2) In no case shall fractions of shares of any class of stock be issued by the Corporation, but in lieu thereof the
Corporation shall, at its option, make a cash adjustment or issue fractional Scrip Certificates, in such form and in such
denominations as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.  Such Scrip Certificates shall be
exchangeable on or before such date or dates as the Board of Directors may determine, when surrendered with other
similar Scrip Certificates in sufficient aggregate amounts, for certificates for fully paid and non-assessable full shares
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of the respective stocks for which such Scrip Certificates are exchangeable, and new Scrip Certificates of a like tenor
for the remaining fraction of a share, if any.  Such Scrip Certificates shall not entitle any holder thereof to voting
rights, dividend rights or any other rights of a stockholder or any rights other than the rights therein set forth, and no
dividend or interest shall be payable or shall accrue with respect to Scrip Certificates or the interests represented
thereby.  All such Scrip Certificates which are not surrendered in exchange for shares of stock on or before such date
as the Board of Directors may fix, shall thereafter be void and of no effect whatever, except that the holders thereof
shall be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the proceeds resulting from the sale of the full shares of stock for
which such Scrip Certificates are exchangeable, together with their pro rata share of dividends theretofore paid upon
such full shares; such sale (which may be effected either publicly or privately at the current market price, and as to
which the Corporation may be the purchaser) to be made by the Corporation or by an agent of the Corporation (which
agent may be a transfer agent or registrar of the shares for which such Scrip Certificates are exchangeable), as agent
and on behalf of the holders of the Scrip Certificates.
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FIFTH: The following provisions are inserted for the management of the business and for the conduct of the affairs of
the Corporation, and it is expressly provided that the same are intended to be in furtherance and not in limitation or
exclusion of the powers conferred by statute:

                Alternative #1 (If Proposal 5 is Approved and Proposal 4 is NOT Approved):

The number of directors of the Corporation shall be fixed from time to time
solely by resolution of the

            Board of Directors, acting by not less than a majority of the directors then in office.

                 Alternative #2 (If Proposal 5 is Approved and Proposal 4 is Approved):

The number of directors of the Corporation (exclusive of directors (the "Preferred Stock Directors") who may be
elected by the holders of any one or more series of Preferred Stock which may at any time be outstanding, voting
separately as a class or classes) shall be fixed from time to time solely by resolution of the Board of Directors, acting
by not less than a majority of the directors then in office.

                 Alternative #3 (If Proposal 5 is NOT Approved):

(1) The number of directors shall be five.

(2) Election of directors need not be by ballot unless the Bylaws so provide.

(3) The Board of Directors shall have power to determine from time to time whether and if allowed under what
conditions and regulations the accounts, and except as otherwise provided by statute or by this Certificate of
Incorporation, the books of the Corporation shall be open to the inspection of the shareholders, and the shareholders'
rights in this respect are and shall be restricted or limited accordingly, and no shareholder shall have any right to
inspect any account or book or document of the Corporation except as conferred by statute or by this Certificate of
Incorporation, or authorized by the Board of Directors or by a resolution of the shareholders.

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

75



(4) The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation.

(5)  Except as may be otherwise provided by statute or in this Certificate of Incorporation, the business and affairs of
this Corporation shall be managed under the direction of the Board of Directors.

(6) No director shall be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for any monetary damages for breaches
of fiduciary duty as a director; provided that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director, to the
extent that such liability is imposed by applicable law, (i) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the
Corporation or its stockholders; (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or
a knowing violation of law; (iii) under Section 174 or successor provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law;
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No amendment to or repeal of
this provision shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director for or with respect to
any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment or repeal. If the Delaware General
Corporation Law is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of
directors, then the liability of a director of the Corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted
by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as so amended.

(7) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock then outstanding, any action required or
permitted to be taken by the shareholders of the Corporation must be effected solely at a duly called annual or special
meeting of such holders and may not be effected by any consent in writing by such holders.

SIXTH:  The Corporation expressly elects to be governed by Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.
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Appendix C

BY-LAWS OF ATLAS MINING SUB, INC.,
 the Delaware corporation into which Atlas Mining Company will be merged if the Reincorporation Proposal is

Approved

Article I

Stockholders' Meeting

1.  Place of Meeting. Meetings of the stockholders shall be held at the registered
office of the Corporation in Delaware, or at such other place within or without
the State of Delaware as may be designated by the Board of Directors or the
stockholders.
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2.   Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the stockholders shall be held on such
date and at such time and place as the Board of Directors may designate. The
date, place and time of the annual meeting shall be stated in the notice of such
meeting delivered to or mailed to stockholders. At such annual meeting the
stockholders shall elect directors, in accordance with the requirements of the
Certificate of Incorporation, and transact such other business as may properly be
brought before the meeting.

3.  Quorum. The holders of stock representing a majority of the voting power of all
shares of stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote, present in person or
by proxy, shall be requisite for and shall constitute a quorum of all meetings of
the stockholders, except as otherwise provided by law, by the Certificate of
Incorporation or by these By-laws. If a quorum shall not be present at any
meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote shall, by the vote of holders of stock representing a majority of
the voting power of all shares present at the meeting, have the power to adjourn
the meeting from time to time in the manner provided in paragraph 4 of Article I
of these By-laws until a quorum shall be present.

4.  Adjournments. Any meeting of stockholders, annual or special, may adjourn
from time to time to reconvene at the same or some other place, and notice need
not be given of any such adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are
announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned
meeting the Corporation may transact any business which might have been
transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than thirty
days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned
meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of
record entitled to vote at the meeting.

5.  Voting; Proxies. At each meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation, every
stockholder having the right to vote may authorize another person to act for him
or her by proxy. Such authorization must be in writing and executed by the
stockholder or his or her authorized officer, director, employee, or agent. To the
extent permitted by law, a stockholder may authorize another person or persons
to act for him or her as proxy by transmitting or authorizing the transmission of
a telegram, cablegram or other means of electronic transmission to the person
who will be the holder of the proxy or to a proxy solicitation firm, proxy support
service organization or like agent duly authorized by the person who will be the
holder of the proxy to receive such transmission provided that the telegram,
cablegram or electronic transmission either sets forth or is submitted with
information from which it can be determined that the telegram, cablegram or
other electronic transmission was authorized by the stockholder. A copy,
facsimile transmission or other reliable reproduction of a writing or transmission
authorized by this paragraph 5 of Article I may be substituted for or used in lieu
of the original writing or electronic transmission for any and all purposes for
which the original writing or transmission could be used, provided that such
copy, facsimile transmission or other reproduction shall be a complete
reproduction of the entire original writing or transmission. No proxy authorized
hereby shall be voted or acted upon more than three years from its date, unless
the proxy provides for a longer period. No ballot, proxies or votes, nor any
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revocations thereof or changes thereto shall be accepted after the time
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set for the closing of the polls pursuant to paragraph 11 of Article I of these By-laws unless the Court of Chancery
upon application of a stockholder shall determine otherwise. Each proxy shall be delivered to the inspectors of
election prior to or at the meeting. A duly executed proxy shall be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and if,
and only as long as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an irrevocable power. A stockholder may
revoke any proxy which is not irrevocable by attending the meeting and voting in person or by filing an instrument in
writing revoking the proxy or by filing a subsequent duly executed proxy with the Secretary of the Corporation.
Unless a greater number of affirmative votes is required by the Certificate of Incorporation, these By-laws, the rules or
regulations of any stock exchange applicable to the Corporation, or as otherwise required by law or pursuant to any
regulation applicable to the Corporation, if a quorum exists at any meeting of stockholders, stockholders shall have
approved any matter, other than the election of directors, if the votes cast by stockholders present in person or
represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the matter in favor of such matter exceed the votes cast by
such stockholders against such matter. A nominee for director shall be elected to the Board of Directors by a plurality
of the votes cast at any meeting of stockholders.

6.  Notice. Written notice of an annual or special meeting shall be given to each
stockholder entitled to vote thereat, not less than ten nor more than sixty days
prior to the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be given when
deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at his or her
address as it appears on the records of the Corporation.

7.  Inspectors of Election. The Corporation shall, in advance of any meeting of
stockholders, appoint one or more inspectors of election to act at the meeting
and make a written report thereof. The Corporation may designate one or more
persons as alternate inspectors to replace any inspector who fails to act. In the
event that no inspector so appointed or designated is able to act at a meeting of
stockholders, the person presiding at the meeting shall appoint one or more
inspectors to act at the meeting. Each inspector, before entering upon the
discharge of his or her duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute
the duties of inspector with strict impartiality and according to the best of his or
her ability. The inspector or inspectors so appointed or designated shall (i)
ascertain the number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation outstanding
and the voting power of each such share, (ii) determine the shares of capital
stock of the Corporation represented at the meeting and the validity of proxies
and ballots, (iii) count all votes and ballots, (iv) determine and retain for a
reasonable period a record of the disposition of any challenges made to any
determination by the inspectors, and (v) certify their determination of the
number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation represented at the meeting
and such inspectors' count of all votes and ballots. Such certification shall
specify such other information as may be required by law. In determining the
validity and counting of proxies and ballots cast at any meeting of stockholders
of the Corporation, the inspectors may consider such information as is permitted
by applicable law. No person who is a candidate for an office at an election may
serve as an inspector at such election.
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8.  Stock List. At least ten days before every meeting of the stockholders a
complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said meeting, arranged in
alphabetical order, with the post office address of each, and the number of
shares held by each, shall be prepared by the Secretary. Such list shall be open
to the examination of any stockholder for any purpose germane to the meeting,
during ordinary business hours at a place within the city where the meeting is to
be held, which place shall be specified in the notice of the meeting, or, if not so
specified, at the place where the meeting is to be held for said ten days, and shall
be produced and kept at the time and place of meeting during the whole time
thereof and subject to the inspection of any stockholder who may be present.
The original or duplicate stock ledger shall be provided at the time and place of
each meeting and shall be the only evidence as to who are the stockholders
entitled to examine the list of stockholders or to vote in person or by proxy at
such meeting.
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9.  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders for any purpose or
purposes may be called by the Chair of the Board, and shall be called by the
Chair of the Board, if any, the President, or the Secretary at the request in
writing of a majority of the Board of Directors or one or more record holders of
shares of stock of the Corporation representing in the aggregate not less than
twenty percent (20%) of the total number of shares of stock entitled to vote on
the matter or matters to be brought before the proposed special meeting. A
stockholder request for a special meeting shall be directed to the Secretary and
shall be signed by each stockholder, or a duly authorized agent of such
stockholder, requesting the special meeting and shall be accompanied by a
notice setting forth the information required by paragraph 13 of this Article or
paragraph 1 2 of Article II of these By-laws, as applicable, as to any
nominations proposed to be presented and any other business proposed to be
conducted at such special meeting and as to the stockholder(s) requesting the
special meeting, as well as the written questionnaire and written representation
and agreement required by paragraph 1 4 of Article II of these By-laws from any
nominee for election as a director of the Corporation. A special meeting
requested by stockholders shall be held at such date, time and place within or
without the state of Delaware as may be designated by the Board of Directors;
provided, however, that the date of any such special meeting shall be not more
than ninety (90) days after the request to call the special meeting by one or more
stockholders who satisfy the requirements of this paragraph 9 of Article I is
received by the Secretary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a special meeting
requested by stockholders shall not be held if: (i) the stated business to be
brought before the special meeting is not a proper subject for stockholder action
under applicable law, or (ii) the Board of Directors has called or calls for an
annual meeting of stockholders to be held within ninety (90) days after the
Secretary receives the request for the special meeting and the Board of Directors
determines in good faith that the business of such annual meeting includes
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(among any other matters properly brought before the annual meeting) the
business specified in the stockholder's request. A stockholder may revoke a
request for a special meeting at any time by written revocation delivered to the
Secretary, and if, following such revocation, there are un-revoked requests from
stockholders holding in the aggregate less than the requisite number of shares
entitling the stockholders to request the calling of a special meeting, the Board
of Directors, in its discretion, may cancel the special meeting. If none of the
stockholders who submitted the request for a special meeting appears or sends a
qualified representative to present the nominations proposed to be presented or
other business proposed to be conducted at the special meeting, the Corporation
need not present such nominations or other business for a vote at such meeting.
Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the matters stated
in the notice of special meeting. Business transacted at a special meeting
requested by stockholders shall be limited to the matters described in the special
meeting request; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prohibit the Board
of Directors from submitting matters to the stockholders at any special meeting
requested by stockholders. The Chair of a special meeting shall determine all
matters relating to the conduct of the meeting, including, but not limited to,
determining whether any nomination or other item of business has been properly
brought before the meeting in accordance with these By-laws, and if the Chair
should so determine and declare that any nomination or other item of business
has not been properly brought before the special meeting, then such business
shall not be transacted at such meeting.

10.  Organization. Meetings of stockholders shall be presided over by the Chair of
the Board, if any, or in his or her absence by a Chair designated by the Board of
Directors, or in the absence of such designation by a Chair chosen at the
meeting. The Secretary shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in his or her
absence the Chair of the meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of
the meeting.

11.  Conduct of Meetings. The date and time of the opening and the closing of the
polls for each matter upon which the stockholders will vote at a meeting shall be
announced at such meeting by the person presiding over the meeting. The Board
of Directors of the Corporation may adopt by resolution such rules or
regulations for the conduct of meetings of stockholders as it shall deem
appropriate. Except to the extent inconsistent with such rules and regulations as
adopted by the Board of Directors, the chair of any meeting of stockholders
shall have the right and authority to prescribe such rules, regulations and
procedures and to do all such acts as, in the judgment of such chair, are
appropriate for the proper conduct of the meeting. Such rules, regulations or
procedures, whether adopted by the Board of Directors or prescribed by the
chair of the meeting, may include, without limitation, the following: (1) the
establishment of an agenda or order of business for the meeting; (2) rules and
procedures for
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maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present; (3) limitations on attendance at or participation in the
meeting, to stockholders of record of the Corporation, their duly authorized and constituted proxies or such other
persons as the chair shall permit; (4) restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the commencement
thereof, and (5) limitations on the time allotted to questions or comments by participants. Unless, and only to the
extent, determined by the Board of Directors or the chair of the meeting, meetings of stockholders shall not be
required to be held in accordance with rules of parliamentary procedure.

12.  Fixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record. In order that the
Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at
any meeting of the stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or entitled to
receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights,
or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or
exchange of stock or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of
Directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date
upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of
Directors and which record date: (1) in the case of determination of stockholders
entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders or adjournment thereof, shall,
unless otherwise required by law, not be more than sixty nor less than ten days
before the date of such meeting; and (2) in the case of any other action, shall not
be more than sixty days prior to such other action. If no record date is fixed:
(1)(a) the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to
vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day
next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the
close of business on the date next preceding the day on which the meeting is
held; and (1)(b) the record date for determining stockholders for any other
purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the of Board of
Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto. A determination of stockholders
of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply
to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of
Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

13.  Notice of Stockholder Proposal. At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only
such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought before the
meeting. To be properly brought before an annual meeting business must be: (a)
specified in the notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at the
direction of the Board of Directors, (b) otherwise properly brought before the
meeting by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (c) otherwise
properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder. For business to be
properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder (other than the
nomination of a person for election as a director, which is governed by
paragraphs 12, 13, and 14 of Article II of these By-laws), the stockholder
intending to propose the business (the "Proponent") must have given timely
notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation. To be timely, a
Proponent's notice must be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal
executive offices of the Corporation: (1) by the close of business 60 days in
advance of the anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting if such
meeting is to be held on a day which is more than 7 and within 30 days
preceding the anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting, (2) 90 days in
advance of the anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting if such
meeting is to be held (a) less than 7 days preceding the anniversary of the
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previous year's annual meeting or (b) on or after the anniversary of the previous
year's annual meeting; and (3) with respect to any other annual meeting of
stockholders, the close of business on the tenth day following the date of public
disclosure of the date of such meeting. (For purposes of these By-laws, public
disclosure shall be deemed to include a disclosure made in a press release
reported by the Dow Jones News Services, Associated Press or a comparable
national news service or in a document filed by the Corporation with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section   13, 14 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")). A
Proponent's notice to the Secretary shall set forth as to each matter the
Proponent proposes to bring before the annual meeting: (a) a brief description of
the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for
conducting such business at the annual meeting, (b) the name and address of the
Proponent, and of any holder of record of the Proponent's shares as they appear
on the Corporation's books, (c) the class and number of shares of the
Corporation which are owned by the Proponent (beneficially and of record) and
owned by any holder of record of the Proponent's shares, as of the date of the
Proponent's notice, and a representation that the Proponent will notify the
Corporation in writing of the class and number of such shares owned of
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record and beneficially as of the record date for the meeting promptly following the later of the record date or the date
notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed, (d) any material interest of the Proponent in such business, (e) a
description of any agreement, arrangement or understanding with respect to such business between or among the
Proponent and any of its affiliates or associates, and any others (including their names) acting in concert with any of
the foregoing, and a representation that the Proponent will notify the Corporation in writing of any such agreement,
arrangement or understanding in effect as of the record date for the meeting promptly following the later of the record
date or the date notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed, (f) a description of any agreement, arrangement or
understanding (including any derivative or short positions, profit interests, options, hedging transactions, and
borrowed or loaned shares) that has been entered into as of the date of the Proponent's notice by, or on behalf of, the
Proponent or any of its affiliates or associates, the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss to, manage risk or
benefit of share price changes for, or increase or decrease the voting power of the Proponent or any of its affiliates or
associates with respect to shares of stock of the Corporation, and a representation that the Proponent will notify the
Corporation in writing of any such agreement, arrangement or understanding in effect as of the record date for the
meeting promptly following the later of the record date or the date notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed,
(g) a representation that the Proponent is a holder of record or beneficial owner of shares of the Corporation entitled to
vote at the annual meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to propose such business, and
(h) a representation whether the Proponent intends to deliver a proxy statement and/or form of proxy to holders of at
least the percentage of the Corporation's outstanding shares required to approve the proposal and/or otherwise to
solicit proxies from stockholders in support of the proposal.

14.  Compliance with Procedures. Notwithstanding anything in these By-laws to the
contrary: (a) no business shall be conducted at any annual meeting except in
accordance with the procedures set forth in paragraph 13 of this Article I, and
(b) unless otherwise required by law, if a Proponent intending to propose
business at an annual meeting pursuant to paragraph 13 of this Article I does not
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provide the information required under subparagraphs (c), (e) and (f) of
paragraph 13 to the Corporation promptly following the later of the record date
or the date notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed, or the Proponent
(or a qualified representative of the Proponent) does not appear at the meeting to
present the proposed business, such business shall not be transacted,
notwithstanding that proxies in respect of such business may have been received
by the Corporation. The chair of the annual meeting shall, if the facts warrant,
determine and declare to the meeting that business was not properly brought
before the meeting in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 13 of this
Article I, and if he or she should so determine, he or she shall so declare to the
meeting and any such business not properly brought before the meeting shall not
be transacted. The requirements of paragraph 13 and paragraph 14 of this
Article I shall apply to any business to be brought before an annual meeting by a
stockholder (other than the nomination of a person for election as a director,
which is governed by paragraphs 13, 14 and 15 of Article II of these By-laws)
including business to be presented to stockholders by means of an independently
financed proxy solicitation but not business to be included in the Corporation's
proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act or presented to
stockholders by means of an independently financed proxy solicitation. The
requirements of paragraph 13 of this Article I are included to provide the
Corporation notice of a stockholder's intention to bring business before an
annual meeting and shall in no event be construed as imposing upon any
stockholder the requirement to seek approval from the Corporation as a
condition precedent to bringing any such business before an annual meeting.
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Article II

Directors.

1. Number; Election; Term. The number of directors which shall constitute the
whole Board shall be fixed from time to time solely by resolution of the Board,
acting by the vote of not less than a majority of the directors then in office.  The
remaining directors of the Corporation shall cause any such vacancy to be filled
in accordance with these By-laws within a reasonable period of time. At the
annual meeting or a special meeting at which directors are to be elected in
accordance with the Corporation's notice of meeting, directors shall be elected
in accordance with the requirements of these By-laws and the Certificate of
Incorporation.

2. Place of Meetings, Records. The directors may hold their meetings and keep the
books of the Corporation inside or outside of the State of Delaware at such
places as they may from time to time determine.

3.
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Vacancies. Subject to the rights of the holders of any one or more series of
Preferred Stock then outstanding, if the office of any director becomes vacant
for any reason or any new directorship is created by any increase in the
authorized number of directors, a majority of the directors then in office,
although less than a quorum, may choose a successor or successors or fill the
newly created directorship. Any director so chosen shall hold office until the
next election of the class for which such director shall have been chosen and
until his successor shall be elected and qualified.

4. Organizational Meeting. The Board of Directors shall meet for the purpose of
organization, the election of officers and the transaction of other business, after
each annual election of directors on the day and at the place of the annual
meeting or at next regular or special meeting of the Board. Notice of such
meeting need not be given. Such meeting may be held at any other time or place
which shall be specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special
meetings of the Board of Directors or in a consent and waiver of notice thereof
signed by all of the directors.

5. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice at
such time and place either within or without the State of Delaware as shall from
time to time be determined by the Board.

6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chair of
the Board,  a majority of the directors then in office, or the President by the
mailing of notice to each director at least 48 hours before the meeting or by
notification to each director of the meeting at least 12 hours prior thereto either
personally, by telephone or by electronic transmission.

7. Quorum. At all meetings of the Board the presence of one third of the total
number of directors determined by resolution pursuant to paragraph 1 of this
Article II to constitute the Board of Directors shall be necessary and sufficient to
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of
the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act
of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by
law, by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these By-laws.

8. Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of
the whole Board, designate one or more committees, each committee to consist
of one or more of the directors of the Corporation. The Board may designate one
or more directors as alternate members of any such additional committee, who
may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the
committee. Any such committee shall have such powers as are granted to it by
the resolution of the Board or by subsequent resolutions passed by a majority of
the whole Board. Nothing herein shall limit the authority of the Board of
Directors to appoint other committees consisting in whole or in part of persons
who are not directors of the Corporation to carry out such functions as the Board
may designate. Unless otherwise provided for in any resolution of the Board of
Directors designating a committee pursuant to this paragraph 8 of Article II: (i)
a quorum for the transaction of business of
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such committee shall be fifty percent or more of the authorized number of members of such committee; and (ii) the act
of a majority of the members of such committee present at any meeting of such committee at which there is a quorum
shall be the act of the committee (except as otherwise specifically provided by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or
by these By-laws).

9. Presence at Meeting. Members of the Board of Directors or any committee
designated by such Board may participate in the meeting of said Board or
committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications
equipment by means of which all persons in the meeting can hear each other and
participate. The ability to participate in a meeting in the above manner shall
constitute presence at said meeting for purposes of a quorum and any action
thereat.

10. Action Without Meetings. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee designated by such Board
may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board or committee
consent thereto in writing and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes
of the proceedings of the Board or committee.

11. Eligibility to Make Nominations. Nominations of candidates for election as
directors at an annual meeting of stockholders or a special meeting of
stockholders at which directors are to be elected pursuant to the Corporation's
notice of meeting (an "Election Meeting") may be made (1) by any stockholder
entitled to vote at such Election Meeting only in accordance with the procedures
established by paragraph 1 2 of this Article II, or (2) by the Board of Directors.
In order to be eligible for election as a director, any director nominee must first
be nominated in accordance with the provisions of these By-laws.

12. Procedure for Nominations by Stockholders. Any stockholder entitled to vote
for the election of a director at an Election Meeting may nominate one or more
persons for such election only if written notice of such stockholder's intent to
make such nomination is delivered to or mailed and received by the Secretary of
the Corporation. Such notice must be received by the Secretary not later than the
following dates: (1) with respect to an annual meeting of stockholders, by the
close of business 60 days in advance of the anniversary of the previous year's
annual meeting if such meeting is to be held on a day which is more than 7 and
within 30 days preceding the anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting,
(2) 90 days in advance of the anniversary of the previous year's annual meeting
if such meeting is to be held (a) less than 7 days preceding the anniversary of the
previous year's annual meeting or (b) on or after the anniversary of the previous
year's annual meeting; and (3) with respect to any other annual meeting of
stockholders or a special meeting of stockholders at which directors are to be
elected pursuant to the Corporation's notice of meeting, by the close of business
on the tenth day following the date of public disclosure of the date of such
meeting. The written notice of the stockholder intending to make the nomination
(the "Proponent") shall set forth: (i) the name, age, business address and
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residence address of each nominee proposed in such notice, (ii) the principal
occupation or employment of each such nominee, (iii) the number of shares of
capital stock of the Corporation which are owned of record and beneficially by
each such nominee, (iv) with respect to each nominee for election or reelection
to the Board of Directors, include a completed and signed questionnaire,
representation and agreement required by paragraph 1 4 of this Article II, (v)
such other information concerning each such nominee as would be required to
be disclosed in a proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of such
nominee as a director in an election contest (even if an election contest is not
involved), or that is otherwise required to be disclosed, under the rules of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission, and (vi) as to the
Proponent: (a) the name and address of the Proponent, and of any holder of
record of the Proponent's shares as they appear on the Corporation's books, (b)
the class and number of shares of the Corporation which are owned by the
Proponent (beneficially and of record) and owned by any holder of record of the
Proponent's shares, as of the date of the Proponent's notice, and a representation
that the Proponent will notify the Corporation in writing of the class and number
of such shares owned of record and beneficially as of the record date for the
meeting promptly following the later of the record date or the date notice of the
record date is first publicly disclosed, (c) a description of any agreement,
arrangement or understanding with respect to such nomination between or
among the Proponent and any of its affiliates or associates, and any others
(including their names) acting in concert with any of the
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foregoing, and a representation that the Proponent will notify the Corporation in writing of any such agreement,
arrangement or understanding in effect as of the record date for the meeting promptly following the later of the record
date or the date notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed, (d) a description of any agreement, arrangement or
understanding (including any derivative or short positions, profit interests, options, hedging transactions, and
borrowed or loaned shares) that has been entered into as of the date of the Proponent's notice by, or on behalf of, the
Proponent or any of its affiliates or associates, the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss to, manage risk or
benefit of share price changes for, or increase or decrease the voting power of the Proponent or any of its affiliates or
associates with respect to shares of stock of the Corporation, and a representation that the Proponent will notify the
Corporation in writing of any such agreement, arrangement or understanding in effect as of the record date for the
meeting promptly following the later of the record date or the date notice of the record date is first publicly disclosed,
(e) a representation that the Proponent is a holder of record or beneficial owner of shares of the Corporation entitled to
vote at the meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons
specified in the notice, and (f) a representation whether the Proponent intends to deliver a proxy statement and/or form
of proxy to holders of at least the percentage of the Corporation's outstanding capital stock required to elect the
nominee and/or otherwise to solicit proxies from stockholders in support of the nomination. The Corporation may
require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as it may reasonably require to determine the
eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve as an independent director of the Corporation or that could be material to
a reasonable stockholder's understanding of the independence, or lack thereof, of such nominee.

13. Compliance with Procedures. If the Chair of the Election Meeting determines
that a nomination of any candidate for election as a director was not made in
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accordance with the applicable provisions of these By-laws, such nomination
shall be void, provided, however, that nothing in these By-laws shall be deemed
to limit any class voting rights upon the occurrence of dividend arrearages
provided to holders of Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding anything in these
By-laws to the contrary, unless otherwise required by law, if a Proponent
intending to make a nomination at an annual or special meeting pursuant to
paragraph 1 2 of this Article II does not provide the information required under
clauses (b) through (d) of subparagraph (vi) of paragraph 1 2 of this Article II to
the Corporation promptly following the later of the record date or the date notice
of the record date is first publicly disclosed, or the Proponent (or a qualified
representative of the Proponent) does not appear at the meeting to present the
nomination, such nomination shall be disregarded, notwithstanding that proxies
in respect of such nomination may have been received by the Corporation.

14.  Submission of Questionnaire; Representation and Agreement. To be eligible to
be a nominee for election or reelection as a director of the Corporation, a person
must deliver (in accordance with the time periods prescribed for delivery of
notice under paragraph 1 2 of this Article II of these By-laws) to the Secretary
of the Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation a written
questionnaire with respect to the background and qualification of such person
and the background of any other person or entity on whose behalf the
nomination is being made (which questionnaire shall be provided by the
Secretary upon written request) and a written representation and agreement (in
the form provided by the Secretary upon written request) that such person (i) is
not and will not become a party to (A) any agreement, arrangement or
understanding with, and has not given any commitment or assurance to, any
person or entity as to how such person, if elected as a director of the
Corporation, will act or vote on any issue or question (a "Voting Commitment")
that has not been disclosed to the Corporation or (B) any Voting Commitment
that could limit or interfere with such person's ability to comply, if elected as a
director of the Corporation, with such person's fiduciary duties under applicable
law, (ii) is not and will not become a party to any agreement, arrangement or
understanding with any person or entity other than the Corporation with respect
to any direct or indirect compensation, reimbursement or indemnification in
connection with service or action as a director that has not been disclosed
therein, and (iii) in such person's individual capacity and on behalf of any
person or entity on whose behalf the nomination is being made, would be in
compliance, if elected as a director of the Corporation, and will comply with,
applicable law and all applicable publicly disclosed corporate governance,
conflict of interest, corporate opportunities, confidentiality and stock ownership
and trading policies and guidelines of the Corporation.
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Article III

Officers.
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1. Election; Term of Office; Appointments. The Board of Directors, at its first
meeting after each annual meeting, of stockholders, shall elect at least the
following officers: a President and a Secretary. The Board may also elect,
appoint, or provide for the appointment of such other officers and agents as may
from time to time appear necessary or advisable in the conduct of the affairs of
the Corporation. Officers of the Corporation shall hold office until their
successors are chosen and qualify in their stead or until their earlier death,
resignation or removal, and shall perform such duties as from time to time shall
be prescribed by these By-laws and by the Board and, to the extent not so
provided, as generally pertain to their respective offices. The Board of Directors
may fill any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation at any regular or
special meeting. Two or more offices may be held by the same person.

2. Removal and Resignation. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of
Directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the whole Board of Directors. If the office of any officer elected or appointed by
the Board becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by the
Board. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the
Corporation.

3. President. The President, in the absence of a Chair of the Board, if any, shall
preside at meetings of the Directors. He or she shall have such authority and
perform such duties in the management of the Corporation as from time to time
shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors and, to the extent not so
prescribed, he or she shall have such authority and perform such duties in the
management of the Corporation, subject to the control of the Board, as generally
pertain to the office of President.

4. Secretary. The Secretary or person appointed as secretary at all meetings of the
Board and of the stockholders shall record all votes and the minutes of all
proceedings in a book to be kept for that purpose, and he or she shall perform
like duties for any c ommittee when required. He or she shall give, or cause to
be given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders, and of the Board of
Directors if required. He or she shall perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by these By-laws or as may be assigned to him or her by the
President or the Board of Directors, and, except as otherwise prescribed by the
Board of Directors, he or she shall have such powers and duties as generally
pertain to the office of Secretary.

Article IV
Stock.

1. Stock. The shares of the Corporation shall be represented by certificates or shall
be uncertificated. Each registered holder of shares, upon request to the
Corporation, shall be provided with a certificate of stock representing the
number of shares owned by such holder. The certificates of stock of the
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Corporation shall be in the form or forms from time to time approved by the
Board of Directors. Such certificates shall be numbered and registered, shall
exhibit the holder's name and the number of shares, and shall be signed in the
name of the Corporation by the following officers of the Corporation: the Chair
of the Board of Directors, or the President or Vice President; and by the
Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. If
any certificate is manually signed (1) by a transfer agent other than the
Corporation or its employee, or (2) by a registrar other than the Corporation or
its employee, any other signature on the certificate, including those of the
aforesaid officers of the Corporation, may be a facsimile. In case any officer,
transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been
placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or
registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation
with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent or registrar
at the date of issue.
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2. Lost Certificates. The Board of Directors or any officer of the Corporation to
whom the Board of Directors has delegated authority may authorize any transfer
agent of the Corporation to issue, and any registrar of the Corporation to
register, at any time and from time to time unless otherwise directed, a new
certificate or certificates of stock in the place of a certificate or certificates
theretofore issued by the Corporation, alleged to have been lost or destroyed,
upon receipt by the transfer agent of evidence of such loss or destruction, which
may be the affidavit of the applicant; a bond indemnifying the Corporation and
any transfer agent and registrar of the class of stock involved against claims that
may be made against it or them on account of the lost or destroyed certificate or
the issuance of a new certificate, of such kind and in such amount as the Board
of Directors shall have authorized the transfer agent to accept generally or as the
Board of Directors or an authorized officer shall approve in particular cases; and
any other documents or instruments that the Board of Directors or an authorized
officer may require from time to time to protect adequately the interest of the
Corporation. A new certificate may be issued without requiring any bond when,
in the judgment of the directors, it is proper to do so.

3. Transfers of Stock. Transfers of stock shall be made upon the books of the
Corporation: (1) upon presentation of the certificates by the registered holder in
person or by duly authorized attorney, or upon presentation of proper evidence
of succession, assignment or authority to transfer the stock, and upon surrender
of the appropriate certificate(s), or (2) in the case of uncertificated shares, upon
receipt of proper transfer instructions from the registered owner of such
uncertificated shares, or from a duly authorized attorney or from an individual
presenting proper evidence of succession, assignment or authority to transfer the
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stock.

4. Holder of Record. The Corporation shall be entitled to treat the holder of record
of any share or shares of stock as the holder in fact thereof and accordingly shall
not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such
share on the part of any other person whether or not it shall have express or
other notice thereof, save as expressly provided by the laws of the State of
Delaware.

Article V

Indemnification.

1. Right to Indemnification. The Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless, to
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law as it presently exists or may
hereafter be amended, any person who was or is made or is threatened to be made
a party or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative (a "proceeding") by reason of the fact
that he or she, or a person for whom he or she is the legal representative, is or
was a director or officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or is or was
serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent
of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust, nonprofit entity, or
other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, against
all liability and loss suffered and expenses (including attorneys' fees) reasonably
incurred by such person. The Corporation shall be required to indemnify a person
in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person only if
the proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation.

2. Prepayment of Expenses. The Corporation shall pay the expenses (including
attorneys' fees) incurred by an officer or director of the Corporation in
defending any proceeding in advance of its final disposition, provided, however,
that the payment of such expenses shall be made only upon receipt of an
undertaking by the director or officer to repay all amounts advanced if it shall
ultimately be determined that the director or officer is not entitled to be
indemnified. Payment of such expenses incurred by other employees and agents
of the Corporation may be made by the Board of Directors in its discretion upon
such terms and conditions, if any, as it deems appropriate.
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3. Claims. If a claim for indemnification or payment of expenses (including
attorneys' fees) under this Article is not paid in full within sixty days after a
written claim therefor has been received by the Corporation the claimant may
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file suit to recover the unpaid amount of such claim and, if successful in whole
or in part, shall be entitled to be paid the expense of prosecuting such claim. In
any such action the Corporation shall have the burden of proving that the
claimant was not entitled to the requested indemnification or payment of
expenses under applicable law.

4. Nonexclusivity of Rights. The right conferred on any person by this Article V
shall not be exclusive of any other rights which such person may have or
hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation,
these By-laws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or
otherwise.

5. Other Indemnification. The C orporation's obligation, if any, to indemnify any
person who was or is serving at its request as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or
non-profit entity shall be reduced by any amount such person may collect as
indemnification from such other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust,
non-profit entity, or other enterprise.

6. Amendment or Repeal. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions
of this Article V shall not adversely affect any right or protection hereunder of
any person in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to the time of such
repeal or modification.

Article VI

Section 203 of the General Corporation Law.

1. Election to be Governed.  The Corporation expressly elects to be governed by
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Article VII

Miscellaneous.

1. Seal. The corporate seal shall be in the form adopted by the Board of Directors.
Said seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or
affixed or reproduced or otherwise. The seal may be affixed by any officer of
the Corporation to any instrument executed by authority of the Corporation, and
the seal when so affixed may be attested by the signature of any officer of the
Corporation.

2. Notice. Whenever notice is required to be given by law, the Certificate of
Incorporation or these By-laws, a written waiver signed by the person entitled to
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed
equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a
waiver of notice of such meeting except when the person attends a meeting for
the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the
transaction of any business because the meeting, is not lawfully called or
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convened.

3. Amendments. The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt, amend or
repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation by the affirmative action of a majority of
its members. The By-laws may be adopted, amended or repealed by
shareholders if notice of such proposed adoption, amendment or repeal be
contained in the notice of such special meeting.

C-74
[Missing Graphic Reference]

4. Form of Records. Any records maintained by the Corporation in the regular
course of its business, including its stock ledger, books of account, and minutes
books, may be kept on, or be in the form of, punch cards, magnetic tape,
photographs, microphotographs, or any other information storage device,
provided that the records so kept can be converted into clearly legible form
within a reasonable time. The Corporation shall so convert any records so kept
upon the request of any person entitled to inspect the same.

5. Checks. All checks, drafts, notes and other orders for the payment of money
shall be signed by such officer or officers or agents as from time to time may be
designated by the Board of Directors or by such officers of the Corporation as
may be designated by the Board to make such designation.

6. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall begin the first day of January in each year.
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APPENDIX D

S et forth below are the provisions of the Idaho Business Corporation Act relating to Appraisal Rights

30-1-1301.DEFINITIONS.  In this part:
(1)  "Affiliate" means a person that directly or indirectly through one (1) or more intermediaries controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with another person or is a senior executive thereof. For purposes of section
30-1-1302 (2)(d), Idaho Code, a person is deemed to be an affiliate of its senior executives.
(2)  "Beneficial shareholder" means a person who is the beneficial owner of shares held in a voting trust or by a
nominee on the beneficial owner’s behalf.
(3)  "Corporation" means the issuer of the shares held by a shareholder demanding appraisal and, for matters covered
in sections 30-1-1322 through 30-1-1331 , Idaho Code, includes the surviving entity in a merger.
(4)  "Fair value" means the value of the corporation’s shares determined:
(a)  Immediately before the effectuation of the corporate action to which the shareholder objects;
(b)  Using customary and current valuation concepts and techniques generally employed for similar businesses in the
context of the transaction requiring appraisal; and
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(c)  Without discounting for lack of marketability or minority status except, if appropriate, for amendments to the
articles pursuant to section 30-1-1302 (1)(e), Idaho Code.
(5)  "Interest" means interest from the effective date of the corporate action until the date of payment, at the rate of
interest on judgments in this state on the effective date of the corporate action.
(6)  "Preferred shares" means a class or series of shares whose holders have preference over any other class or series
with respect to distributions.
(7)  "Record shareholder" means the person in whose name shares are registered in the records of the corporation or
the beneficial owner of shares to the extent of the rights granted by a nominee certificate on file with the corporation.
(8)  "Senior executive" means the chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer, and anyone in
charge of a principal business unit or function.
(9)  "Shareholder" means both a record shareholder and a beneficial shareholder.

30-1-1302.RIGHT TO APPRAISAL.  (1) A shareholder is entitled to appraisal rights, and to obtain payment of the
fair value of that shareholder’s shares, in the event of, any of the following corporate actions:
(a)  Consummation of a merger to which the corporation is a party:
(i)   If shareholder approval is required for the merger by section 30-1-1104 , Idaho Code, and the shareholder is
entitled to vote on the merger, except that appraisal rights shall not be available to any shareholder of the corporation
with respect to shares of any class or series that remain outstanding after consummation of the merger; or
(ii)  If the corporation is a subsidiary and the merger is governed by section 30-1-1105 , Idaho Code;
(b)  Consummation of a share exchange to which the corporation is a party as the corporation whose shares will be
acquired, if the shareholder is entitled to vote on the exchange, except that appraisal rights shall not be available to
any shareholder of the corporation with respect to any class or series of shares of the corporation that is not
exchanged;
(c)  Consummation of a disposition of assets pursuant to section 30-1-1202 , Idaho Code, if the shareholder is entitled
to vote on the disposition;
(d)  An amendment of the articles of incorporation with respect to a class or series of shares that reduces the number
of shares of a class or series owned by the shareholder to a fraction of a share if the corporation has the obligation or
right to repurchase the fractional share so created; or
(e)  Any other amendment to the articles of incorporation, merger, share exchange or disposition of assets to the extent
provided by the articles of incorporation, bylaws or a resolution of the board of directors.
(2)  Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, the availability of appraisal rights under subsections (1)(a), (b), (c)
and (d) shall be limited in accordance with the following provisions:
(a)  Appraisal rights shall not be available for the holders of shares of any class or series of shares which are:
(i)   Listed on the New York stock exchange or the American stock exchange or designated as a national market
system security on an interdealer quotation system by the national association of securities dealers, inc.; or
(ii)  Not so listed or designated, but have at least two thousand (2,000) shareholders and the outstanding shares of such
class or series have a market value of at least twenty million dollars ($20,000,000), exclusive of the value of such
shares held by its subsidiaries, senior executives, directors and beneficial shareholders owning more than ten percent
(10%) of such shares.
(b)  The applicability of subsection (2)(a) of this section shall be determined as of:
(i)   The record date fixed to determine the shareholders entitled to receive notice of, and vote at, the meeting of
shareholders to act upon the corporate action requiring appraisal rights; or
(ii)  The day before the effective date of such corporate action if there is no meeting of shareholders.
(c)  Subsection (2)(a) of this section shall not be applicable and appraisal rights shall be available pursuant to
subsection (1) of this section for the holders of any class or series of shares who are required by the terms of the
corporate action requiring appraisal rights to accept for such shares anything other than cash or shares of any class or
any series of shares of any corporation, or any other proprietary interest of any other entity, that satisfies the standards
set forth in subsection (2)(a) of this section at the time the corporate action becomes effective.
(d)  Subsection (2)(a) of this section shall not be applicable and appraisal rights shall be available pursuant to
subsection (1) of this section for the holders of any class or series of shares where:
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(i)   Any of the shares or assets of the corporation are being acquired or converted, whether by merger, share exchange
or otherwise, pursuant to the corporate action by a person, or by an affiliate of a person, who:
(A)  Is, or at any time in the one (1) year period immediately preceding approval by the board of directors of the
corporate action requiring appraisal rights was, the beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the voting
power of the corporation, excluding any shares acquired pursuant to an offer for all shares having voting power if such
offer was made within one (1) year prior to the corporate action requiring appraisal rights for consideration of the
same kind and of a value equal to or less than that paid in connection with the corporate action; or
(B)  Directly or indirectly has, or at any time in the one (1) year period immediately preceding approval by the board
of directors of the corporation of the corporate action requiring appraisal rights had, the power, contractually or
otherwise, to cause the appointment or election of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the directors to the board of
directors of the corporation; or
(ii)  Any of the shares or assets of the corporation are being acquired or converted, whether by merger, share exchange
or otherwise, pursuant to such corporate action by a person, or by an affiliate of a person, who is, or at any time in the
one (1) year period immediately preceding approval by the board of directors of the corporate action requiring
appraisal rights was, a senior executive or director of the corporation or a senior executive of any affiliate thereof, and
that senior executive or director will receive, as a result of the corporate action, a financial benefit not generally
available to other shareholders as such, other than:
(A)  Employment, consulting, retirement or similar benefits established separately and not as part of or in
contemplation of the corporate action; or
(B)  Employment, consulting, retirement or similar benefits established in contemplation of, or as part of, the
corporate action that are not more favorable than those existing before the corporate action or, if more favorable, that
have been approved on behalf of the corporation in the same manner as is provided in section 30-1-862 , Idaho Code;
or
(C)  In the case of a director of the corporation who will, in the corporate action, become a director of the acquiring
entity in the corporate action or one (1) of its affiliates, rights and benefits as a director that are provided on the same
basis as those afforded by the acquiring entity generally to other directors of such entity or such affiliate.
(e)  For the purposes of subsection (2)(d) of this section only, the term "beneficial owner" means any person who,
directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, or understanding, other than a revocable proxy, has or shares
the power to vote, or to direct the voting of, shares, provided that a member of a national securities exchange shall not
be deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities held directly or indirectly by it on behalf of another person solely
because such member is the record holder of such securities if the member is precluded by the rules of such exchange
from voting without instruction on contested matters or matters that may affect substantially the rights or privileges of
the holders of the securities to be voted. When two (2) or more persons agree to act together for the purpose of voting
their shares of the corporation, each member of the group formed thereby shall be deemed to have acquired beneficial
ownership, as of the date of such agreement, of all voting shares of the corporation beneficially owned by any member
of the group.
(3)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the articles of incorporation as originally filed or any
amendment thereto may limit or eliminate appraisal rights for any class or series of preferred shares, but any such
limitation or elimination contained in an amendment to the articles of incorporation that limits or eliminates appraisal
rights for any of such shares that are outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of such amendment or that the
corporation is or may be required to issue or sell thereafter pursuant to any conversion, exchange or other right
existing immediately before the effective date of such amendment shall not apply to any corporate action that becomes
effective within one (1) year of that date if such action would otherwise afford appraisal rights.
(4)  A shareholder entitled to appraisal rights under this part may not challenge a completed corporate action for which
appraisal rights are available unless such corporate action:
(a)  Was not effectuated in accordance with the applicable provisions of part 10, 11 or 12 of this chapter or the
corporation’s articles of incorporation, bylaws or board of directors’ resolution authorizing the corporate action; or
(b)  Was procured as a result of fraud or material misrepresentation

30-1-1303.ASSERTION OF RIGHTS BY NOMINEES AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS.  (1) A record shareholder
may assert appraisal rights as to fewer than all the shares registered in the record shareholder’s name but owned by a
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beneficial shareholder only if the record shareholder objects with respect to all shares of the class or series owned by
the beneficial shareholder and notifies the corporation in writing of the name and address of each beneficial
shareholder on whose behalf appraisal rights are being asserted. The rights of a record shareholder who asserts
appraisal rights for only part of the shares held of record in the record shareholder’s name under this subsection shall
be determined as if the shares as to which the record shareholder objects and the record shareholder’s other shares were
registered in the names of different record shareholders.
(2)  A beneficial shareholder may assert appraisal rights as to shares held on behalf of the shareholder only if such
shareholder:
(a)  Submits to the corporation the record shareholder’s written consent to the assertion of such rights no later than the
date referred to in section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(ii), Idaho Code; and
(b)  Does so with respect to all shares of the class or series that are beneficially owned by the beneficial shareholder.

30-1-1320.NOTICE OF APPRAISAL RIGHTS.  (1) If proposed corporate action described in section 30-1-1302 (1),
Idaho Code, is to be submitted to a vote at a shareholders’ meeting, the meeting notice must state that the corporation
has concluded that shareholders are, are not or may be entitled to assert appraisal rights under this part. If the
corporation concludes that appraisal rights are or may be available, a copy of this part must accompany the meeting
notice sent to those record shareholders entitled to exercise appraisal rights.
(2)  In a merger pursuant to section 30-1-1105 , Idaho Code, the parent corporation must notify in writing all record
shareholders of the subsidiary who are entitled to assert appraisal rights that the corporate action became effective.
Such notice must be sent within ten (10) days after the corporate action became effective and include the materials
described in section 30-1-1322 , Idaho Code.

30-1-1321.NOTICE OF INTENT TO DEMAND PAYMENT.  (1) If proposed corporate action requiring appraisal
rights under section 30-1-1302 , Idaho Code, is submitted to a vote at a shareholders’ meeting, a shareholder who
wishes to assert appraisal rights with respect to any class or series of shares:
(a)  Must deliver to the corporation before the vote is taken written notice of the shareholder’s intent to demand
payment if the proposed action is effectuated; and
(b)  Must not vote, or cause or permit to be voted, any shares of such class or series in favor of the proposed action.
(2)  A shareholder who does not satisfy the requirements of subsection (1) of this section is not entitled to payment
under this part.

30-1-1322.APPRAISAL NOTICE AND FORM.  (1) If proposed corporate action requiring appraisal rights under
section 30-1-1302 , Idaho Code, becomes effective, the corporation must deliver a written appraisal notice and form
required by subsection (2)(a) of this section to all shareholders who satisfied the requirements of section 30-1-1321 ,
Idaho Code. In the case of a merger under section 30-1-1105 , Idaho Code, the parent must deliver a written appraisal
notice and form to all record shareholders who may be entitled to assert appraisal rights.
(2)  The appraisal notice must be sent no earlier than the date the corporate action became effective and no later than
ten (10) days after such date and must:
(a)  Supply a form that specifies the date of the first announcement to shareholders of the principal terms of the
proposed corporate action and requires the shareholder asserting appraisal rights to certify:
(i)   Whether or not beneficial ownership of those shares for which appraisal rights are asserted was acquired before
that date; and
(ii)  That the shareholder did not vote for the transaction;
(b)  State:
(i)   Where the form must be sent and where certificates for certificated shares must be deposited and the date by
which those certificates must be deposited, which date may not be earlier than the date for receiving the required form
under subsection (2)(b)(ii) of this section;
(ii)  A date by which the corporation must receive the form, which date may not be fewer than forty (40) nor more
than sixty (60) days after the date the appraisal notice and form in subsection (1) of this section are sent, and state that
the shareholder shall have waived the right to demand appraisal with respect to the shares unless the form is received
by the corporation by such specified date;
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(iii) The corporation’s estimate of the fair value of the shares;
(iv)  That, if requested in writing, the corporation will provide, to the shareholders so requesting, within ten (10) days
after the date specified in subsection (2)(b)(ii) of this section the number of shareholders who return the forms by the
specified date and the total number of shares owned by them; and
(v)   The date by which the notice to withdraw under section 30-1-1323 , Idaho Code, must be received, which date
must be within twenty (20) days after the date specified in subsection (2)(b)(ii) of this section; and
(c)  Be accompanied by a copy of this part.

30-1-1323.PERFECTION OF RIGHTS -- RIGHT TO WITHDRAW.  (1) A shareholder who receives notice pursuant
to section 30-1-1322 , Idaho Code, and who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must certify on the form sent by the
corporation whether the beneficial owner of such shares acquired beneficial ownership of the shares before the date
required to be set forth in the notice pursuant to section 30-1-1322 (2)(a), Idaho Code. If a shareholder fails to make
this certification, the corporation may elect to treat the shareholder’s shares as after-acquired shares under section
30-1-1325 , Idaho Code. In addition, a shareholder who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must execute and return the
form and, in the case of certificated shares, deposit the shareholder’s certificates in accordance with the terms of the
notice by the date referred to in the notice pursuant to section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(ii), Idaho Code. Once a shareholder
deposits that shareholder’s certificates or, in the case of uncertificated shares, returns the executed forms, that
shareholder loses all rights as a shareholder, unless the shareholder withdraws pursuant to subsection (2) of this
section.
(2)  A shareholder who has complied with subsection (1) of this section may nevertheless decline to exercise appraisal
rights and withdraw from the appraisal process by so notifying the corporation in writing by the date set forth in the
appraisal notice pursuant to section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(v), Idaho Code. A shareholder who fails to so withdraw from the
appraisal process may not thereafter withdraw without the corporation’s written consent.
(3)  A shareholder who does not execute and return the form and, in the case of certificated shares, deposit that
shareholder’s share certificates where required, each by the date set forth in the notice described in section 30-1-1322
(2), Idaho Code, shall not be entitled to payment under this part.

30-1-1324.PAYMENT.  (1) Except as provided in section 30-1-1325 , Idaho Code, within thirty (30) days after the
form required by section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(ii), Idaho Code, is due, the corporation shall pay in cash to those
shareholders who complied with section 30-1-1323 (1), Idaho Code, the amount the corporation estimates to be the
fair value of their shares, plus interest.
(2)  The payment to each shareholder pursuant to subsection (1) of this section must be accompanied by:
(a)  Financial statements of the corporation that issued the shares to be appraised, consisting of a balance sheet as of
the end of a fiscal year ending not more than sixteen (16) months before the date of payment, an income statement for
that year, a statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for that year, and the latest available interim financial
statements, if any;
(b)  A statement of the corporation’s estimate of the fair value of the shares, which estimate must equal or exceed the
corporation’s estimate given pursuant to section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(iii), Idaho Code; and
(c)  A statement that shareholders described in subsection (1) of this section have the right to demand further payment
under section 30-1-1326 , Idaho Code, and that if any shareholder does not do so within the time period specified
therein, such shareholder shall be deemed to have accepted such payment in full satisfaction of the corporation’s
obligations under this part.

30-1-1325.AFTER-ACQUIRED SHARES.  (1) A corporation may elect to withhold payment required by section
30-1-1324 , Idaho Code, from any shareholder who did not certify that beneficial ownership of all of the shareholder’s
shares for which appraisal rights are asserted was acquired before the date set forth in the appraisal notice sent
pursuant to section 30-1-1322 (2)(a), Idaho Code.
(2)  If the corporation elected to withhold payment under subsection (1) of this section, it must, within thirty (30) days
after the form required by section 30-1-1322 (2)(b)(ii), Idaho Code, is due, notify all shareholders who are described
in subsection (1) of this section:
(a)  Of the information required by section 30-1-1324 (2)(a), Idaho Code;
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(b)  Of the corporation’s estimate of fair value pursuant to section 39-1-1324 (2)(b) [30-1-1324(2)(b)], Idaho Code;
(c)  That they may accept the corporation’s estimate of fair value, plus interest, in full satisfaction of their demands or
demand appraisal under section 30-1-1326 , Idaho Code;
(d)  That those shareholders who wish to accept such offer must so notify the corporation of their acceptance of the
corporation’s offer within thirty (30) days after receiving the offer; and
(e)  That those shareholders who do not satisfy the requirements for demanding appraisal under section 30-1-1326 ,
Idaho Code, shall be deemed to have accepted the corporation’s offer.
(3)  Within ten (10) days after receiving the shareholder’s acceptance pursuant to subsection (2) of this section, the
corporation must pay in cash the amount it offered under subsection (2)(b) of this section to each shareholder who
agreed to accept the corporation’s offer in full satisfaction of the shareholder’s demand.
(4)  Within forty (40) days after sending the notice described in subsection (2) of this section, the corporation must
pay in cash the amount it offered to pay under subsection (2)(b) of this section to each shareholder described in
subsection (2)(e) of this section.

30-1-1326.PROCEDURE IF SHAREHOLDER DISSATISFIED WITH PAYMENT OR OFFER.  (1) A shareholder
paid pursuant to section 30-1-1324 , Idaho Code, who is dissatisfied with the amount of the payment must notify the
corporation in writing of that shareholder’s estimate of the fair value of the shares and demand payment of that
estimate plus interest, less any payment under section 30-1-1324 , Idaho Code. A shareholder offered payment under
section 30-1-1325 , Idaho Code, who is dissatisfied with that offer must reject the offer and demand payment of the
shareholder’s stated estimate of the fair value of the shares plus interest.
(2)  A shareholder who fails to notify the corporation in writing of that shareholder’s demand to be paid the
shareholder’s stated estimate of the fair value plus interest under subsection (1) of this section within thirty (30) days
after receiving the corporation’s payment or offer of payment under section 30-1-1324 or 30-1-1325 , Idaho Code,
respectively, waives the right to demand payment under this section and shall be entitled only to the payment made or
offered pursuant to those respective sections.

30-1-1330.COURT ACTION.  (1) If a shareholder makes demand for payment under section 30-1-1326 , Idaho Code,
which remains unsettled, the corporation shall commence a proceeding within sixty (60) days after receiving the
payment demand and petition the court to determine the fair value of the shares and accrued interest. If the corporation
does not commence the proceeding within the sixty-day period, it shall pay in cash to each shareholder the amount
demanded pursuant to section 30-1-1326 , Idaho Code, plus interest.
(2)  The corporation shall commence the proceeding in the appropriate court of the county where the corporation’s
principal office is located, or, if none in this state, Ada county. If the corporation is a foreign corporation, it shall
commence the proceeding in the county in this state where the principal office of the domestic corporation merged
with the foreign corporation was located or, if the domestic corporation did not have its principal office in this state at
the time of the transaction, in Ada county.
(3)  The corporation shall make all shareholders, whether or not residents of this state, whose demands remain
unsettled parties to the proceeding, as in an action against their shares, and all parties must be served with a copy of
the petition. Nonresidents may be served by registered or certified mail or by publication as provided by law.
(4)  The jurisdiction of the court in which the proceeding is commenced under subsection (2) of this section is plenary
and exclusive. The court may appoint one (1) or more persons as appraisers to receive evidence and recommend a
decision on the question of fair value. The appraisers shall have the powers described in the order appointing them, or
in any amendment to it. The shareholders demanding appraisal rights are entitled to the same discovery rights as
parties in other civil proceedings. There shall be no right to a jury trial.
(5)  Each shareholder made a party to the proceeding is entitled to judgment:
(a)  For the amount, if any, by which the court finds the fair value of the shareholder’s shares, plus interest, exceeds the
amount paid by the corporation to the shareholder for such shares; or
(b)  For the fair value, plus interest, of the shareholder’s shares for which the corporation elected to withhold payment
under section 30-1-1325 , Idaho Code.
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30-1-1331.COURT COSTS AND COUNSEL FEES.  (1) The court in an appraisal proceeding commenced under
section 30-1-1330 , Idaho Code, shall determine all costs of the proceeding, including the reasonable compensation
and expenses of appraisers appointed by the court. The court shall assess the costs against the corporation, except that
the court may assess costs against all or some of the shareholders demanding appraisal, in amounts the court finds
equitable, to the extent the court finds such shareholders acted arbitrarily, vexatiously, or not in good faith with
respect to the rights provided by this part.
(2)  The court in an appraisal proceeding may also assess the fees and expenses of counsel and experts for the
respective parties, in amounts the court finds equitable:
(a)  Against the corporation and in favor of any or all shareholders demanding appraisal if the court finds the
corporation did not substantially comply with the requirements of section 30-1-1320 , 30-1-1322 , 30-1-1324 or
30-1-1325 , Idaho Code; or
(b)  Against either the corporation or a shareholder demanding appraisal, in favor of any other party, if the court finds
that the party against whom the fees and expenses are assessed acted arbitrarily, vexatiously, or not in good faith with
respect to the rights provided by this part.
(3)  If the court in an appraisal proceeding finds that the services of counsel for any shareholder were of substantial
benefit to other shareholders similarly situated, and that the fees for those services should not be assessed against the
corporation, the court may award to such counsel reasonable fees to be paid out of the amounts awarded to
shareholders who were benefited.
(4)  To the extent the corporation fails to make a required payment pursuant to section 30-1-1324 , 30-1-1325 or
30-1-1326 , Idaho Code, the shareholder may sue directly for the amount owed and, to the extent successful, shall be
entitled to recover from the corporation all costs and expenses of the suit, including counsel fees.
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PRELIMINARY COPY

ATLAS MINING COMPANY
110 GREENE STREET
SUITE 1101
NEW YORK, NY 10012

VOTE BY INTERNET — www.proxyvote.com
Use the internet to transmit your voting instructions
and for electronic delivery of information up until
11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the cut-off
date or meeting date.  Have your proxy card in hand
when you access the web si te  and fol low the
instructions to obtain your records and to create an
electronic voting instruction form.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY
MATERIALS
If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our
company in mailing proxy materials, you can consent
to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards
and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the
Internet.  To sign up for electronic delivery, please
follow the instructions above to vote using the internet
and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to
receive or access proxy materials electronically in
future years.
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VOTE BY PHONE — 1-800-690-6903
Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting
instructions up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day
before the cut-off date or meeting date.  Have your
proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the
instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in
the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return
it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes
Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS
ATLAS MINING COMPANY

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON OCTOBER 27, 2009: The Notice of Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, Proxy Statement and the Annual Report to Shareholder are available on the following
website:  www.proxyvote.com.

◄ FOLD AND DETACH HERE ►

[Missing Graphic Reference]

Please mark your votes as indicated in this example:

Proposal 1 - Election of Directors
The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR four nominees for Director to serve until the 2010 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
1.1 ANDRE ZEITOUN o o o
1.2 DAVID TAFT o o o
1.3 MORRIS WEISS o o o
1.4 EVAN STONE o o o
1.5 JOHN LEVY o o o

Proposal 2- To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
to change the name of the Company to Applied Minerals, Inc.

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
Proposal 2 o o o

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Amendment.
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Proposal 3 - To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
to increase the authorized number of shares of Company Common
Stock from 60,000,000 to 120,000,000

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
Proposal 3 o o o

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Amendment.

Proposal 4 - To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
to authorize preferred stock whose terms can be determined by the
board of directors

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
Proposal 4 o o o

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Amendment

Proposal 5- To approve an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
to provide that the number of directors is to be fixed from time to time
by resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
Proposal 5 o o o

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Amendment.

[Missing Graphic Reference]

Proposal 6- To approve the reincorporation of the Company into the State of
Delaware through a merger with a newly-formed, wholly-owned
Delaware subsidiary

FOR AGAINST WITHHOLD
Proposal 6 □ □ □

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Reincorporation

Signature must be that of him/herself. If shares are held jointly, each shareholder named should sign. If the signer is a
corporation, please sign the full corporate name by duly authorized officer. If the signer is a partnership, please sign
partnership name by authorized person. Executors, administrators, trustees, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, etc., should
so indicate when signing.

Signature Signature
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Date

NOTE: Please sign as name appears hereon. Joint owners should each sign. When signing as attorney, executor,
administrator, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such.

Mark Here for Address Change or Comments (SEE REVERSE)  □

◄ FOLD AND DETACH HERE ►
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SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ATLAS MINING COMPANY

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

The undersigned hereby appoints Andre Zeitoun and Christopher T. Carney or either of them, with power of
substitution, proxies for the undersigned and authorizes them to represent and vote, as designated, all the shares of
stock of the Company which the undersigned may be entitled to vote at
_______________________________________________, on October 27, 2009, at 11:00 a.m. Eastern time, and at
any adjournment of such meeting, for the following purposes and with discretionary authority as to any other matters
that may properly come before the meeting, as recommended by the Board of Directors, all in accordance with and as
described in the Notice and accompanying Proxy Statement.

If this Proxy is executed by you without indicating voting instructions then it will be deemed to grant authority to vote
FOR the nominees for director, FOR each of the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation set forth in Proposals 2,
3, 4, and 5, and FOR the reincorporation.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. A majority of said proxies, including any
substitutes, or if only one of them be present then that one, may exercise all powers granted hereunder at said meeting
or any adjournment thereof. This proxy revokes any proxy to vote such shares at such meeting or any adjournment
thereof heretofore given by the undersigned to anyone other than those named above.

Address Change/Comments
(Mark the corresponding box on the reverse side)
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(Continued and to be marked, dated and signed, on the other side)

[Missing Graphic Reference]

THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS ARE FILED PURSUANT TO NOTE D.4. OF SCHEDULE 14A. THE
FOLLOWING MATERIALS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO THE PROXY STATEMENT, BUT
ARE NOT SET FORTH IN THE PROXY STATEMENT.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Historically, our primary source of revenue has been generated by Contract Mining operations.  However, on
December 31, 2008, we discontinued our Contract Mining efforts due to economic conditions and the desire to
concentrate efforts on commercializing the halloysite clay deposit at the Dragon Mine.

We are a natural resources company principally engaged in the development of our resource property, the Dragon
Mine, in the state of Utah.

Property Exploration

In August 2001, we acquired the Dragon Mine in Juab, Utah and began our clay exploration.  Our exploration and
development expenses for the year ending December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $390,999 and $1,449,526, respectively,
on the halloysite clay project.

The activities at our Dragon Mine property, located in Juab County, Utah, were suspended in October 2007 when
previous management determined that both a resource survey and an appropriate processing facility were needed
before the property could be successfully commercialized.  In 2008, a geological consulting firm was hired by us to
both carry out a detailed geological review of the property and develop an appropriate method by which to process the
mineral resource.  This work is ongoing as of the date of this report.  Beginning in 2009, we began processing material
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from the mine and distributing samples to potential customers as part of a preliminary marketing program. The
geological consulting firm referred to above has sub-contracted with a firm with expertise in the development of
mineral processing to identify an appropriate processing system for the Company.  Any subsequent reference to a
geological consulting firm may be assumed to include the firm currently being contracted to identify the processing
system.

Management believes that the clay resource found at the Dragon Mine property possesses, among other things, certain
structural and mineralogical characteristics that may possibly add functionality to applications such as, but not limited
to, the controlled release of biological and chemical agents, polymer-related strengtheners and fire retardants, oil field
drilling minerals, catalyst carriers, filtration technologies, hydrogen storage for fuel cells and cosmetics.  For certain
of the aforementioned applications, management believes the Dragon Mine resource has the potential to serve as a
more effective alternative to the materials upon which these current technologies are established. Other
above-mentioned applications are being developed to specifically utilize the structural characteristics of the clay
resource.

The Dragon Mine property contains halloysite, kaolinite, alunite and other minerals located underground and in waste
piles that are the result of previous mining operations.  The geological resource survey being conducted on the Dragon
Mine has involved the assessment of approximately 10,000 feet of borehole drill cores and the analysis of samples
taken from the five waste piles located at the mine site.  The survey has included X-ray diffraction analysis to
determine the levels of halloysite, kaolinite and other minerals found in the resource.  Initial studies have indicated
that conventional processing may be used to separate the halloysite and kaolinite fractions from alunite and other
minerals found in the Dragon Mine resource.  The geology of the deposit shows alterations of feldspar identified along
side the presence of monzanite, halloysite and kaolinite.  Purer halloysite found at the mine has been identified along
side the presence of iron ore.  The morphology of the halloysite identified at the Dragon Mine, as determined by
Scanning Electron Microscopy (“SEM”) analysis, demonstrates the existence of both lath-like and tubular
formations.  The kaolinite present at the Dragon Mine has been determined to possess a highly crystalline structure.
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NaturalNano, Inc. (OTC: NNAN), in conjunction with Cascade Engineering and its subsidiary, Noble Polymers, has
developed Pleximer ™, a halloysite nanotube concentrate used to create stronger, lighter, environmentally friendlier and
lower-cost polymer-based nanocomposites.  According to NaturalNano’s 2008 annual report, Pleximer ™ is being
marketed to the global nanocomposites market that, in the estimation of BCC Research, is expected to grow from
$273 million in 2005 to $4.0 billion by 2015.  According to BCC Research, clay-based nanocomposites are expected
to represent 47% of the nanocomposites market by 2010.  The U.S. Department of the Navy, represented by the Naval
Research Lab (NRL”), has patented a technology that provides for the controlled release of active agents using
inorganic tubules such as halloysite clay.  The U.S. Navy’s technology has been licensed by at least two companies
that are developing controlled-release applications for the fields of electromagnetic shielding/strength enhancement,
cosmetics, fragrances, agriculture, ink and paper, electronics, fabrics and textiles, local drug delivery and
mold-resistant building products.  The U.S. Navy has also patented a technology that permits a controlled release of an
active agent as an anti-scaling treatment for environments such as oil wells.

As of the date of this report, a study is being conducted to identify the applications for which the Dragon Mine
resource may provide functionality. Processed clay samples have been distributed to potential customers who have
requested halloysite and/or halloysite-kaolinite mixtures.  A number of advanced applications to which the Company
plans to market its resource are currently using plate-like structured clays that must undergo expensive exfoliation
process to achieve proper functionality.  The tubular morphology of the Dragon Mine resource does not require such
an exfoliation process to achieve similar or, in many instances, greater functionality.  Management, therefore, believes
that it may be able to deliver its processed mineral to market at price points lower than those of competing clays,
without sacrificing performance.

In addition to certain advanced applications previously mentioned, we believe the Dragon Mine resource may also be
marketed to certain established, low-tech applications such as, but not limited to, fine porcelain, bone china,
high-performance advanced technical ceramics, paint fillers, suspension agents, animal feed, cement hardeners, and
food and pharmaceutical additives.  Markets, such as fine porcelain and bone china, would likely require the Dragon
Mine clay resource be processed for increased brightness and reduced presence of titanium whereas applications, such
as a cement hardener, would require a relatively unprocessed version of the Dragon Mine resource.  Management, as
part of its overall business strategy, will continually assess the economic feasibility of pursuing potential markets.

Management believes that both existing and potential applications that utilize the Dragon Mine resource will require
varying grades of clay to satisfy the unique technical requirements of each application.  Some applications may
require pure halloysite, composed of tubular and/or lath-shaped particles while other applications may require a grade
of clay consisting of a specific halloysite-kaolinite ratio.  The determination of the appropriate grade of clay will likely
require significant technical cooperation between the Company and the developer of the related application.  As
previously mentioned, the Company has hired a consulting firm to identify a processing system capable of producing
the grades of clay required by potential applications.  The identification of such a system is ongoing.

In 2009, the Company entered into a development agreement with Yuri M. Lvov, Ph.D., a professor of chemistry at
Louisiana Tech University and the T.C. Pipes Eminent Endowed Chair on Micro and Nanosystems at the Institute for
Micromanufacturing (LaTech).  The scope of the agreement includes, among other things, the development of the
Dragon Mine halloysite as part of an anti-corrosion paint application in addition to the development of other emerging
applications.

Management intends to continue to focus its efforts on the commercialization of the Dragon Mine.  We do not intend
to seek out and acquire other properties.
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GOING CONCERN

The independent auditors' report accompanying our December 31, 2008 financial statements contains an explanatory
paragraph expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.  The financial statements
have been prepared "assuming that we will continue as a going concern," that contemplates that we will realize our
assets and satisfy our liabilities and commitments in the ordinary course of business.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been identified by management as policies critical to the Company’s financial
reporting:

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis.  Specific reserves are estimated by management based on
certain assumptions and variables, including the customer’s financial condition, age of the customer’s receivables, and
changes in payment histories.  As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, no allowance for doubtful accounts was
considered necessary.  Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries of trade receivables
previously written off are recorded when received.

Impairment of Assets
In August 2001 Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”) established a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale,
including discontinued operations.  SFAS No. 144 requires that these long-lived assets be measured at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or discontinued
operations.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no impairments were recognized.

Mining Exploration and Development Costs
Land and mining property acquisitions are carried at cost.  The Company expenses prospecting and mining
exploration costs.  At the point when a property is determined to have proven and probable reserves, subsequent
development costs are capitalized as capitalized development costs. Capitalized development costs will include
acquisition costs and property development costs.  When these properties are developed and operations commence,
capitalized costs will be charged to operations using the units-of-production method over proven and probable
reserves.  Upon abandonment or sale of a mineral property, all capitalized costs relating to the specific property are
written off in the period abandoned or sold and a gain or loss is recognized.  We may never own a property with
proven or probably reserves.

Provision for Income Taxes
Income taxes are calculated based upon the liability method of accounting in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”).  In accordance with SFAS
No. 109, deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences between the
tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each year end.  A valuation allowance is
recorded against deferred tax assets if management does not believe the Company has met the “more likely than not”
standard imposed by SFAS No. 109 to allow for recognition of such an asset.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting
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period.  In these financial statements, assets and liabilities involve extensive reliance on our estimates.  Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when earned.  The Company's revenue recognition policies are in compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 and 104.

Revenue for Contract Mining services is recognized once a contract with a fixed and determinable fee has been
established, the services have been rendered, and collection is reasonably assured.

Revenue for mined halloysite clay will be recognized upon shipment and customer acceptance once a contract with a
fixed and determinable fee has been established and collection is reasonably assured or the resulting receivable is
deemed probable.

Stock Options and Warrants
The Company has stock option plans that provide for stock-based employee compensation, including the granting of
stock options, to certain key employees. The plans are more fully described in Note 6. Prior to January 1, 2006, the
Company applied APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations in
accounting for awards made under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans.  Under this method, compensation
expense was recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the
exercise price.

During the periods presented in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R using the modified-prospective transition method and the disclosures that follow are based on
applying SFAS No. 123R.  Under this transition method compensation expense recognized during the three months
ended March 31, 2007 included:  (a) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet
vested as of January 1, 2007, and (b) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted on or after January 1,
2007.  Accordingly, compensation expense of $427,432 and $666,002 has been recognized for vesting of options to
employees and directors in the accompanying statements of operations for the period ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Management is evaluating the application of the following recent accounting pronouncements to our financial
statements, including applicability and financial impact:

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, “ Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for
the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly .” This FSP
provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. This FSP
also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly. This FSP emphasizes
that even if there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability and
regardless of the valuation technique(s) used, the objective of a fair value measurement remains the same. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction (that is, not a
forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions. FSP FAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, and is
applied prospectively. The Company does not believe that the implementation of this standard will have a material
impact on its financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “ Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments ”. This FSP amends FASB Statement No. 107, “ Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments ” to
require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies
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as well as in annual financial statements. This FSP also amends APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to
require those disclosures in summarized financial information at interim reporting periods. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB
28-1 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company does not believe
that the implementation of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.
In April  2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2,  “ Recognition and Presentation of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments ”. This FSP amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt
securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of
other-than-temporary impairments in the financial statements. The most significant change the FSP brings is a
revision to the amount of other-than-temporary loss of a debt security recorded in earnings. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS
124-2 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company does not
believe that the implementation of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.

In November of 2008, the SEC released a proposed roadmap regarding the potential use by U.S. issuers of financial
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). IFRS is a comprehensive
series of accounting standards published by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). Under the
proposed roadmap, the Company may be required in fiscal 2015 to prepare financial statements in accordance with
IFRS. However, the SEC will make a determination in 2011 regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS. The
Company is currently assessing the impact that this potential change would have on its consolidated financial
statements, and will continue to monitor the development of the potential implementation of IFRS.

In March 2009, FASB unanimously voted for the FASB “ Accounting Standards Codification ” (the “Codification”) to be
effective beginning on July 1, 2009. Other than resolving certain minor inconsistencies in current United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), the Codification is not supposed to change GAAP, but is
intended to make it easier to find and research GAAP applicable to particular transactions or specific accounting
issues. The Codification is a new structure that takes accounting pronouncements and organizes them by
approximately ninety accounting topics. Once approved, the Codification will be the single source of authoritative
U.S. GAAP. All guidance included in the Codification will be considered authoritative at that time, even guidance that
comes from what is currently deemed to be a non-authoritative section of a standard. Once the Codification becomes
effective, all non-grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification will become
non-authoritative.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF"), the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"), and the SEC did not or are not believed by us to have
a material impact on our present or future financial statements.

On December 31, 2008, the Company adopted FSP No. FAS 133-1 and FIN No. 45-4, “Disclosures about Credit
Derivatives and Certain Guarantees: An Amendment of FAS No. 133 and FIN No. 45; and Clarification of the
Effective Date of FAS No. 161.” The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

On December 31, 2008, the Company adopted FSP No. FAS 140-4 and FIN No. 46(R)-8, “Disclosures by Public
Entities (Enterprises) about Transfers of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities.” This FSP amends
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” and
FIN No. 46 (revised December 2003) to require enhanced disclosures by public entities in understanding the extent of
a transferor’s continuing involvement with transferred financial assets and an enterprise’s involvement with VIEs. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Refer to Financial
Note 9, “Financing Activities” for further discussion regarding the accounts receivable sales facility.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS No.
141 and provides revised guidance for recognizing and measuring identifiable assets and goodwill acquired, liabilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. It also provides disclosure requirements to enable users of
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the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the Company’s consolidated financial statements that will become
effective on December 31, 2009.
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In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” FSP No.
FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to
determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
that will become effective for the Company on December 31, 2009.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issue Task Force (“EITF”) 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments
Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 concluded that
unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents
(whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of basic earnings per
share pursuant to the two-class method. This FSP becomes effective on December 31, 2009. Early adoption of the FSP
is not permitted; however, it will apply retrospectively to the Company’s earnings per share as previously reported. The
Company does not currently anticipate that this FSP will have a material impact upon adoption.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues from operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $3,833,460, versus $7,731,081 for the same
period ending December 31, 2007, a decrease of 50.4%.  The difference was due to a decline in activity of the
Contract Mining operation during December 31, 2008. All revenue was associated with the contract mining operation
and has been classified as discontinued operations for both the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Gross profit (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $ $946,071 compared to $3,018,419 for the same period
ended December 31, 2007, a decrease of 69%.  This was due to a decline in activity at the contract mining
operation.  All gross profit was associated with the contract mining operation and has been classified as part of
discontinued operations for both the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $5,017,027 compared to $5,217,705 for the
same period ended December 31, 2007.  The decrease is primarily due to the suspension of activity at the Dragon
Mine in late 2007, which was carried through the entire year ended December 31, 2008.

Our net profit (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2008 was ($5,420,269) compared to ($1,681,716) for the same
period ending December 31, 2007, or a decrease of ($3,738,553).  The difference is due to a significant increase in
legal and special investigation expenses, coupled with the sharp decrease in contract mining revenues.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Through December 31, 2008 our activities had been financed primarily through revenues from contract mining and
supplemented with the sale of equity securities and borrowings as needed.  For the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007, contract mining accounted for 100% of revenue.  Our current asset and debt structure is explained below.

Our total assets as of December 31, 2008 were $4,506,116 compared to $6,271,643 as of December 31, 2007, or a
decrease of $1,765,527.  For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company has decreased its current assets by
$1,375,873, and decreased its fixed assets by $1,745,858 through the disposition of mining equipment and vehicles.

Total liabilities $2,309,118 at December 31, 2008 compared to $1,702,224 at December 31, 2007.  The Company had
notes payable of $115,836 and $121,052 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The Company had capital
leases of $159,769 and $97,420 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Current liabilities including accounts payable and accrued expenses were $803,752 and $486,973, respectively, and
are the result of daily operations and accrued taxes.  We also carry a liability of $52,415 to the minority interest in a
subsidiary and stock awards payable of $52,500 and $280,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Our principal sources of cash flow during the year 2008 was from contract mining activities which provided an
average of $319,532 per month for the year ended December 31, 2008 and averaged $643,802 per month for the same
period in 2007.  We rely on our credit facilities and public or private sales of equity for additional cash flow.

Cash flow from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $3,290,793 compared to $2,029,860
for the same period in 2007, a difference of $1,260,933.  The major factor for the difference was receipt of proceeds
from issuance of convertible debt in 2008.

The Company provided $98,423 from investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to using
$991,804 in the same period in 2007, a difference of $1,090,227.  This was attributed to disposals of equipment during
the year 2008.

Cash flows provided by (used by) operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $(3,696,836)
compared to $(44,537) for the same period in 2007, a difference of $3,652,299.

ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE DEBT

On December 30, 2008 the Company sold to accredited investors $1,000,000 principal amount of Series 10%
PIK-Election Convertible Notes due 2018 (the “Notes”) at a conversion price of $0.35 per share (the “Conversion Price”)
and entered into a Registration Rights Agreement in connection with the shares of common stock to be issued upon
conversion of the Notes.  The principal under the Notes is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration or
conversion of the Notes as described below.  The Notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable (including
by issuance of additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each year
commencing June 15, 2009.

The Notes may be converted at the option of the Noteholder at any time there is sufficient authorized unissued
common stock of the Company available for conversion.  The Notes will be mandatorily converted when (i) sufficient
common stock is available for conversion all notes in the Series, (ii) the average closing bid price or market price of
the Company’s common stock for the preceding five (5) trading days is above the Conversion Price and (iii) a
registration statement is effective and available for resale of all of the converted shares or the Noteholders may sell
such shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

There are no off-balance sheet arrangements between us and any other entity that have, or are reasonable likely to
have, a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results
of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources that is material to investors.
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ITEM 7A.                        QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company has no exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currencies, or other market factors.

ITEM 8.                   FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are included herein at Item 15. Financial statement schedules are omitted as
they are not applicable or the information required is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During the two years ended December 31, 2006, there were no disagreements Chisholm, Bierwolf, & Nilson LLC
(“Chisholm”), the independent registered public accounting firm, whether or not resolved, on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to the
former accountant's satisfaction, would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement(s)
in connection with its report.  Chisholm did not advise us that

1.   internal controls necessary to develop reliable financial statements did not exist; or

2.   information has come to its attention which made the accountant unwilling to rely on management's
representations, or unwilling to be associated with the financial statements prepared by management; or

3.the scope of the audit should be expanded significantly, or information has come to its attention that it had
concluded will, or if further investigated might, materially impact the fairness or reliability of a previously issued
audit report or the underlying financial statements, or the financial statements issued or to be issued covering the
fiscal period(s) subsequent to the date of the most recent audited financial statements (including information that
might preclude the issuance of an unqualified audit report).

On August 20, 2008, the Board of Directors engaged PMB Helin Donovan LLP (“PMB”) as our independent registered
public accounting firm, and simultaneously dismissed Chisholm.

The engagement of PMB as our independent registered public accounting firm included auditing financial information
for the years ended December 31, 2006 as well as performing audit procedures for the year ended December 31,
2007.  Additional services engaged also include quarterly reviews of financial information beginning with the first
quarter ended March 31, 2006.

ITEM 16. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Atlas Mining Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Atlas Mining Company  (“the Company”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive  (loss),
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended.  These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Atlas Mining Company at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its
operations, stockholders’ equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern. As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has an accumulated
deficit from operations and a net deficiency in working capital that raises doubts about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are described in Note 2.  The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
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As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying 2007 financial statements have
been restated to show the comparable financial categorization reflecting operations discontinued in 2008.

PMB Helin Donovan, LLP

Spokane, Washington
July 23, 2009

F-1
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December
31,

December
31,

2008 2007
Restated

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 903,001 $ 1,210,621
Accounts receivable 44 - 0 -
Accounts receivable – related party - 0 - 1,618
Investments – available for sale 5,426 4,886
Deposits and prepaids 282,306 331,625

Total Current Assets 1,190,776 1,548,750

Property and Equipment
Land and tunnels 523,729 523,729
Land improvements 91,835 91,835
Buildings 445,197 445,197
Mining equipment 389,492 855,863
Milling equipment 99,855 181,080
Laboratory equipment 75,968 75,968
Office furniture and equipment 37,962 37,962
Vehicles 65,763 140,124
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (287,040) (320,853)

Total Property and Equipment 1,442,761 2,030,905

Other Assets
Assets from discontinued operations
being held for sale 1,872,577 2,691,988
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Total Other Assets 1,872,577 2,691,988

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,506,114 $ 6,271,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Restated

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 741,885 $ 595,552
Stock awards payable 52,500 280,000
Current portion of notes payable 115,836 84,887
Current portion of leases payable 41,004 35,842

Total Current Liabilities 951,225 996,281

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term portion of leases payable 118,765 159,484

Total Long-Term Liabilities 118,765 159,484

Other Liabilities
Convertible debt (PIK Notes) 1,000,000 - 0 -
Liabilities from discontinued operations 239,128 546,459

Total Other Liabilities 1,239,128 546,459

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,309,118 1,702,224

Commitments and Contingencies - 0 - - 0 -

Minority Interest 52,415 52,415

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 10,000,000
shares authorized, noncumulative, nonvoting,
nonconvertible, none issued or outstanding - 0 - - 0 -
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Common stock, no par value, 60,000,000
shares authorized, 59,215,628 and
54,173,594 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 22,155,543 19,108,111
Accumulated deficit (20,009,496) (14,589,101)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,466) (2,006)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,144,581 4,517,004

                        TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 4,506,114 $ 6,271,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

For the year ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Restated

REVENUES $ - 0 - $ - 0 -

COST OF SALES - 0 - - 0 -

Gross Profit - 0 - - 0 -

OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSES:
Exploration & development costs 390,999 1,449,526
Mining production costs 965,660 947,266
General & administrative 3,118,588 2,892,004
Disposition of land and equipment 232,392 (115,497)
Loss on abandonment of equipment - 0 - 44,406
Total Operating Expenses 4,707,639 5,217,705

Net Operating Loss (4,707,639) (5,217,705)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 25,977 56,873
Interest expense (85) (20,744)
Gain on revaluation of stock awards 227,500 646,000
Realized loss on securities available for sale - 0 - (414)
Special investigation fees and expenses (1,479,279) - 0 -
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Other income (expense) (1,056) 15,000
Bad debt (281,163) (179,145)
Total Other Income (Expenses) (1,508,106) 517,570

Loss before income taxes (6,215,745) (4,700,135)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes - 0 - - 0 -
Minority interest in loss - 0 - - 0 -

Net Loss Before Discontinued Operations (6,215,745) (4,700,135)

Net income from discontinued operations 795,350 3,018,419

Net Loss After Discontinued Operations $ (5,420,395) $ (1,681,716)

Per Share Information (Basic and Diluted):
Net loss per share before income taxes $ (0.11) $ (0.09)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes, per share (- 0 -) (- 0 -)
Minority interest, per share (- 0 -) (- 0 -)
Net loss per share before discontinued operations (0.11) (0.09)
Income per share from discontinued operations 0.01 (0.06)
Net Loss Per Share After Discontinued Operations $ (0.10) $ (0.03)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 56,340,783 53,504,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

For the year ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Restated

Net Loss $ (5,420,395) $ (1,681,716)

Comprehensive Gain:
Change in Market Value of Investments 540 2,792

Net Comprehensive Loss $ (5,419,855) $ (1,678,924)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Accumulated
Other Total

Accumu- Comprehensive Stock-
Preferred Stock Common Stock lated Income holders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit (Loss) Equity

Beginning
Balance,
January 1, 2007 - 0 - $- 0 - 51,278,334 $16,087,361 $(12,907,385 ) $ (4,798 ) $3,175,178

Shares issued for
redemption of
warrants between
$0.25 and $0.50
for cash and
bonus - 0 - - 0 - 323,430 150,858 - 0 - - 0 - 150,858

Shares issued for
cash at $1.35 - 0 - - 0 - 1,481,482 2,000,001 - 0 - - 0 - 2,000,001

Shares issued for
settlement of
debt - 0 - - 0 - 4,592 8,633 - 0 - - 0 - 8,633

Shares issued in
conversion of
minority interest
shares - 0 - - 0 - 1,000 - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Shares issued for
options exercised
at $0.18 for cash
and
compensation - 0 - - 0 - 833,330 149,999 - 0 - - 0 - 149,999

Shares issued in
cashless exercise
of options for
compensation - 0 - - 0 - 251,426 45,257 - 0 - - 0 - 45,257

Net change in
unrealized gain
(loss) on
available for sale

- 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 2,792 2,792
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securities

Employee
stock-based
 compensation - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 666,002 - 0 - - 0 - 666,002

Net loss - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - (1,681,716 ) - 0 - (1,681,716 )

Balance,
December 31,
2007 - 0 - - 0 - 54,173,594 19,108,111 (14,589,101 ) (2,006 ) 4,517,004

Shares issued for
cash between
$0.50 and $0.60 - 0 - - 0 - 4,833,333 2,500,000 - 0 - - 0 - 2,500,000

Shares issued for
directors fees
between $0.49
and $0.71 - 0 - - 0 - 208,701 120,000 - 0 - - 0 - 120,000

Employee stock
based
compensation - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 427,432 - 0 - - 0 - 427,432

Net change in
unrealized gain
(loss) on
available for sale
securities - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 540 540

Net loss - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - (5,420,395 ) - 0 - (5,420,395 )

Balance,
December 31,
2008 - 0 - $- 0 - 59,215,628 $22,155,543 $(20,009,496 ) $ (1,466 ) $2,144,581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended
December 31,

2008 2007
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Restated
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (5,420,395) $ (1,681,716)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to
net cash used in operations:
Depreciation 435,622 376,228
Non-cash exercise of warrants for bonus - 0 - 35,000
Non-cash exercise of options for compensation - 0 - 45,257
Stock issued for directors services 120,000 - 0 -
Employee stock-based compensation 427,432 666,002
Other non-cash compensation expense - 0 - 926,000
Gain on revaluation of stock awards (227,500) (646,000)
Realized loss on securities available for sale - 0 - 414
(Gain) loss on disposition of equipment 232,392 (115,497)
Loss on abandonment of equipment - 0 - 44,406
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable (44) 876,355
Accounts receivable – related party 1,618 - 0 -
Mining supplies - 0 - 2,000
Deposits and prepaids 49,319 (162,002)
Advances - 0 - 618
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 146,333 108,579
Stock award payable - 0 - 280,000
Net cash  used in operating activities (4,235,223) 755,644

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of land and land improvements - 0 - (28,048)
Purchases of equipment - 0 - (1,158,958)
Disposal of land and equipment - 0 - 195,202
Net cash provided by used in investing activities - 0 - (991,804)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on notes payable (131,040) (118,516)
Payments on leases payable (35,555) (14,652)
Proceeds from notes payable 161,989 125,948
Proceeds from PIK notes payable 1,000,000 - 0 -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2,500,000 2,265,859
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,495,397 2,258,639

Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 432,206 (1,028,960)

Net increase (decrease) in cash (307,620) 993,519

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,210,621 217,102

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 903,001 $ 1,210,621
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(continued)
For the year ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Restated

Cash Paid For:
Interest $ 63,743 $ 20,744
Income Taxes $ - 0 - $ - 0 -

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash
Investing and Financing Activities:
Equipment financed though leasing $ - 0 - $ 468,219
Shares issued for settlement of debt $ - 0 - $ 8,633

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Atlas Mining Company, (“the Company”) was incorporated in the state of Idaho on March 4, 1924.  The Company was
formed for the purpose of exploring and developing the Atlas Mine, a consolidation of several patented mining claims
located in the Coeur d’Alene Mining District near Mullan, Idaho.  The Company eventually became inactive as a result
of low silver prices.  In September 1997, the Company became active again.  During the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, the Company provided shaft sinking, underground mine development and mine labor primarily to
companies in the mining and civil engineering industries. Historically, the Company’s contract mining operation has
been its sole source of revenue and income.

In 1998 and 1999, the Company exchanged 71,238 shares of its common stock for 53% of the outstanding shares of
Park Copper and Gold Mining, Ltd. (“Park Copper”), an Idaho corporation Park Copper holds mining claims in northern
Idaho.

In July 2001, the Company began leasing the Dragon Mine from Conjecture Silver Mines, Inc. of Spokane,
Washington.  The Company issued 100,000 shares of stock for each year of the lease for the years 2002 – 2005 and
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exercised the right to purchase the mine on August 18, 2005 for $500,000 in cash.  The property consists of 38
patented mining claims on approximately 230 acres.

NanoClay and Technologies, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary dedicated to the marketing of the Dragon Mine’s clay
resource for use in, but not limited to, specialty ceramic, controlled release and polymer applications.

The Company operated a contract mining business under the trade name Atlas Fausett Contracting (“AFC”).  AFC was
engaged in exploration and mine development as well as preparatory work such as site evaluation, feasibility studies,
trouble-shooting and consultation.  AFC's projects include all types of underground mine development, rehabilitation
and diamond drilling.  On December 31, 2008, the Company discontinued its contract mining efforts due to economic
conditions and the desire to concentrate efforts on commercializing the halloysite clay deposit at the Dragon
Mine.  There are no plans to resume the contract mining business.

In October 2007, management announced its intention to cease development activities at the mine until both a
resource survey and an appropriate system to processing system could be obtained.  During 2008, the Company hired
a geological consulting firm it believes is capable of conducting the necessary resource survey and identifying an
appropriate processing system.

NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred material
recurring losses from operations. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had accumulated deficits of
$20,009,496 and $14,589,101, respectively, in addition to limited cash and unprofitable operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company sustained net losses before discontinued operations of $6,215,745 and
$4,700,135. These factors indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification
of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may be necessary should the Company
be unable to continue as a going concern. The Company's continuation as a going concern is contingent upon its
ability to obtain financing and to generate revenue and cash flow to meet its obligations on a timely basis and
management's ability to raise equity financing as required. If successful, this will mitigate these factors that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist in understanding the financial statements.  The
financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management, which is responsible for their
integrity and objectivity.  These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Accounting Method
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The Company’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis.  Specific reserves are estimated by management based on
certain assumptions and variables, including the customer’s financial condition, age of the customer’s receivables, and
changes in payment histories.  As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, no allowance for doubtful accounts was
considered necessary.  Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries of trade receivables
previously written off are recorded when received.

Available for Sale Investments
In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “ Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities ,” the shares are
evaluated quarterly using the specific identification method. Any unrealized holding gains or losses are reported as
Other Comprehensive Income and as a separate component of stockholder's equity.  Realized gains and losses are
included in earnings.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Compensated Absences
Certain employees of the Company at the management level are paid vacation pay.  At the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, the Company accrued compensated absences of $7,500 for both years.  The balance of unpaid,
accrued compensation absences at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $15,000 and $15,000, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Company, at times, maintains cash balances in excess of the federally insured limit of $250,000 and $100,000 per
institution in 2008 and 2007, respectively.  In December 2008, the Company's bank entered into the FDIC Temporary
Liquidity Guarantee Program, which eliminated the ceiling on federally insured deposits.  The Company had
$653,001 and $1,110,621 of uninsured balances as of December 31, 2008 or 2007.

The Company had unsecured investment, available for sale, with a fair value of $5,426 and $4,886 at December 31,
2008 and December 31, 2007 respectively.

Accounts receivable are typically unsecured.  The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’
financial condition.  It generally requires no collateral and maintains reserves for potential credit losses on customer
accounts, when necessary.  As of December 31, 2008, 50% accounts receivable were attributable to one customer.  As
of December 31, 2007, 62% of accounts receivable were attributable to two customers 
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company received 81% and 79%, respectively, of contract
service revenue from two of its major customers noted as follows:

% of % of
2008 Customers Revenues Receivables
Customer A 35% 50%
Customer B 46% 0%

% of % of
2007 Customers Revenues Receivables
Customer A 38% 6%
Customer B 41% 56%

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, which provides for calculation of
“basic” and “diluted” earnings per share. The computation of earnings (loss) per share of common stock is based on the
weighted average number of shares outstanding at the date of the financial statements.  The computation of diluted
earnings per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year plus the
common stock equivalents that would arise from the exercise of stock options and warrants outstanding under the
treasury method and the average market price per share during the year. Common stock equivalents at December 31,
2008 consisted of 625,000 in options.  Common stock equivalents at December 31, 2007 consisted of 2,688,577 in
options.  Common stock equivalents at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were considered but were not included in the
computation of loss per share at December 31, 2008 and 2007 because they would have been anti-dilutive.

Net Loss Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

For the year ended December 31, 2008:
Basic EPS
Net loss to common shareholders $ (5,420,395 ) 56,40,783 $(0.10 )

For the year ended December 31, 2007:
Basic EPS
Net loss to common shareholders $ (1,681,716 ) 53,504,206 $(0.03 )

At December 31, 2008, the Company did not have sufficient authorized unissued common stock available for
conversion of all common stock equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company measures its financial assets and liabilities in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.  SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” requires certain disclosures regarding the fair value of financial
instruments.  For certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short
maturities.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and for interim periods within those years.  This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related disclosure requirements.  The statement
indicates, among other things, that a fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer a
liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability based upon an exit price model.

SFAS No. 157 prescribes a fair value hierarchy in order to increase consistency and comparability in fair value
measurements and related disclosures.  The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of
inputs as follows:

·  Level 1 – Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets.  Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and
regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not
entail a significant degree of judgment.

·  Level 2 – Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for
which all significant inputs are observable, directly or indirectly.  Quoted
prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially
the full term of the assets or liabilities.

·  Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the
overall fair value measurement.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with SFAS 157, the following table represents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for its short-term
investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2008:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investment security, available for sale $5,426 $- 0 - $- 0 - $5,426

Total $5,426 $- 0 - $- 0 - $5,426
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had the following available-for-sale securities that were in an
unrealized loss position but were not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, adjusted in connection with the
Company’s provision for income taxes.

Years Ended December
31,

2008 2007
Unrealized Losses
Gross accumulated unrealized losses $(1,466 ) $(2,006 )
Adjustment from deferred tax assets - 0 - - 0 -
Net accumulated unrealized gains (losses) $(1,466 ) $(2,006 )

Impairment of Assets
In August 2001, SFAS No. 144, “ Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ,” established a
single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, including discontinued operations.  SFAS No.
144 requires that these long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell,
whether reported in continuing operations or discontinued operations.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no
impairments were recognized.

Mining Exploration and Development Costs
Land and mining property acquisitions are carried at cost.  The Company expenses prospecting and mining
exploration costs.  At the point when a property is determined to have proven and probable reserves, subsequent
development costs are capitalized as capitalized development costs. Capitalized development costs will include
acquisition costs and property development costs.  When these properties are developed and operations commence,
capitalized costs will be charged to operations using the units-of-production method over proven and probable
reserves.  Upon abandonment or sale of a mineral property, all capitalized costs relating to the specific property are
written off in the period abandoned or sold and a gain or loss is recognized.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, all costs associated with the Company's mines have been expensed.

Mining Supplies
Mining supplies, consisting primarily of bits, steel, and other mining related equipment, are recorded as mining
supplies and charged to cost of goods sold when used.  In addition, equipment repair parts and maintenance items are
also included at cost.  The amounts held in mining supplies at December 31, 2008 and 2007 have been reclassified to
discontinued operations.

Minority Interest
Minority interest represents the 47% minority share interest in Park Copper and Gold, held by several shareholders.

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, one wholly owned
subsidiary, and a majority owned subsidiary.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Estimated
Useful Life

Building 30 years
Mining equipment 2 – 7 years
Office and shop furniture and equipment 5 – 7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 totaled $435,622 and $376,228, respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes
Income taxes are calculated based upon the liability method of accounting in accordance with the SFAS No. 109, “
Accounting for Income Taxes .”  In accordance with SFAS No. 109, deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the
tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial
reporting amounts at each year end.  A valuation allowance is recorded against deferred tax assets if management does
not believe the Company has met the “more likely than not” standard imposed by SFAS No. 109 to allow for recognition
of such an asset.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes.”  The Interpretation requires that realization of an uncertain income tax position must be
estimated as “more likely than not” (i.e., greater than 50% likelihood of receiving a benefit) before it can be recognized
in the financial statements.  Further, the Interpretation requires the recognition of tax benefits recorded in the financial
statements to be based on the amount most likely to be realized assuming a review by tax authorities having all
relevant information.  The Interpretation also clarifies the financial statement classification of tax-related penalties and
interest and sets forth new disclosures regarding unrecognized tax benefits.  The Company adopted the Interpretation
in the first quarter 2007.  The Company had minimal impact from adoption of this Interpretation.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the 2007 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2008 discontinued
operations presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of accumulated deficit.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in the period that the related services are performed and collectability is reasonably
assured.  For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company derived substantially all of its revenues
from leasing equipment and employees for mine development, site evaluation, and preparatory work. Services
contracts generally took the form of fixed-price contracts.  Under fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognized as
services are performed; with performance generally assessed using output measures, such as feet excavated.  Changes
in the scope of work generally result in a renegotiation of contract pricing terms or a contract amendment. 
Renegotiated amounts are not included in net revenues until earned and realization is assured. Historically, costs are
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expensed as incurred.  All out-of-pocket costs are included in expenses.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue for mined halloysite clay, if any, will be recognized upon shipment and customer acceptance once a contract
with a fixed and determinable fee has been established and collection is reasonably assured or the resulting receivable
is deemed probable.

Stock Options and Warrants
The Company has stock option plans that provide for stock-based employee compensation, including the granting of
stock options, to certain key employees. The plans are more fully described in Note 7. Prior to January 1, 2006, the
Company applied APB Opinion No. 25, “ Accounting   for Stock Issued to Employees, ” and related Interpretations in
accounting for awards made under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans.  Under this method, compensation
expense was recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the
exercise price.

During the periods presented in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified-prospective transition method and the disclosures that follow are based on
applying SFAS No. 123(R).  Under this transition method, compensation expense recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2007 included:  (a) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested
as of January 1, 2007, and (b) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted on or after January 1,
2007.  Accordingly, compensation expense of $427,432 and $666,002 has been recognized for vesting of options to
employees and directors in the accompanying statements of operations for the period ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

The Company accounts for the issuance of equity instruments to acquire goods and services based on the fair value of
the goods and services or the fair value of the equity instrument at the time of issuance, whichever is more reliably
measurable.

Tax Collected from Customers
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-3, “ How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental
Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement ” allows the Company’s management to determine whether
sales tax or other excise taxes applied to specific types of transactions or items will be presented on a gross basis
(included in revenue) or net basis (excluded from revenues).  During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
the Company’s revenues were from Contract Mining through labor only contracts.  Taxing authorities in the
jurisdictions where these services were performed either did not require collection of sales tax or equivalent excise
taxes, or provided the Company’s customers sales tax exemptions status as the primary business conducted was
mining.  Therefore, at the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, no sales tax or other equivalent excise taxes were
collected or remitted to taxing authorities.

Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  In these financial statements assets and liabilities involve extensive reliance on
management’s estimates.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, “ Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for
the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly .” This FSP
provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. This FSP
also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly. This FSP emphasizes
that even if there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability and
regardless of the valuation technique(s) used, the objective of a fair value measurement remains the same. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction (that is, not a
forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions. FSP FAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, and is
applied prospectively. The Company does not believe that the implementation of this standard will have a material
impact on its financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “ Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments ”. This FSP amends FASB Statement No. 107, “ Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments ” to
require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies
as well as in annual financial statements. This FSP also amends APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to
require those disclosures in summarized financial information at interim reporting periods. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB
28-1 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company does not believe
that the implementation of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, “ Recognition and Presentation of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments ”. This FSP amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt
securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of
other-than-temporary impairments in the financial statements. The most significant change the FSP brings is a
revision to the amount of other-than-temporary loss of a debt security recorded in earnings. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS
124-2 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company does not
believe that the implementation of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.

In November of 2008, the SEC released a proposed roadmap regarding the potential use by U.S. issuers of financial
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). IFRS is a comprehensive
series of accounting standards published by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). Under the
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proposed roadmap, the Company may be required in fiscal 2015 to prepare financial statements in accordance with
IFRS. However, the SEC will make a determination in 2011 regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS. The
Company is currently assessing the impact that this potential change would have on its consolidated financial
statements, and will continue to monitor the development of the potential implementation of IFRS.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)
In March 2009, FASB unanimously voted for the FASB “ Accounting Standards Codification ” (the “Codification”) to be
effective beginning on July 1, 2009. Other than resolving certain minor inconsistencies in current United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), the Codification is not supposed to change GAAP, but is
intended to make it easier to find and research GAAP applicable to particular transactions or specific accounting
issues. The Codification is a new structure that takes accounting pronouncements and organizes them by
approximately ninety accounting topics. Once approved, the Codification will be the single source of authoritative
U.S. GAAP. All guidance included in the Codification will be considered authoritative at that time, even guidance that
comes from what is currently deemed to be a non-authoritative section of a standard. Once the Codification becomes
effective, all non-grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification will become
non-authoritative.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF"), the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"), and the SEC did not or are not believed by us to have
a material impact on our present or future financial statements.

On December 31, 2008, the Company adopted FSP No. FAS 133-1 and FIN No. 45-4, “Disclosures about Credit
Derivatives and Certain Guarantees: An Amendment of FAS No. 133 and FIN No. 45; and Clarification of the
Effective Date of FAS No. 161.” The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

On December 31, 2008, the Company adopted FSP No. FAS 140-4 and FIN No. 46(R)-8, “Disclosures by Public
Entities (Enterprises) about Transfers of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities.” This FSP amends
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” and
FIN No. 46 (revised December 2003) to require enhanced disclosures by public entities in understanding the extent of
a transferor’s continuing involvement with transferred financial assets and an enterprise’s involvement with VIEs. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Refer to Financial
Note 9, “Financing Activities” for further discussion regarding the accounts receivable sales facility.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS
No. 141 and provides revised guidance for recognizing and measuring identifiable assets and goodwill acquired,
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. It also provides disclosure requirements to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the Company’s consolidated financial statements that
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will become effective on December 31, 2009.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” FSP
No. FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to
determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
that will become effective for the Company on December 31, 2009.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)
In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issue Task Force (“EITF”) 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments
Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 concluded that
unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents
(whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of basic earnings per
share pursuant to the two-class method. This FSP becomes effective on December 31, 2009. Early adoption of the FSP
is not permitted; however, it will apply retrospectively to the Company’s earnings per share as previously reported. The
Company does not currently anticipate that this FSP will have a material impact upon adoption.

NOTE 4 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

At December 31, 2008, the Company permanently discontinued its contract mining operations.  There are no plans to
resume the contract mining business.

Under SFAS No. 144, “ Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ,” the Company has identified
assets attributed to the discontinued operation that are being held for sale or have been identified as part of the
discontinued operation and have been identified as such.  Assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 attributed to the
discontinued operation are as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007

Accounts receivable $ 336,237 $ 911,710
Mining supplies 40,544 40,544
Property and equipment 1,495,796 1,739,734
Total assets from discontinued operations $ 1,872,577 $ 2,691,988

On April 15, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement for appointment of agent for the sale of assets with
AAMCOR LLC (“the Agreement”).  Under the Agreement, the Company agreed to (i) sell certain of the equipment of
its discontinued contract mining business to AAMCOR for $300,000 in cash plus a potential share in proceeds of
resale of such items, and (ii) appointed AAMCOR exclusive agent to sell certain other non-core equipment deemed
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unnecessary for development of the Company’s Dragon Mine property.

Liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007 attributed to the discontinued are as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 105,468 $ 208,200
Leases Payable 133,660 338,259
Total assets from discontinued operations $ 239,128 $ 546,459
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 4 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Income after discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was calculated as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2008 2007

Income from discontinued operations $ 795,350 $ 3,018,419
Income tax liability - 0 - - 0 -
Net income from discontinued operations $ 795,350 $ 3,018,419

The Company does not believe there is an effect of income taxes on discontinued operations.  Due to ongoing
operating losses, the uncertainty of future profitability and limitations on the utilization of net operating loss
carry-forwards under IRC Section 382 a valuation allowance has been recorded to fully offset the Company’s deferred
tax asset.  See Note 9.

NOTE 5 – STOCK AWARD PAYABLE

On July 9, 2007, Robert Dumont was awarded common stock as part of his employment agreement with the
Company.  Per the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Dumont was to receive a total of 500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, subject to certain conditions.  The shares were to be issued on the anniversary date of his
employment agreement, in various increments.  Per the employment agreement, the first 250,000 shares of common
stock vested upon signing of the agreement on July 9, 2007.  At that time, the Company recorded a liability of
$685,000 in stock awards payable.  On November 28, 2007, Mr. Dumont resigned from his position as CEO and as a
member of the board of directors.  Upon his resignation, the remaining, unvested stock award of 250,000 shares was
forfeited.  The 250,000 shares that had vested remain on the Company’s balance sheet as a stock award payable.

On August 8, 2007, John Gaensbauer, the then Executive Vice President of Business Development of the Company,
was awarded common stock as part of his employment agreement with the Company.  Per the terms of his
employment agreement, Mr. Gaensbauer was to receive a total of 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock,
subject to certain conditions.  The shares were to be issued on the anniversary date of his employment agreement, in
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various increments.  Per the employment agreement, the first 100,000 shares of common stock vested upon signing of
the agreement on August 8, 2007.  At that time, the Company recorded a liability of $241,000 in stock awards
payable.  On November 28, 2007, Mr. Gaensbauer resigned from his position as CEO and as a member of the board of
directors.  Upon his resignation, the remaining, unvested stock award of 150,000 shares was forfeited.  The 100,000
shares that had vested remain on the Company’s balance sheet as a stock award payable.

Under the requirements of SFAS 123R, the Company reviews the value of the stock award and will adjust the carrying
value to market based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the last day of the quarter.  Any
adjustment made to the carrying value of the stock award is recorded as a gain or loss on revaluation of stock
awards.  For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company realized a gain on the revaluation of stock
awards totaling $227,500 and $646,000, respectively.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the total stock award payable
to Messrs. Dumont and Gaensbauer was $52,500 and $280,000, respectively.
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NOTE 6 – NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE

NOTES

Notes payable are detailed in the following schedules as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December
31,

December
31,

2008 2007

Note payable to an insurance company due in monthly installments of $2,875,
including interest at 5.75%.  The note matures in April 2008 $ - 0 - $ 8,474

Note payable to a company due in monthly installments of $1,605, including interest at
17.10%.  The note matures in April 2009 and is collateralized by equipment. - 0 - 27,691

Note payable to two insurance companies due in monthly installments, including
interest at 8.60%.  The notes mature in July and May 2009 and 2008. 115,836 84,887

Total Notes Payable 115,836 121,052
Less:  Current Portion (115,836) (111,571)

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ - 0 - $ 9,481

Future minimum principal payments on notes payable are as follows:

2009 $115,836
Total $115,836
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At December 31, 2008, $38,165 of the December 31, 2007 notes payable balances have been reclassified to
discontinued operations.
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NOTE 6 – NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

CAPITIAL LEASES
The Company is a lessee of certain equipment under capital leases that expire on various dates through March 2012.
Terms of the leases call for monthly payments ranging from $1,632 to $3,518 at implicit interest rate of 9.34% per
annum (the incremental borrowing rate).  The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at lease inception
at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the related assets.  The
assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

The following is a schedule by years of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2008:

2009 $ 61,800
2010 61,800
2011 61,800
2012 11,591
Total Minimum Lease Payments 186,551
Less:   Less: Amount Representing Interest (26,782)
Preset Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments 159,769
CurrenCurrent Net Minimum Lease Payments (41,004)
Long-LLong-Term Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 118,765

The following is an analysis of the leased property under capital leases by major classes:

December 31,
Classes of Property 2008 2007

Mining Equipment $ - 0 - $ 651,161
Vehicles - 0 - 78,373
Other 286,088 286,088
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (78,333) (164,114)
Total assets under capital lease $ 207,755 $ 851,508

At December 31, 2008, $302,094 of the December 31, 2007 capital lease balances have been reclassified to
discontinued operations and $729,534 of leased property has been reclassified to discontinued operations.
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OPERATING LEASES

The Company had rental expense under operating leases of $27,000 and $9,900 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.  At the end of September 2007, the Company entered into a rental lease agreement for its office space
with its then CEO at a rate of $3,300 per month.  The lease was month to month and was terminable by either party
with thirty days written notice.  The Company terminated the lease the beginning of December 2007.

At the end of December 2007, the Company entered into a rental lease agreement for its office space with an unrelated
third party.  The lease was a one-year, non-terminable lease through the end of 2008 with an option to purchase the
property.  The monthly rent during the first year was $2,250 per month.  In December 2008, the lease was not renewed
nor was the property purchased.  The Company relocated its offices under a month-to-month rental agreement at $550
per month.
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NOTE 7 – RELATED PARTIES

The Company is a related party to Clearwater Mines, Inc. (“Clearwater”), an entity with common officers (William
Jacobson) and directors (William Jacobson).  During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company paid $3,188 to
Clearwater as a stock assessment to retain ownership in Clearwater common stock.  At December 31, 2007,
Clearwater owed the Company $1,618 for services provided by the Company’s staff for the Clearwater common stock
assessment.

In January 2007, the Company received 502,090 shares of common stock in Clearwater for payment of a loan.  The
original loan amount of $50,000 was fully reserved as bad debt at the year ended December 31, 2005 as management
deemed the debt to be permanently uncollectible.  The shares received as payment –had no identifiable market value
and are held by the Company at a zero basis.

On March 19, 2007, the Company extended a short-term loan for $20,000 to KAT Exploration, a related party with
common ownership interest through its former CEO, William Jacobson.  The loan does not have a defined payment
schedule, interest rate, termination date and is uncollateralized.  The Company believes that the probability of
collecting the principal value of the note is remote and has written off the amount as bad debt expense at December
31, 2007.

In September 2007, the Company entered into a rental lease for its office space with its then CEO, Robert Dumont.
See Note 5.

NOTE 8 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of noncumulative, non-voting, nonconvertible preferred stock,
$1.00 par value per share.  At the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, no shares of preferred stock were
outstanding.
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Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 60,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value per share.  At the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, 59,215,628 and 54,173,594 shares were issued and outstanding, respectively. At
December 31, 2008, the Company did not have sufficient authorized unissued common stock available for conversion
of all common stock equivalents.

2007
During the year ended December 31, 2007, 273,430 warrants held by several unaffiliated individuals were exercised
for shares of restricted common stock at prices ranging between $0.25 and $0.70 per share for a total of $135,858 in
cash.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company purchased a warrant for 50,000 shares of its common stock
from a shareholder for $20,000.  This warrant was subsequently granted to and exercised in a cashless exercise by Mr.
Price, a Company employee.  This warrant was granted to Mr. Price to satisfy a bonus of $35,000 due to him by the
Company.

IBS Capital exchanged a stock subscription agreement for 1,481,482 shares of restricted stock at a price of $1.35 per
share for a total of $2,000,001 in cash.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company issued a total of 4,592 shares of stock for $8,633 settlement
of debt. In addition, the Company exchanged 1,000 shares of its common stock for a minority interest shareholder’s
shares of common stock in Park Copper and Gold.
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NOTE 8 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s former CEO, William Jacobson exercised 833,330 options
for shares of common stock for $149,999 in cash ($0.18 per share). These options were originally granted October 1,
2004.

The Company issued 251,426 shares of restricted common stock at $0.18 per share for a non-cash exercise of options
for $45,257 in accrued compensation.

2008
During the year ended December 31, 2008, IBS Capital exchanged stock subscription agreements for 4,283,333 shares
of restricted, common stock at a price range between $0.50 and $0.60 per share for a total of $2,200,000 in
cash.  Additional exchanges of stock subscription agreements for 550,000 shares of restricted, common stock at a
price range between $0.50 and $0.60 per share, for a total of $300,000 in cash, also occurred.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company issued a total of 208,701 shares of restricted, common stock
to directors as payment of director fees.  The value of such shares was recorded at $120,000.
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NOTE 9 – OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

2002 Consultant Plan
On August 27, 2002, the Company adopted a ten-year stock option plan (“2002 Consultant Plan”) authorizing granting
non-employee/non-director consultants, who provide bona fide consulting services, options to purchase common
stock.

In August 2002, originally under the 2002 Consultant Plan, the Company filed a form S-8 authorizing 5,000,000
shares.  During 2003 and 2004, the Company amended Form S-8 authorizing an additional 8,000,000 and 5,000,000
shares, respectively.

The term of each option granted is determined by the committee and cannot be for more than five years from the date
the option is granted.  The option price per share with each option granted is defined as 85% of market value.  At
December 31, 2008 and 2007, all options were immediately exercised upon grant.

During the years 2002 through 2005, the Company issued S-8 shares to individuals who were not eligible to receive
S-8 shares pursuant to the rules of the 2002 Consultant Plan.  The Company issued 14,635,370 S-8 shares for
$3,467,226 in violation of the rules of the plan.  During the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2005, 1,941,277
shares were issued from the plan for $481,432 which were not in violation of the plan.  As of December 31, 2008 and
2007, the Company had issued a total of 16,646,647 S-8 shares under the 2002 Consultant Plan.  At December 31,
2008 and 2007, 1,353,353 shares remained under the plan.

Non-qualified Stock Option Plan
In November 1998, the Company adopted a Non-qualified Stock Option Plan authorizing the granting to officers,
directors, and employees options to purchase common stock.  The plan became effective January 13, 1997 and expired
10 years after such date.  Options were to be granted by the Administrative Committee, which was to be elected by the
Board of Directors.  The number of options granted under this plan and any other plans active was not exceed 10% of
the currently issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock and no individual may be granted options
that exceed 5% of the currently issued and outstanding shares of the Company.  The term of each option granted was
to be determined by the Committee and could not be for more than five years from the date the option was
granted.  The Administrative Committee was to set the exercise price of the option on the date of grant.  At December
31, 2008, the plan was expired.
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NOTE 9 – OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

Incentive Stock Option Plan
In November 1998, the Company adopted an Incentive Stock Option Plan. The plan expired 10 years from the date of
adoption.  The stock option plan permitted the Company to grant to key employees options to purchase shares of stock
in the Company at the direction of the Committee. The options granted under this plan and any other active plans were
not to exceed 10% of the currently issued and outstanding shares of the common stock and no individual was to be
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granted options that exceeded 5% of the currently issued and outstanding common stock of the Company.  The price
of shares purchased was to be equal to or greater than the fair market value of the common stock at the date with a
term of 5 years.  At December 31, 2008, the plan was expired.

During 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an option to Ronald Price, the then CEO of the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary, Nano Clay and Technologies, Inc., to acquire up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock over
a two-year period.  The first 500,000 shares were exercisable within a range of $1.51 to $1.48 per share, and the
remaining 500,000 shares were exercisable at 85% of the common stock price on given anniversary dates.  These
options were issued under the Non-qualified Stock Option Plan.  The options vested 25% on July 14, 2006, January
14, 2007, July 14, 2007, and January 14, 2008.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded $427,432
and $666,002, respectively, in option-related compensation expense.  Option-related compensation expense incurred
in 2008 was attributable to Jacobson ($88,151), Price ($290,600), Lyon ($35,328) and Weiss
($13,353).  Option-related compensation expense incurred in 2007 was attributable to Jacobson ($88,151) and Price
($577,851).

During 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an option to the William Jacobson, the then CEO of Atlas
Mining Company to acquire up to 3,500,000 shares of common stock over a five-year period at $0.18 per
share.  These options were issued under the 1998 Non-qualified Stock Option Plan. 1,500,000 options vested on
January 1, 2005 and the Company recorded $200,200 in compensation expense in accordance with APB 25. 500,000
options vest each January 1, 2006 through 2009. At December 31, 2007, the Company recorded $88,151 of
compensation expense for the year then ended in accordance with SFAS 123 (R).

As a result of their respective resignations, unexercised options granted to both Price and Jacobson were cancelled.

During July 2007, the Company granted 4,000,000 options to its officers and employees pursuant to their employment
contracts.  These options were forfeited in November 2007 as a result of a breach of their respective contracts.  As of
December 31, 2007, no compensation expense was recorded for these grants.

Violation of Stock Issuances
During 2002 through 2004, the Company granted options in excess of the number allowable under the 1998
Non-qualified Stock Option Plan.  The Company granted options to purchase 9,679,048 shares that were in excess of
10% of the Company’s currently issued and outstanding shares during the period, pursuant to the rules of the 1998
Non-qualified Stock Option Plan.  The Company issued from this plan 3,850,000 options to purchase shares to
Jacobson, the former CEO, during 2002 – 2004 of which 350,000 terminated in 2004 under the 1998 Non-qualified
Stock Option Plan per employment contract terms.  In addition, 5,829,048 options were granted under the 2002
Consultant Plan to certain individuals to purchase shares of common stock.  These 5,829,048 options are discussed
above as part of the 16,646,647 disclosed in the 2002 Consultant Plan.

The Company is authorized to issue stock options under one existing stock option plan approved by stockholders. The
fair value of each of the Company’s stock option awards is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes
option-pricing model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below.  Expected volatility is based on an average of
historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.  The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life
of the stock option award is based on the yield curve of a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond on the date the award is
granted with a maturity equal to the expected term of the award.  The Company uses historical data to estimate
forfeitures within its valuation model.

F-24

[Missing Graphic Reference]

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

140



ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 9 – OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

The expected term of awards granted is derived from historical experience under the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans and represents the period of time that awards granted are expected to be outstanding.

The significant weighted average assumptions relating to the valuation of the Company’s options for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

2008 2007
Dividend Yield 0% 0%
Expected Life 5 years 3 - 5 years
Expected Volatility 39.65% - 86.91% 39.65% - 86.91%
Risk-Free Interest Rate 3.44% 3.44%

A summary of the status and changes of the options granted under the Company’s 1998 Non-qualified Stock Option
Plan and other agreements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 are as follows:

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Shares
Exercise
Price Shares

Exercise
Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 2,688,577 $ 0.70 3,773,333 $ 0.52
Granted 625,000 2.61 4,000,000 2.61
Exercised - 0 - - 0 - (1,084,756) 0.18
Forfeited (2,688,577) 0.66 (4,000,000) 2.61
Expired - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Outstanding at end of period 625,000 $ 0.70 2,688,577 $ 0.66
Exercisable at end of period 258,334 $ 0.70 1,438,577 $ 1.01

A summary of the status of the options outstanding at December 31, 2008 is presented below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise
Price Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

$
0.65 -
$0.71 75,000 4.5 years $ 0.69 75,000 $ 0.69

$ 0.70 550,000 4.83 years $ 0.70 183,334 $ 0.70
625,000 258,334
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The Company had 1,250,000 non-vested options at the beginning of the period with a weighted average grant date fair
value of $0.61 per share.  At December 31, 2008, the Company had 366,666 non-vested options with a weighted
average grant date fair value of $0.70 per share.  The unexercised options expire between July 1, 2013 and November
1, 2013.

At December 31, 2008, the total compensation cost of $29,268 for unvested shares is expected to be recognized over
the next 0.33 years on a weighted average basis.
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NOTE 10 – INCOME TAXES

At December 31, 2008, the Company had deferred tax assets principally arising from net operating loss carry-forwards
for income tax purposes.  The Company calculates its deferred tax assets using the federal tax rate of 35% and the
following state tax rates: Idaho (7.6%), Utah (5%) and Montana (6.75%), respectively.  Due to operating losses, the
uncertainty of future profitability and limitations on the utilization of net operating loss carry-forwards under IRC
Section 382, a valuation allowance has been recorded to fully offset the Company’s deferred tax asset.  In assessing the
realization of deferred tax assets, management determines whether it is more likely than not some, or all, of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized.  The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.  Management
considers projected future taxable income.  Management considers projected taxable income and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment.  Based upon the level of historical taxable losses and projected taxable losses
over the periods that the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the
Company will not realize the benefits of these deductible differences and thus recorded a valuation allowance against
the entire deferred tax asset balance.  As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the valuation allowances were $5,983,309
and $3,321,360, respectively.  The change in valuation allowance between 2008 and 2007 was $2,661,949.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $13,812,780
and $8,823,184 for federal income tax purposes, respectively.  The net operating loss carry-forwards are available to
be utilized against future taxable income through fiscal year 2028, subject to the Tax Reform Act of 1986, which
imposed substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating losses and tax credits in the event of an “ownership
change” as defined by the Internal Revenue Code.  Federal and state net operating losses are subject to limitations as a
result of these restrictions.  Under such circumstances, the Company’s ability to utilize its net operating losses against
future income may be reduced.

A reconciliation of the statutory of federal and state tax rates to the Company’s effective tax rates is as follows:

2008 2007

Statutory regular federal income tax rate 35% 35%
Statutory regular state income tax rate 19.35% 19.35%
Change in valuation allowance (53.35%) (53.35%)
Total 0% 0%
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NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
Expenditures for ongoing compliance with environmental regulations that relate to current operations are expensed or
capitalized as appropriate.  Expenditures resulting from the remediation of existing conditions caused by past
operations that do not contribute to future revenue generations are expensed.  Liabilities are recognized when
environmental assessments indicate that remediation efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

Estimates of such liabilities are based upon currently available facts, existing technology and presently enacted laws
and regulations taking into consideration the likely effects of inflation and other societal and economic factors, and
include estimates of associated legal costs.  These amounts also reflect prior experience in remediating contaminated
sites, other companies’ clean-up experience and data released by The Environmental Protection Agency or other
organizations.  Such estimates are by their nature imprecise and can be expected to be revised over time because of
changes in government regulations, operations, technology and inflation.  Recoveries are evaluated separately from
the liability and, when recovery is assured, the Company records and reports an asset separately from the associated
liability.

Based upon management’s current assessment of its environmental responsibilities, the Company cannot reasonably
estimate any reclamation or remediation liability that may occur in the future, if any.

AGREEMENTS
The Company had a commitment to Ronald Price under his employment agreement ratified by the Board of Directors
March 17, 2005.  Under the agreement Mr. Price was to receive compensation for a period of three years, increased
incrementally at the anniversary date of the agreement.  The agreement was to expire March 16, 2009.  Mr. Price
tendered his resignation in December 2008.  Under the terms of this agreement, compensation will continue to Mr.
Price through contract expiration.
For severance, Mr. Price will receive the aggregate sum of $50,000 over twelve subsequent months, paid in equal
monthly installments.  Supplemental details of the separation agreement are included in the Form 8-K filed by the
Company January 2009.

The Company has a commitment to Morris D. Weiss under an agreement dated October 31, 2008, ratified by the
Board of Directors November 18, 2008.  Under the agreement, Mr. Weiss was appointed the Chief Restructuring
Officer for a period of six months and is to receive monthly compensation of $16,667.  Mr. Weiss has been granted
the option to purchase 550,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  The agreement will expire in April
2009.  Supplemental details of the arrangement with Mr. Weiss are included in the Form 8-K filed by the Company
November 18, 2008.

On May 1, 2009, Mr. Weiss’ term as Chief Restructuring Officer ended.  At that time, a review of his performance was
assessed by the Board and the Board agreed to pay Mr. Weiss a bonus (as per the terms of his original agreement) in
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the amount of $100,000.  Such bonus would be payable in six monthly installments.  In addition to the compensation
specified in the contract, Mr. Weiss agreed to review the documentation to be generated in connection with the
negotiation of the final settlement agreements in the Class Action and the insurance coverage litigation involving the
Company for additional compensation.  As compensation for such services, the Board granted Mr. Weiss 100,000
options to acquire Company common stock with an exercise price of $0.70 per share, expiring in ten years, and
vesting on completion of the final settlement agreements.
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NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

LITIGATION
Various lawsuits, claims, proceedings and investigations are pending involving us as described below in this
section.  In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies , when applicable, the Company records
accruals for contingencies when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated.  In addition to the matters described herein, the Company is involved in or subject to, or may become
involved in or subject to, routine litigation, claims, disputes, proceedings and investigations in the ordinary course of
business, which in management’s opinion will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, cash flows
or results of operations.

NaturalNano
NaturalNano, Inc. (“NaturalNano”) has notified the Company that it believes it is in breach of an agreement entered with
NaturalNano in 2004, which included the following:

1.  The Company making available to NaturalNano a portion of its supply of
unprocessed clay at the Dragon Mine, and;

2.  A commitment by NaturalNano to process the clay at its expense, including an
agreement by NaturalNano to provide, at its expenses, technical, financial and
operating support to provide a particle separation and sizing process at the
Dragon Mine site.

As consideration for the agreement, NaturalNano paid $250,000 to Atlas and Atlas issued 750,000 warrants to
NaturalNano at an exercise price of $0.35.

NaturalNano has made a claim against the Company seeking to recover the $250,000 it believes is due to it as part of
the 2004 transaction.  The Company has made a counterclaim for monies received by NaturalNano from the sale of
Atlas warrants issued to NaturalNano.  As of the date of the filing of this report, NaturalNano has not filed a
lawsuit.  If a lawsuit were to be filed by NaturalNano, the Company would vigorously contest such a lawsuit.

Securities Litigation
The Company, certain of its directors and former officers and employees, its prior auditor, Chisolm, Bierwolf &
Nilson, LLC, and Nano Clay and Technologies, Inc. a now defunct, wholly-owned subsidiary, are defendants in a
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class action, filed on October 11, 2007, on behalf of purchasers of publicly traded common stock of the Company
during the period January 19, 2005 through October 8, 2007.  The First Amended Complaint (“Complaint”) alleges that
Atlas damaged purchasers by making material misstatements in publicly disseminated press releases and Securities
and Exchange Commission filings regarding the extent of the halloysite deposit on Company property, the availability
and quality of halloysite for sale, and claimed sales of halloysite.  The Complaint also alleges that management
improperly manipulated reported earnings with respect to purported halloysite sales.  The plaintiffs seek remedies
under Section 10(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder and for violations of Section 20(a)
of the Exchange Act.  The Company’s former officers and employees have requested, with respect to this action,
payment of their attorneys’ fees and indemnification.  Lead counsel in this case has been selected.  The Company has
indicated that it intends to vigorously defend this action.
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On July 2, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement (“Class Action Settlement Agreement”) with the
lead plaintiffs in the class action In Re Atlas Mining Company Securities Litigation pending in the United States
District Court for the District of Idaho, Civil Action No. 07-428-N-EJL (D. Idaho).

Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the Company will pay plaintiffs $1,250,000 (which includes fees to
plaintiff’s counsel), to be funded by the proceeds of an insurance policy, in exchange for release of all claims against
the Company, NanoClay & Technologies Inc., and the individual defendants William T. Jacobson, Robert Dumont,
Ronald Price and Barbara Suveg.  The Company will also fund up to $75,000 to fund expenses in connection with
notification to class members.  The settlement agreement is the agreement contemplated by the memorandum of
understanding entered into by the Company and the lead plaintiffs dated May 1, 2009 described in the 8-K filed by the
Company on May 4, 2009 (“the MOU”) and the terms of it are consistent with such MOU.

Related to the Class Action Settlement, effective July 8, 2009, Atlas entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release
with Navigators, RSUI Indemnity Company and RSUI Group, Alexander, Morford & Woo, Inc., and the individual
defendants listed above in settlement of the insurance litigation Atlas Mining Co. v. Navigators Insurance Co. et al.,
No. 1:08-cv-00359-EJL (D. Idaho) and Navigators Insurance Co. v. Atlas Mining Co., et. al., Case No.
2:08-cv-00216-EJL (D.Idaho).  Pursuant to this agreement (i) Navigators will deliver $1,250,000 into a court registry,
which will then be used upon final court approval of the Class Action Settlement to fund the $1,250,000 payment to
class action plaintiffs, (ii) Navigators will deliver $750,000 to the Company for defense and investigative costs in
connection with the Class Action and related matters, which Atlas will use in part to pay the individual defendants
their costs in the class action and (iii) all claims under the insurance litigation will be released upon final court
approval of the Class Action Settlement.

Also, related to the class action settlement, the Company has entered into a settlement agreement with Robert
Dumont, a former President, CEO and director of the Company, mutually releasing all claims related to Dumont’s
employment by the Company in consideration of the Company’s payment to Dumont of up to $258,000 for Dumont’s
attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the class action (to be funded from the insurance proceeds described above),
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insurance litigation, and other matters which the Company will fund with monies it receives from Navigators in
connection with the insurance litigation settlement.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

OTHER COMMITMENTS

Ronald Price
On December 12, 2008, Ronald Price resigned from the Company’s Board of Directors pursuant to the terms of a
separation agreement.  He also resigned as an officer and director of Nano Clay & Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of
the Company that has been administratively dissolved.  Pursuant to the Agreement Mr. Price will render certain
cooperation and services.  Pursuant to the Agreement until March 1, 2009, he will be paid amounts equal to the
compensation under his employment agreement (under which he was paid at the rate of $200,000 per year) with Nano
Clay & Technologies, Inc., which was terminated by the Agreement.  For the period from March 1, 2009 to February
28, 2010, he will be paid $50,000 on an annualized basis, to be paid in monthly installments of $4,167.

John F. Levy
On January 11, 2008, the Board of Directors appointed John Levy as the sole member of a special committee as more
fully described elsewhere.  As compensation for his duties as the sole member of this special committee, Mr. Levy
was entitled to receive compensation, in addition to his compensation as a member of the Board of Directors, of
$16,667 per month payable in advance on the first day of each month.  Mr. Levy was entitled to take up to one half of
this compensation in common stock.

On September 29, 2008, the Board of Directors extended to December 31, 2008 the charter of the special committee
formed by the Board of Directors on January 11, 2008.

In January 2009, the Board of Directors determined that the special committee had performed its intended function
and the committee was disbanded.

Morris D. Weiss
On November 18, 2008, the Company announced the appointment of Mr. Weiss as Chief Restructuring Officer.  His
duties will include oversight and management of litigation and property dispositions, advising the Board as to other
restructuring matters and such other matters as may be assigned to him by the Board.  Mr. Weiss was granted options
to purchase 550,000 shares of common stock at $0.70 per share.  The options vest as follows: (i) 41,667 shares vested
on the grant date, (ii) 41,667 shares vest on the first 3 monthly anniversaries of the grant date, (iii) 41,666 shares vest
on the next 2 monthly anniversaries of the grant date, and (iv) the remaining 300,000 shares will vest on the sixth
month anniversary of the grant date.  The issuance of the options and shares to Mr. Weiss is made in reliance upon the
exemption found in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

On May 1, 2009, Mr. Weiss’ term as Chief Restructuring Officer ended.  At that time, a review of his performance was
assessed by the Board and the Board agreed to pay Mr. Weiss a bonus (as per the terms of his original agreement) in
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the amount of $100,000.  Such bonus would be payable in six monthly installments.  In addition to the compensation
specified in the contract, Mr. Weiss agreed to review the documentation to be generated in connection with the
negotiation of the final settlement agreements in the Class Action and the insurance coverage litigation involving the
Company for additional compensation.  As compensation for such services, the Board granted Mr. Weiss 100,000
options to acquire Company common stock with an exercise price of $0.70 per share, expiring in ten years, and
vesting on completion of the final settlement agreements.

Michael Lyon
On June 30, 2008, the Company hired Michael Lyon, 64, as Chief Executive Officer and President for a six- month
period and entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Lyon.  The employment contract was for a period of six
months.  The agreement provided for cash compensation of $12,500 per month and for five-year options to purchase
50,000 shares of common stock at $0.65 per shares, the closing market price on June 30, 2008.  The shares vested
ratably on a monthly basis with the first vesting being on June 30, 2008.  In August 2008, Mr. Lyon was granted
options to purchase an additional 25,000 shares of common stock at $0.71 per share.  On December 30, 2008, Mr.
Lyon’s term as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company expired and Mr. Lyon stepped down as
President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement.
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NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

OTHER COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

David Taft
On October 17, 2008, the Board of Directors appointed David A. Taft as a director of the Company and determined
that Mr. Taft is to be compensated for his services as a director at the rate of $10,000 a quarter. At the election of Mr.
Taft, any such payment may be made in cash or in restricted common stock of the Company whose price shall be the
average price per share at the daily closing of the last five trading days leading up to the first business day of the
quarter to which such payment applies.  Issuance of shares to Mr. Taft will be made in reliance on the exemption
found in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

Material Advisors LLC
On December 30, 2008, the Company entered into a Management Agreement with Material Advisors LLC, a
management services company (“Manager”). The Management Agreement has a term ending on December 31, 2010
with automatic renewal for successive one-year periods unless either Manager or Company provides 90 days prior
notice of cancellation to the other party or pursuant to the termination provisions of the Management
Agreement.  Under the Management Agreement Manager will perform or engage others, including Andre Zeitoun, a
principal of Manager, Chris Carney and Eric Basroon (“Management Personnel”), to perform senior management
services including such services as are customarily provided by a chief executive officer but not (unless otherwise
agreed) services customarily provided by a chief financial officer.  Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Andre
Zeitoun will serve as Company’s Chief Executive Officer and will be appointed as a member of the Company’s Board
of Directors.
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The services provided by Manager will include, without limitation, consulting with the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Company’s management on business and financial matters.  Manager will be paid an annual fee of
$1,000,000 per year, payable in equal monthly installments of $83,333.  Manager will be solely responsible for the
compensation of the Management Personnel, including Mr. Zeitoun and the Management Personnel will not be
entitled to any direct compensation or benefits from the Company (including, in the case of Mr. Zeitoun, for service
on the Board).  The Company will grant Manager non-qualified stock options to purchase, for $0.70 per share (the
“$0.70 Option”) a number of shares of the Company equal to 10% of the outstanding common stock of the Company on
a fully diluted basis (which shall vest in equal monthly installments over three years).

Under certain very specific instances related to a going private transaction, the $0.70 option will be cancelled and
replaced by a non-qualified option (the “Going Private Option”) accompanied by a tandem stock appreciation right (the
“SAR”).  The term of the $0.70 Option, the Going Private Option and the SAR will be 10 years.  During their terms, the
Going Private Option and the SAR will be fully exercisable. If Company declares a dividend or distribution at any
time while the $0.70 option is unvested, Manager will be entitled to receive an amount equal to the dividend or
distribution that would be paid on the shares underlying the $0.70 Option, payable in the same form as such dividend
or distribution on the same vesting schedule as the $0.70 Option.  Manager will have the right to participate in a going
private transaction for up to 20% of the equity on terms and conditions, which are as favorable to Manager as the
terms and conditions available to any other person who invests in the going private entity.
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NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Christopher Carney
On February 17, 2009, the Board of Directors appointed Christopher Carney as interim Chief Financial Officer
effective February 17, 2009.  Mr. Carney will be compensated by Material Advisors LLC.

Securities and Exchange Commission
On March 9, 2009, the Company released a Form 8-K announcing that the SEC issued a formal order of investigation
of facts with respect to possible violations of the securities laws by the Company, its officers, directors, and affiliates
for the period of August 2002 through 2006.  The Special Committee of the Board of Directors investigated issuances
of equity securities and reported all findings to the SEC during 2008.  The Company intends to cooperate fully with
the SEC investigation.

Convertible Notes April 2009
Between April 7, and April 9, 2009, the Company sold to accredited investors $1,500,000 principal amount of Series
10% PIK-Election Convertible Notes due 2018 (the “Notes”) at a conversion price of $0.35 per share (the “Conversion
Price”) and entered into a Registration Rights Agreement in connection with the shares of common stock to be issued
upon conversion of the Notes.  The principal under the Notes is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration
or conversion of the Notes as described below.  The Notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable
(including by issuance of additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15th and December 15th of each
year commencing June 15, 2009.
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Convertible Notes May 2009
On May 1, 2009, the Company entered into agreements to sell to accredited investors $1,350,000 principal amount of
Series 10% PIK-Election Convertible Notes due 2018 (the “Notes”) at a conversion price of $0.50 per share (the
“Conversion Price”) and entered into a Registration Rights Agreement in connection with the shares of common stock to
be issued upon conversion of the Notes.  The principal under the Notes is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier
acceleration or conversion of the Notes as described below.  The Notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum
payable (including by issuance of additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15th and December 15th
of each year commencing June 15, 2009.

The Notes (April and May 2009) may be converted at the option of the Noteholder at any time there is sufficient
authorized unissued common stock of the Company available for conversion.  The Notes will be mandatorily
converted when (i) sufficient common stock is available for conversion all notes in the Series, (ii) the average closing
bid price or market price of the Company’s common stock for the preceding five (5) trading days is above the
Conversion Price and (iii) a registration statement is effective and available for resale of all of the converted shares or
the Noteholders may sell such shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

Sale of Non-Core Assets
Between April 1 and April 10, 2009, the Company sold certain equipment from its discontinued contract mining
business.  On April 15, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement for appointment of agent for the sale of assets
with AAMCOR LLC (“the Agreement”).  Under the Agreement, the Company agreed to (i) sell certain of the equipment
of its discontinued contract mining business to AAMCOR for $300,000 in cash plus a potential share in proceeds of
resale of such items, and (ii) appointed AAMCOR exclusive agent to sell certain other non-core equipment deemed
unnecessary for development of the Company’s Dragon Mine property.
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NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement
On July 2, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement (“Class Action Settlement Agreement”) with the
lead plaintiffs in the class action In Re Atlas Mining Company Securities Litigation pending in the United States
District Court for the District of Idaho, Civil Action No. 07-428-N-EJL (D. Idaho).

Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the Company will pay plaintiffs $1,250,000 (which includes fees to
plaintiff’s counsel), to be funded by the proceeds of an insurance policy, in exchange for release of all claims against
the Company, NanoClay & Technologies Inc., and the individual defendants William T. Jacobson, Robert Dumont,
Ronald Price and Barbara Suveg.  The Company will also fund up to $75,000 to fund expenses in connection with
notification to class members.  The settlement agreement is the agreement contemplated by the memorandum of
understanding entered into by the Company and the lead plaintiffs dated May 1, 2009 described in the 8-K filed by the
Company on May 4, 2009 (“the MOU”) and the terms of it are consistent with such MOU.

Related to the Class Action Settlement, effective July 8, 2009, Atlas entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release
with Navigators, RSUI Indemnity Company and RSUI Group, Alexander, Morford & Woo, Inc., and the individual
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defendants listed above in settlement of the insurance litigation Atlas Mining Co. v. Navigators Insurance Co. et al.,
No. 1:08-cv-00359-EJL (D. Idaho) and Navigators Insurance Co. v. Atlas Mining Co., et. al., Case No.
2:08-cv-00216-EJL (D.Idaho).  Pursuant to this agreement (i) Navigators will deliver $1,250,000 into a court registry,
which will then be used upon final court approval of the Class Action Settlement to fund the $1,250,000 payment to
class action plaintiffs, (ii) Navigators will deliver $750,000 to the Company for defense and investigative costs in
connection with the Class Action and related matters, which Atlas will use in part to pay the individual defendants
their costs in the class action and (iii) all claims under the insurance litigation will be released upon final court
approval of the Class Action Settlement.

Also, related to the class action settlement, the Company has entered into a settlement agreement with Robert
Dumont, a former President, CEO and director of the Company, mutually releasing all claims related to Dumont’s
employment by the Company in consideration of the Company’s payment to Dumont of up to $258,000 for Dumont’s
attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the class action (to be funded from the insurance proceeds described above),
insurance litigation, and other matters which the Company will fund with monies it receives from Navigators in
connection with the insurance litigation settlement.

ITEM 1.                      CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30,
December

31,
2009 2008

(Unaudited)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,598,374 $ 903,001
Accounts receivable 6,000 44
Investments – available for sale 3,920 5,426
Deposits and prepaids 116,427 282,306

Total Current Assets 1,724,721 1,190,776

Property and Equipment
Land and tunnels 523,729 523,729
Land improvements 91,835 91,835
Buildings 445,197 445,197
Mining equipment 371,452 389,492
Milling equipment 99,855 99,855
Laboratory equipment 75,968 75,968
Office furniture and equipment 36,742 37,962
Vehicles 65,763 65,763
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (340,303) (287,040)

Total Property and Equipment 1,370,238 1,442,761

Other Assets
Assets from discontinued operations
being held for sale 1,024,803 1,872,577
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Total Other Assets 1,024,803 1,872,577

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,119,762 $ 4,506,114

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, December 31,
2009 2008

(Unaudited)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 893,663 $ 741,885
Stock awards payable 175,000 52,500
Current portion of notes payable 12,750 115,836
Current portion of leases payable 14,524 41,004

Total Current Liabilities 1,095,937 951,225

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term portion of leases payable 30,706 118,765

Total Long-Term Liabilities 30,706 118,765

Other Liabilities
Convertible debt 3,941,875 1,000,000
Liabilities from discontinued operations 117,606 239,128

Total Other Liabilities 4,059,481 1,239,128

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,186,124 2,309,118

Commitments and Contingencies - 0 - - 0 -

Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 10,000,000
shares authorized, noncumulative, nonvoting,
nonconvertible, none issued or outstanding - 0 - - 0 -
Common stock, no par value, 60,000,000
shares authorized, 59,284,121 and
59,215,628 shares issued and outstanding
at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively 22,247,490 22,155,543
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Accumulated deficit prior to exploration stage (20,009,496) (20,009,496)
Accumulated deficit during the exploration stage (3,353,770) - 0 -
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,972) (1,466)
Total Atlas Mining Company
stockholders’ equity (deficit) (1,118,748) 2,144,581
Noncontrolling interest 52,386 52,415
Total Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (1,066,362) 2,196,996

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 4,119,762 $ 4,506,114

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
(Unaudited)

For the
Period

January 1,
2009

(Beginning of
Exploration

For the three months ended For the six months ended Stage)
June 30, June 30, Through

2009 2008 2009 2008 June 30, 2009
(Restated) (Restated)

REVENUES $ - 0 - $ - 0 - $ - 0 - $ - 0 - $ - 0 -

COST OF SALES - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Gross Profit (Loss) - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Exploration & development costs 339,491 63,243 479,452 127,530 479,452
Mining production costs 13,194 229,785 76,165 630,966 76,165
General & administrative 1,232,472 514,658 2,399,025 1,388,346 2,399,025
Disposition of vehicle - 0 - (8,220) - 0 - (8,220) - 0 -
Total Operating Expenses 1,585,157 799,466 2,954,642 2,138,622 2,954,624

Net Operating Income (Loss) (1,585,157) (799,466) (2,954,642) (2,138,622) (2,954,642)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
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Interest income 18 385 26 25,103 26
Interest expense (78,750) - 0 - (107,917) (85) (107,917)
Sale of clay samples 6,000 - 0 - 6,000 - 0 - 6,000
Refund of insurance premium - 0 - - 0 - 13,489 - 0 - 13,489
Refund of overpayments of prior
year payables 1,373 - 0 - 1,373 - 0 - 1,373
Gain (loss) on revaluation of
stock awards (91,000) (28,000) (122,500) 52,500 (122,500)
Special investigation fees and
expenses - 0 - (740,972) - 0 - (1,022,096) - 0 -
Total Other Income (Expenses) (162,359) (768,587) (209,529) (944,578) (209,529)

Loss from exploration stage,
before income taxes (1,747,516) (1,568,053) (3,164,171) (3,083,200) (3,164,171)

Provision (benefit) for income
taxes - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Net Loss from Exploration Stage
Before Discontinued Operations (1,747,516) (1,568,053) (3,164,171) (3,083,200) (3,164,171)

Net income (loss) from
discontinued operations (142,461) 250,721 (189,628) 785,225 (189,628)

Net loss from exploration stage
after discontinued operations (1,889,977) (1,317,330) (3,353,799) (2,297,975) (3,353,799)

Add:  Net loss attributable to the
noncontrolling interest 14 - 0 - 29 - 0 - 29

Net Loss Attributable to Atlas
Mining Company $ (1,889,963) $ (1,317,330) $ (3,353,770) $ (2,297,975) $ (3,353,770)

Earnings Per Share - Basic and
Diluted:
Net loss per share before
discontinued operations
attributable to Atlas Mining
Company common shareholders $ (0.04) $ (0.03) $ (0.06) $ (0.06) $ (0.06)
Discontinued operations
attributable to Atlas Mining
Company common shareholders (0.00) 0.01 (0.00) 0.02 (0.00)
Net Loss Per Share Attributable
to Atlas Mining Company
common shareholders $ (0.04) $ (0.02) $ (0.06) $ (0.04) $ (0.06)

Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding, basic and diluted 59,284,121 54,663,066 59,275,796 54,437,580 59,275,796
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Amounts Attributable to Atlas
Mining Company common
shareholders:
Net loss from exploration stage
after income taxes $ (1,747,516) $ (1,568,053) $ (3,164,171) $ (3,083,200) $ (3,164,171)
Discontinued operations, net of
tax (142,461) 250,271 (189,628) 785,225 (189,628)
Net Loss $ (1,889,977) $ (1,317,330) $ (3,353,799) $ (2,297,975) $ (3,353,799)

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
(Unaudited)

For the
Period

January 1,
2009

(Beginning
of

For the six months ended
Exploration
Stage)

June 30, Through

2009 2008
June 30,
2009

(Restated)

Net Loss $ (3,353,770) $ (2,297,975) $ (3,353,770)

Other Comprehensive Income:
Change in Market Value of Investments (1,506) 540 (1,506)

Comprehensive Loss (3,355,276) (2,297,435) (3,355,276)

Comprehensive loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Atlas Mining Company $ (3,355,276) $ (2,297,435) $ (3,355,276)

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

For the Period
January 1,
2009

(Beginning of

For the six months ended
Exploration
Stage)

June 30, Through
2009 2008 June 30, 2009

(Restated)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net (Loss) $ (3,353,770) $ (2,297,975) $ (3,353,770)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to
Net Cash Used by Operations:
Depreciation 62,094 220,359 62,094
Convertible debt issued for interest expense 91,875 - 0 - 91,875
Stock issued for director fees 10,000 70,000 10,000
Valuation of options 81,947 382,849 81,947
Gain on revaluation of stock awards 122,500 (52,500) 122,500
Gain on disposal of vehicle - 0 - (8,220) - 0 -
Loss on disposition of assets 142,764 - 0 - 142,764
Gain on sale of assets (11,111) - 0 - (11,111)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable (5,956) - 0 - (5,956)
Accounts receivable – related party - 0 - 1,618 - 0 -
Deposits and prepaids 165,879 113,664 165,879
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 135,736 - 0 - 135,736

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities (2,558,042) (1,570,205) (2,558,042)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Disposal of vehicle - 0 - 13,507 - 0 -
Purchases of equipment - 0 - (77,316) - 0 -

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities - 0 - (63,809) - 0 -

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payments on notes payable (103,086) (121,052) (103,086)
Payments on leases payable (115,259) (83,205) (115,259)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt 2,850,000 - 0 - 2,850,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - 0 - 1,500,000 - 0 -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 2,631,655 1,295,743 2,631,655
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Net Cash Provided (Used) by Discontinued Operations 621,760 358,529 621,760

Increase in cash 695,373 20,258 695,373

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 903,001 1,210,621 903,001

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,598,374 $ 1,230,879 $ 1,598,374

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

For the
Period

January 1,
2009

(Beginning
of

For the six months ended
Exploration
Stage)

June 30, Through

2009 2008
June 30,
2009

(Restated)
Cash Paid For:
Interest $232,898 $46,406 $232,898
Income Taxes $- 0 - $- 0 - $- 0 -

The accompanying condensed notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008
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NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN

The foregoing unaudited interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X as
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Accordingly, these financial statements do not
include all of the disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America for
complete financial statements. These unaudited interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements and the notes thereto included on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2008. In
the opinion of management, the unaudited interim financial statements furnished herein include all adjustments, all of
which are of a normal recurring nature, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim period presented.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred material
recurring losses from operations. At December 31, 2008, the Company had accumulated deficits prior to the
exploration stage of $20,009,496, in addition to limited cash and unprofitable operations. For the six months ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company sustained net losses before discontinued operations $3,164,171 and $3,083,200,
respectively.  These factors indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may be necessary should
the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.  The Company's continuation as a going concern is contingent
upon its ability to obtain financing and to generate revenue and cash flow to meet its obligations on a timely basis and
management's ability to raise equity financing as required.  If successful, this will mitigate these factors that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Operating results for the three months period ended June 30, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may
be expected for the year ending December 31, 2009.  The consolidated financial information as of December 31,
2008 included herein has been derived from the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements as of, and for the
fiscal year ended, December 31, 2008.

Certain amounts in the 2008 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 discontinued
operations presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of accumulated deficit.

NOTE 2 – ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Atlas Mining Company, (“the Company”) was incorporated in the state of Idaho on March 4, 1924.  The Company is
currently focused on the commercialization of its Dragon Mine halloysite property located in Juab County, Utah.
Management believes the clay resource found at the Dragon Mine property possesses, among other things, certain
structural and mineralogical characteristics that may possibly add functionality to applications such as, but not limited
to, the controlled release of biological and chemical agents, polymer-related strengtheners and fire retardants, oil field
drilling minerals, catalyst carriers, filtration technologies, hydrogen storage for fuel cells and cosmetics.

In 2008, a geological consulting firm was engaged by the Company to both conduct a resource survey of the Dragon
Mine property and develop an appropriate methodology by which to process the mine’s future mineral production.  At
the date of this report, the work of the geological consultant is ongoing.  Beginning in 2009, the Company commenced
distributing samples of its mineral resource to potential customers as part of a preliminary marketing program.

In late 2008, due to both a general downturn in mining activity worldwide and a desire to focus the Company’s
resources on the commercialization of the Dragon Mine property, management discontinued its contract mining
operation that, historically, had been its primary source of revenue and cash flow generation.  Management has
engaged a firm to dispose of certain assets related to its discontinued contract mining operation.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying condensed, consolidated financial statements represent the consolidation of the Company and all
companies that the Company directly controls either through majority ownership or otherwise.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  In these financial statements assets and liabilities involve extensive reliance on
management’s estimates.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements
On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted SFAS No; 160, “ Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements – an Amendment of ARB No. 51 .”  The Company had changes as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 160
to its consolidated financial statements.  SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and the accounting for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.  SFAS No. 160 also
clarifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation are equity
transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest and requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in
net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated.  The gain or loss will be measured using the fair value of the
noncontrolling equity investment on the deconsolidation date.  In addition, SFAS No. 160 includes expanded
disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interest at June 30, 2009.

Stock-Based Compensation
On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123(R)”), which
measures and recognizes compensation expense for all share-based awards made to employees and directors,
including employee stock options and shares issued through its employee stock purchase plan, based on estimated fair
values.

The estimated fair value of grants of stock options and warrants to nonemployees of the Company is charged to
expense, if applicable, in the financial statements. The Company did not issue any options or warrants during the
period ended June 30, 2009.

10
[Missing Graphic Reference]

ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Edgar Filing: ATLAS MINING CO - Form PRER14A

158



Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 4 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

At December 31, 2008, the Company permanently discontinued its contract mining operations.  There are no plans to
resume the contract mining business.

Under SFAS No. 144, “ Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ,” the Company has identified
assets attributed to the discontinued operation that are being held for sale or have been identified as part of the
discontinued operation and have been identified as such.  Assets and liabilities at June 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008 attributed to the discontinued operation are as follows:

June 30,
December

31,
2009 2008

Accounts receivable $ - 0 - $ 336,237
Mining supplies - 0 - 40,544
Property and equipment 1,024,803 1,495,796
Total assets from discontinued operations $ 1,024,803 $ 1,872,577

Liabilities at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 attributed to the discontinued are as follows:

June 30,
December

31,
2009 2008

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 5,100 $ 105,468
Leases Payable 112,506 133,660
Total assets from discontinued operations $ 117,606 $ 239,128

Income (loss) from discontinued operations for the periods ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 was calculated as follows:

For the six months ended
June 30,

2009 2008
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (189,628) $ 785,225
Income tax liability - 0 - - 0 -
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (189,628) $ 785,225

For the three months ended
June 30,

2009 2008
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (142,461) $ 250,721
Income tax liability - 0 - - 0 -
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (142,461) $ 250,721

The Company does not believe there is an effect of income taxes on discontinued operations.  Due to ongoing
operating losses, the uncertainty of future profitability and limitations on the utilization of net operating loss
carry-forwards under IRC Section 382 a valuation allowance has been recorded to fully offset the Company’s deferred
tax asset.
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ATLAS MINING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 5 – STOCK AWARD PAYABLE

The Company has issued certain options that represent shares in excess of shares authorized for issuance.  These
options have been recorded as a liability on the balance sheet, titled stock awards payable.  The Company reviews the
value of stock award payable and adjusts the carrying value to market based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the last day of the quarter.  Any adjustment made to the carrying value of the stock award is
recorded as a gain or loss on revaluation of stock awards.  For the six-month period ended June 30, 2009, the
Company realized a loss on the revaluation of stock awards totaling $122,500, compared to the six-month period
ended June 30, 2008 where a gain of $52,500 was realized.  At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the value of all
outstanding stock awards was $175,000 and $52,500, respectively.

NOTE 6 – CONVERTIBLE DEBT

On December 30, 2008, we sold $1,000,000 of 10% Convertible Notes due December 15, 2018.  The notes convert
into common stock at $0.35 per share.  The principle is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration or
conversion of the notes.  The notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable (including by issuance of
additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15 th and December 15 th of each year, commencing June
15, 2009.

In April 2009, the Company sold $1,500,000 of 10% Convertible Notes due December 15, 2018.  The notes convert
into common stock at $0.35 per share.  The principle is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration or
conversion of the notes.  The notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable (including by issuance of
additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15 th and December 15 th of each year, commencing June
15, 2009.

In May 2009, the Company sold $1,350,000 of 10% Convertible Notes due December 15, 2018.  The notes convert
into common stock at $0.50 per share.  The principle is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier acceleration or
conversion of the notes.  The notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum payable (including by issuance of
additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15 th and December 15 th of each year, commencing June
15, 2009.

As of June 30, 2009, the Company recorded $107,917 in accrued interest expense, $16,042 of this was accrued at June
30, 2009.

The Notes as described above may be converted at the option of the noteholder at any time there is sufficient
authorized unissued common stock of the Company available for conversion. The Notes will be mandatorily
converted when (i) sufficient common stock is available for conversion of all notes in the Series, (ii) the average
closing bid price or market price of the Company’s common stock for the preceding five (5) trading days is above the
conversion price and (iii) a registration statement is effective and available for resale of all of the converted shares or
the noteholders may sell such shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act.
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On June 15, 2009, the holders of convertible exercised the PIK option that made it such that accrued interest payable
on that date was converted to additional convertible debt in lieu of payment in cash.  At June 30, 2009, the total
liability attributed to convertible notes outstanding was $3,941,875.
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(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 7 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of noncumulative, non-voting, nonconvertible preferred stock,
$1.00 par value per share.  At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, no shares of preferred stock were outstanding.

Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 60,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value per share.  At the periods ended
June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, 59,284,121 and 59,215,628 shares were issued and outstanding, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, the Company did not have sufficient authorized unissued common stock available for
conversion of all common stock equivalents.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company issued 68,493 shares of restricted stock at a price of $0.15
per share for director fees for a fair value of $10,000.

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under SFAS No. 160, the following schedule presents a reconciliation of the
beginning and ending balances of the equity attributable to the Company and the non-controlling owners, and the
effect of the changes in the equity attributable to the Company.

Atlas Mining Company Shareholders

Total

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

During the
Exploration

Stage

Accumulated
Deficit Prior

to the
Exploration

Stage

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss Common Stock

Non-
controlling
Interest

Beginning
Balance $ 2,196,996 $ - 0 - $ - 0 - $ (20,009,496) $ (1,466) $ 22,155,543 $ 52,415
Stock issued for
services 10,000 10,000
Employee based
stock
compensation 81,947 81,947
Comprehensive
Income:
Net Income
(Loss) (3,353,799) (3,353,799) (3,353,770) (29)
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Other
comprehensive
loss, net of tax:
Change in
Market Value of
Investments (1,506) (1,506) (1,506)

Ending Balance $ (1,066,362) $ (3,353,305) $ (3,353,770) $ (20,009,496) $ (2,972) $ 22,247,490 $ 52,387
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(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 8 – OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

A summary of the status and changes of the options granted under the Company’s 1998 Non-qualified Stock Option
Plan and other agreements for the period ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

June 30, 2009
Weighted
Average

Shares
Exercise
Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 625,000 $ 0.70
Granted - 0 - - 0 -
Exercised - 0 - - 0 -
Forfeited - 0 - - 0 -
Expired - 0 - - 0 -
Outstanding at end of period 625,000 $ 0.70
Exercisable at end of period 625,000 $ 0.70

A summary of the status of the options outstanding at June 30, 2009 is presented below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise
Price Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

$
0.65 -
$0.71 75,000 4.00 years $0.69 75,000 $0.69
$0.70 550,000 4.33 years $0.70 550,000 $0.70
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625,000 625,000

Accordingly, compensation expense of $81,947 and $382,849 has been recognized for vesting of options to
employees and directors in the accompanying statements of operations for the periods ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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(An Exploration Stage Company)

Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LITIGATION
Various lawsuits, claims, proceedings and investigations are pending involving us as described below in this
section.  In accordance with SFAS No. 5, “ Accounting for Contingencies ,” when applicable, the Company records
accruals for contingencies when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated.  In addition to the matters described herein, the Company is involved in or subject to, or may become
involved in or subject to, routine litigation, claims, disputes, proceedings and investigations in the ordinary course of
business, which in management’s opinion will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, cash flows
or results of operations.

Securities Litigation

The Company, certain of its directors and former officers and employees, its prior auditor, Chisolm, Bierwolf &
Nilson, LLC, and Nano Clay and Technologies, Inc., its defunct, wholly owned subsidiary, are defendants in a class
action filed on October 11, 2007 In Re Atlas Mining Company Securities Litigation pending in the United States
District Court for the District of Idaho, Civil Action No. 07-428-N-EJL(D. Idaho) (the “Class Action”). The Class
Action was filed on behalf of purchasers of the Company’s publicly traded common stock during the period January
19, 2005 through October 8, 2007.  The First Amended Complaint (“Complaint”) alleges that the Company damaged
purchasers by making material misstatements in publicly disseminated press releases and Securities and Exchange
Commission filings regarding the extent of the halloysite deposit on Company property, the availability and quality of
halloysite for sale, and claimed sales of halloysite.  The Complaint also alleges that the Company improperly
manipulated reported earnings with respect to purported halloysite sales and misrepresentations by the individual
defendants as to its financial statements.  The plaintiffs seek remedies under Section 10(b) of the Securities and
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder and for violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.
On July 2, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement (“Class Action Settlement Agreement”) with the
lead plaintiffs in the class action Under the terms of the Class Action Settlement Agreement the Company will pay
plaintiffs $1,250,000 (which includes fees to plaintiff’s counsel), to be funded by the proceeds of an insurance policy
issued by Navigators Insurance Co.(as provided below), in exchange for release of all claims against Company, Nano
Clay & Technologies, Inc., and William T. Jacobson, Robert Dumont, Ronald Price and Barbara Suveg (the
“Individual Defendants”).  The Company will also fund up to $75,000 to fund expenses in connection with notification
to class members. The Class Action Settlement Agreement is the settlement agreement contemplated by the
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) described in its prior response and the terms of it are consistent with the
terms of such MOU. The Settlement Agreement is subject to a number of conditions including successful completion
of confirmatory due diligence by the lead plaintiffs and final court approval.
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Insurance Litigation

Atlas Mining Company v. Navigators Insurance Company et al.
Our complaint, filed in federal district court in Idaho, seeks coverage (“Coverage Claim”) for claims in connection with
the securities litigation described above under (A) a primary $5,000,000 D&O liability insurance policy issued by
Navigators Insurance Company (“Navigators”) on October1, 2007 (“Navigators $5,000,000 Policy), and (B) a $5,000,000
excess D&O liability policy issued by RSUI Indemnity Company (“RSUI”) effective October 1, 2007.  The Company
has asserted claims for declaratory judgment, specific performance, and breach of contract, as well as claims alleging
bad faith, against Navigators and RSUI.  The Company also has asserted claims of negligence and fraud against a
broker involved with the alleged issuance of the policies.  This case was removed to federal court.  Navigators, RSUI,
and the broker are vigorously defending the lawsuit and have filed answers in federal court, arguing in part that such
policies are not effective and pleading other affirmative defenses, such as accord and satisfaction.
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June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance Litigation (Continued)

Navigators Insurance Co. v. Atlas Mining Company, et. al.
This is an interpleader complaint filed by Navigators in federal district court in Idaho with respect to our coverage
claims and those of certain of our former officers and directors arising from the securities litigation described
above.  The interpleader complaint alleges that Navigators issued a D&O liability policy to the Company for the
period October 17, 2006 and October 17, 2007 that afforded $2 million in limits.  Navigators alleges that, based on the
current rate of expenditures, the defense and investigation costs alone will soon exceed the policy’s $2 million limit of
liability, excess of applicable retentions, and the Company disagrees with certain of its former officers and directors
on the appropriate priority of payments under the policy.  As such, Navigators alleges that it was subject to multiple
competing demands for the limits of the Policy.  Based on such allegations, Navigators is seeking a court order
permitting Navigators to tender $2 million into the registry of the Court and to be discharged from liability.  The
Company filed a Motion to Dismiss on June 17, 2008, citing Navigators’ failure to advance defense costs under such
policy and arguing that Navigators is not subject to multiple liability under the policy.  The parties have filed several
consent motions to stay the proceedings in this action.  The court entered an indefinite stay on December 11, 2008 that
will remain in effect until any party seeks to re-open the matter because (a) the parties have reached an agreement to
resolve the matter, (b) the Coverage Action is resolved, or (c) a party seeks to terminate the stay and renew litigation.

Settlement Of Insurance Cases
Related to the Class Action Settlement, effective July 8, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement and
Release with Navigators, RSUI Indemnity Company and RSUI Group, Alexander, Morford & Woo, Inc., and the
individual defendants listed above in settlement of the insurance litigation.  Pursuant to this agreement (i) Navigators
will deliver $1,250,000 into a court registry, which will then be used upon final court approval of the Class Action
Settlement to fund the $1,250,000 payment to class action plaintiffs, (ii) Navigators will deliver $750,000 to the
Company for defense and investigative costs in connection with the Class Action and related matters, which Atlas will
use in part to pay the individual defendants their costs in the class action and (iii) all claims under the insurance
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litigation will be released upon final court approval of the Class Action Settlement.

Issuance of Wells Notice
On March 6, 2009, the Company was informed that the Securities and Exchange Commission had issued a formal
order of investigation of facts with respect to possible violations of the securities laws by the Company and its
officers, directors and affiliates for the period of August 2002 through 2006. On July 7, 2009, the staff of the
Commission sent the Company a "Wells Notice," which is a notice that the staff intends to recommend to
the Commission that enforcement proceedings be commenced against the Company for violations of registration
provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act, the reporting provisions of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
and the rules thereunder as well as Rule 12b-20, and the internal control provisions of Section 13(b)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act.  The Wells Notice also referenced section 12(j) of the Securities Exchange Act, which
would involve deregistration.  However, the Company committed to the staff that it would bring the Company current
in its Section 13(a) filings and the filing of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q brings the Company current.  The staff
indicated that if the Company were current it would not make a recommendation related to Section 12(j), and the
Company believes that this filing has mooted the issue.  The Company is cooperating with the investigation and has
submitted an offer of settlement to the staff.
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NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS

Material Advisors LLC
On December 30, 2008, the Company entered into a Management Agreement with Material Advisors LLC, a
management services company (“Manager”). The Management Agreement has a term ending on December 31, 2010
with automatic renewal for successive one-year periods unless either Manager or Company provides 90 days prior
notice of cancellation to the other party or pursuant to the termination provisions of the Management
Agreement.  Under the Management Agreement Manager will perform or engage others, including Andre Zeitoun, a
principal of Manager, Chris Carney and Eric Basroon (“Management Personnel”), to perform senior management
services including such services as are customarily provided by a chief executive officer but not (unless otherwise
agreed) services customarily provided by a chief financial officer.  Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Andre
Zeitoun will serve as Company’s Chief Executive Officer and will be appointed as a member of the Company’s Board
of Directors.

The services provided by Manager will include, without limitation, consulting with the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Company’s management on business and financial matters.  Manager will be paid an annual fee of
$1,000,000 per year, payable in equal monthly installments of $83,333.  Manager will be solely responsible for the
compensation of the Management Personnel, including Mr. Zeitoun and the Management Personnel will not be
entitled to any direct compensation or benefits from the Company (including, in the case of Mr. Zeitoun, for service
on the Board).  The Company will grant Manager non-qualified stock options to purchase, for $0.70 per share (the
“$0.70 Option”) a number of shares of the Company equal to 10% of the outstanding common stock of the Company on
a fully diluted basis (which shall vest in equal monthly installments over three years).
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Under certain very specific instances related to a going private transaction, the $0.70 option will be cancelled and
replaced by a non-qualified option (the “Going Private Option”) accompanied by a tandem stock appreciation right (the
“SAR”).  The term of the $0.70 Option, the Going Private Option and the SAR will be 10 years.  During their terms, the
Going Private Option and the SAR will be fully exercisable. If Company declares a dividend or distribution at any
time while the $0.70 option is unvested, Manager will be entitled to receive an amount equal to the dividend or
distribution that would be paid on the shares underlying the $0.70 Option, payable in the same form as such dividend
or distribution on the same vesting schedule as the $0.70 Option.  Manager will have the right to participate in a going
private transaction for up to 20% of the equity on terms and conditions, which are as favorable to Manager as the
terms and conditions available to any other person who invests in the going private entity.
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NOTE 10 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Class Action Settlement Agreement
On July 2, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement (“Class Action Settlement Agreement”) with the
lead plaintiffs in the class action In Re Atlas Mining Company Securities Litigation pending in the United States
District Court for the District of Idaho, Civil Action No. 07-428-N-EJL(D. Idaho).

Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the Company will pay plaintiffs $1,250,000 (which includes fees to
plaintiff’s counsel), to be funded by the proceeds of an insurance policy, in exchange for release of all claims against
the Company, NanoClay & Technologies Inc., and the individual defendants William T. Jacobson, Robert Dumont,
Ronald Price and Barbara Suveg.  The Company will also fund up to $75,000 to fund expenses in connection with
notification to class members.  The settlement agreement is the agreement contemplated by the memorandum of
understanding entered into by the Company and the lead plaintiffs dated May 1, 2009 described in the 8-K filed by the
Company on May 4, 2009 (“the MOU”) and the terms of it are consistent with such MOU.

Related to the Class Action Settlement, effective July 8, 2009, Atlas entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release
with Navigators, RSUI Indemnity Company and RSUI Group, Alexander, Morford & Woo, Inc., and the individual
defendants listed above in settlement of the insurance litigation Atlas Mining Co. v. Navigators Insurance Co. et al.,
No. 1:08-cv-00359-EJL (D. Idaho) and Navigators Insurance Co. v. Atlas Mining Co., et. al., Case No.
2:08-cv-00216-EJL (D.Idaho).  Pursuant to this agreement (i) Navigators will deliver $1,250,000 into a court registry,
which will then be used upon final court approval of the Class Action Settlement to fund the $1,250,000 payment to
class action plaintiffs, (ii) Navigators will deliver $750,000 to the Company for defense and investigative costs in
connection with the Class Action and related matters, which Atlas will use in part to pay the individual defendants
their costs in the class action and (iii) all claims under the insurance litigation will be released upon final court
approval of the Class Action Settlement.

Also, related to the class action settlement, the Company has entered into a settlement agreement with Robert
Dumont, a former President, CEO and director of the Company, mutually releasing all claims related to Dumont’s
employment by the Company in consideration of the Company’s payment to Dumont of up to $258,000 for Dumont’s
attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the class action (to be funded from the insurance proceeds described above),
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insurance litigation, and other matters which the Company will fund with monies it receives from Navigators in
connection with the insurance litigation settlement.

Convertible Notes July 2009
On July 29, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement to sell to an accredited investor $200,000 principal amount
of Series 10% PIK-Election Convertible Notes due 2018 (the “Notes’) at a conversion price of $0.65 per (the
“Conversion Price”) and entered into a Registration Rights Agreement in connection with the shares of common stock to
be issued upon conversion of the Notes.  The principal under the Notes is due December 15, 2018 subject to earlier
acceleration or conversion of the Notes as described below.  The Notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum
payable (including by issuance of additional in kind notes) semi-annually in arrears on June 15th and December 15th
of each year commencing June 15, 2009.

The Notes may be converted at the option of the Noteholder at any time there is sufficient authorized unissued
common stock of the Company available for conversion.  The Notes will be mandatorily converted when (i) sufficient
common stock is available for conversion of all notes in the Series, (ii) the average closing bid price or market price of
the Company’s common stock for the preceding five (5) trading days is above the Conversion Price and (iii) a
registration statement is effective and available for resale of all of the converted shares or the Noteholders may sell
such shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act.
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NOTE 10 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

Issuance of Wells Notice
On March 6, 2009, the Company was informed that the Securities and Exchange Commission had issued a formal
order of investigation of facts with respect to possible violations of the securities laws by the Company and its
officers, directors and affiliates for the period of August 2002 through 2006. On July 7, 2009, the staff of the
Commission sent the Company a "Wells Notice," which is a notice that the staff intends to recommend to
the Commission that enforcement proceedings be commenced against the Company for violations of registration
provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act, the reporting provisions of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
and the rules thereunder as well as Rule 12b-20, and the internal control provisions of Section 13(b)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act.  The Wells Notice also referenced section 12(j) of the Securities Exchange Act, which
would involve deregistration.  However, the Company committed to the staff that it would bring the Company current
in its Section 13(a) filings and the filing of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q brings the Company current.  The staff
indicated that if the Company were current it would not make a recommendation related to Section 12(j), and the
Company believes that this filing has mooted the issue.  The Company is cooperating with the investigation and has
submitted an offer of settlement to the staff.
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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements are
based on our current expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about our business and our industry. Words
such as "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "will," "may," and other similar expressions identify
forward-looking statements. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other
characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in
the forward-looking statements.

ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

We operate a Contract Mining business and are engaged in the development of our resource property, the Dragon
Mine, located in the state of Utah.

Historically our primary source of revenue has been generated by our Contract Mining operations.  On December 31,
2008 we discontinued our Contract Mining business due to adverse economic conditions and the desire to concentrate
our efforts on the commercialization of the halloysite clay deposit at the Dragon Mine.

Property Exploration

We intend to continue our exploration activities the Dragon Mine.  We do not intend to seek out and acquire other
properties.

In August 2001 we acquired the Dragon Mine in Juab, Utah and began our clay exploration activities.  Our
exploration and development expenses for the six months ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $479,452 and
$127,530, respectively, on the halloysite clay property.

The activities at our Dragon Mine property, located in Juab County, Utah, were suspended in October 2007 when
previous management determined that both a resource survey and an appropriate processing facility were needed
before the property could be successfully commercialized.  In 2008, a geological consulting firm was hired by us to
both carry out a detailed geological review of the property and develop an appropriate method by which to process the
mineral resource.  This work is ongoing as of the date of this report.  Beginning in 2009, we began processing material
from the mine and distributing samples to potential customers as part of a preliminary marketing program. The
geological consulting firm referred to above has sub-contracted with a firm with expertise in the development of
mineral processing to identify an appropriate processing system for the Company.  Any subsequent reference to a
geological consulting firm may be assumed to include the firm currently being contracted to identify the processing
system.

Management believes that the clay resource found at the Dragon Mine property possesses, among other things, certain
structural and mineralogical characteristics that may possibly add functionality to applications such as, but not limited
to, the controlled release of biological and chemical agents, polymer-related strengtheners and fire retardants, oil field
drilling minerals, catalyst carriers, filtration technologies, hydrogen storage for fuel cells and cosmetics.  For certain
of the aforementioned applications, management believes the Dragon Mine resource has the potential to serve as a
more effective alternative to the materials upon which these current technologies are established. Other
above-mentioned applications are being developed to specifically utilize the structural characteristics of the clay
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resource.
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The Dragon Mine property contains halloysite, kaolinite, alunite and other minerals located underground and in waste
piles that are the result of previous mining operations.   The geological resource survey being conducted on the
Dragon Mine has involved the assessment of approximately 10,000 feet of borehole drill cores and the analysis of
samples taken from the five waste piles located at the mine site.  The survey has included X-ray diffraction analysis to
determine the levels of halloysite, kaolinite and other minerals found in the resource.  Initial studies have indicated
that conventional processing may be used to separate the halloysite and kaolinite fractions from alunite and other
minerals found in the Dragon Mine resource.  The geology of the deposit shows alterations of feldspar identified along
side the presence of monzanite, halloysite and kaolinite.  Purer halloysite found at the mine has been identified along
side the presence of iron ore.  The morphology of the halloysite identified at the Dragon Mine, as determined by
Scanning Electron Microscopy (“SEM”) analysis, demonstrates the existence of both lath-like and tubular
formations.  The kaolinite present at the Dragon Mine has been determined to possess a highly crystalline structure.

NaturalNano, Inc. (OTC: NNAN), in conjunction with Cascade Engineering and it’s subsidiary, Noble Polymers, has
developed Pleximer ™, a halloysite nanotube concentrate used to create stronger, lighter, environmentally friendlier and
lower-cost polymer-based nanocomposites.  According to NaturalNano’s 2008 annual report, Pleximer ™ is being
marketed to the global nanocomposites market that, in the estimation of BCC Research, is expected to grow from
$273 million in 2005 to $4.0 billion by 2015.  According to BCC Research, clay-based nanocomposites are expected
to represent 47% of the nanocomposites market by 2010.  The U.S. Department of the Navy, represented by the Naval
Research Lab (NRL”), has patented a technology that provides for the controlled release of active agents using
inorganic tubules such as halloysite clay.  The U.S. Navy’s technology has been licensed by at least two companies
that are developing controlled-release applications for the fields of electromagnetic shielding/strength enhancement,
cosmetics, fragrances, agriculture, ink and paper, electronics, fabrics and textiles, local drug delivery and
mold-resistant building products.  The U.S. Navy has also patented a technology that permits a controlled release of an
active agent as an anti-scaling treatment for environments such as oil wells.

As of the date of this report, a study is being conducted to identify the applications for which the Dragon Mine
resource may provide functionality. Processed clay samples have been distributed to potential customers who have
requested halloysite and/or halloysite-kaolinite mixtures.  A number of advanced applications to which the Company
plans to market its resource are currently using plate-like structured clays that must undergo expensive exfoliation
process to achieve proper functionality.  The tubular morphology of the Dragon Mine resource does not require such
an exfoliation process to achieve similar or, in many instances, greater functionality.  Management, therefore, believes
that it may be able to deliver its processed mineral to market at price points lower than those of competing clays,
without sacrificing performance.

In addition to certain advanced applications previously mentioned, we believe the Dragon Mine resource may also be
marketed to certain established, low-tech applications such as, but not limited to, fine porcelain, bone china,
high-performance advanced technical ceramics, paint fillers, suspension agents, animal feed, cement hardeners, and
food and pharmaceutical additives.  Markets, such as fine porcelain and bone china, would likely require the Dragon
Mine clay resource be processed for increased brightness and reduced presence of titanium whereas applications, such
as a cement hardener, would require a relatively unprocessed version of the Dragon Mine resource.  Management, as
part of its overall business strategy, will continually assess the economic feasibility of pursuing potential markets.

Management believes that both existing and potential applications that utilize the Dragon Mine resource will require
varying grades of clay to satisfy the unique technical requirements of each application.  Some applications may
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require pure halloysite, composed of tubular and/or lath-shaped particles while other applications may require a grade
of clay consisting of a specific halloysite-kaolinite ratio.  The determination of the appropriate grade of clay will likely
require significant technical cooperation between the Company and the developer of the related application.  As
previously mentioned, the Company has hired a consulting firm to identify a processing system capable of producing
the grades of clay required by potential applications.  The identification of such a system is ongoing.
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On May 11 2009, the Company entered into a development support agreement related to a research project at
Louisana Tech University whose principal investigator is with Yuri M. Lvov, Ph.D., a professor of chemistry at
Louisiana Tech the University and the T.C. Pipes Eminent Endowed Chair on Micro and Nanosystems at the Institute
for Micromanufacturing (LaTech).  The scope of the agreement includes, among other things, the development of new
anticorrosion additives based on the encapsulation of current standard protective agents in halloysite nanotubes in
addition to the development of other related emerging applications.  The Company’s support agreement commits the
Company to fund up to $30,000 per year for three years.  The funding will be principally accomplished through the
supply of halloysite clay.  The support agreement could lead to distribution rights if the research project is successful.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Due to a general downturn in worldwide mining activity resulting from a decline in commodity prices, the Company
permanently ceased its contract mining operations and classified them as “discontinued” on its financial statements.  The
Company’s remaining operation, the exploration of its Dragon Mine property, has yet to produce any revenue and, as
such, the Company generated no revenue and gross profit for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009
and 2008.

Total operating expenses for the three-month period ending June 30, 2009 were $1,585,157 compared to $799,466 for
the same period ending 2008, an increase of $785,691 or 98.3%.  The increase was due primarily to a $276,248, or
437%, increase in exploration and development costs and a $717,814, or 139.5%, increase in general and
administrative expense, partially offset by a $216,591, or 94.3%, decline in mining production costs.

The increase in exploration and development costs during the quarter was driven primarily by the incurrence of
expenses related to work conducted by the geological consulting firm engaged by the Company to both produce a
resource survey of the Dragon Mine and develop a mineral processing system.

The increase in general and administrative expense during the quarter was driven primarily by the incurrence of legal
expenses related a class action lawsuit, costs associated with the implementation of certain corporate governance
infrastructure, and the management fee paid to Material Advisors, a management consulting firm engaged in January
2009 to operate the Company’s business.

The decline in mining production costs was driven primarily by a significant curtailment of underground production at
the Dragon Mine.  Underground production at the mine will continue to be curtailed while a geological consulting
firm both completes a resource survey of the property and develops an adequate system with which to process the
mine’s potential mineral production.

Net loss from continuing operations for the three-month period ending June 30, 2009 was $1,747,516 compared to
$1,568,053 for the comparable period in June 2008, an increase of approximately $179,463 or 11.4%.  The increase
was due primarily to a $276,248 increase in exploration and development costs (previously described), a $717,814
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increase in general and administrative expense (previously described) and a $63,000 increase in the loss on
revaluation of stock awards (described below) provided to previous management, partially offset by a $740,972
decline in fees and expenses related to a special investigation (described below) that ended in August 2008 and a
$216,591 decline in mining product costs (previously described).

Net loss from discontinued operations for the three months ended June 30, 2009 was $142,461 compared to net
income of $250,721 for the comparable period in 2008.  The $393,812 decline in net income was due primarily to the
discontinuation of the Company’s contract mining operation resulting from a downturn in general mining activity
worldwide due, in large part, to a depreciation of commodity prices.

Total operating expenses for the six-month period ending June 30, 2009 were $2,954,642 compared to $2,138,622 for
the same period ending 2008, an increase of $816,020 or 38.1%.  The increase was due primarily to a $351,922, or
276%, increase in exploration and development costs and a $1,010,679, or 72.8%, increase in general and
administrative expense, partially offset by a $554,801, or 88%, decline in mining production costs.

The increase in exploration and development costs during the quarter was driven primarily by the incurrence of
expenses related to work conducted by the geological consulting firm engaged by the Company to both produce a
resource survey of the Dragon Mine and develop a mineral processing system.
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The increase in general and administrative expense during the quarter was driven primarily by the incurrence of legal
expenses related a class action lawsuit, costs associated with the implementation of certain corporate governance
infrastructure, the salary associated with the appointment of Morris Weiss as the Company’s Chief Restructuring
Officer, and the management fee paid to Material Advisors LLC, a management consulting firm engaged in January
2009 to operate the Company’s business.

The decline in mining production costs was driven primarily by a significant curtailment of underground production at
the Dragon Mine.  Underground production at the mine will continue to be curtailed while a geological consulting
firm both completes a resource survey of the property and develops an adequate system with which to process the
mine’s potential mineral production.

Net loss from continuing operations for the six-month period ending June 30, 2009 was $3,164,171 compared to
$3,083,200 for the comparable period in June 2008, an increase of approximately $80,971 or 2.6%.  The increase was
due primarily to a $351,922 increase in exploration and development costs (previously described), a $1,010,679
increase in general and administrative expense (previously described) and a $175,000 increase in the loss on the
revaluation of stock awards (described below) provided to previous management, partially offset by a $1,022,096
decline in fees and expenses related to a special investigation (described below) that ended in August 2008 and a
$554,831 decline in mining product costs (previously described).

Net loss from discontinued operations for the six months ended June 30, 2009 was $189,628 compared to net income
of $785,225 for the comparable period in 2008.  The $974,853 decline in net income was due primarily to the
discontinuation of the Company’s contract mining operations resulting from a downturn in general mining activity
worldwide due, in large part, to a depreciation of commodity prices.

The special investigation was conducted by a committee formed by the Board of Directors to (i) review and
investigate the conduct of our prior management and any issues arising therefrom and (ii) review and evaluate our
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business, financial condition, assets, strategy, prospects and management and recommend to the Board of Directors
various alternatives to improve our performance and prospects.  The investigation was completed in August 2008 and
resulted in the elimination of any further related expense.

The decline in interest income during the quarter was the result of an associated decline in the Company’s cash balance
over the same period.  The decline in the gain on the revaluation of stock awards during the quarter is related to the
increase in the price of the Company’s common shares that were awarded to former CEO, Robert Dumont, and former
Executive Vice President, John Gaensbauer.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

To date our activities have been financed through the sale of equity securities, borrowings, and, for the periods up
through December 31, 2008, revenues from our contract mining operations. Until we are able to commercialize our
Dragon Mine property, we intend to rely on public or private sales of equity securities and the utilization of certain
credit facilities to generate the cash flow needed to fund our operations.

The Company has incurred material recurring losses from operations. At December 31, 2008, the Company had
accumulated deficits prior to the exploration stage of $20,009,496, in addition to limited cash and unprofitable
operations. For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company sustained net losses before discontinued
operations of $3,164,171 and $3,083,200.  These factors indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time. The Company's continuation as a going concern is contingent upon its
ability to obtain financing and to generate revenue and cash flow to meet its obligations on a timely basis and
management's ability to raise equity financing as required.  If successful, this will mitigate these factors that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Cash used by operating activities was $2,558,042 during the six months ended June 30, 2009 versus $1,570,205 of
cash used during the comparable period in 2008.  The $987,837 increase in cash used during the period was due
primarily to an increase in net loss of $1,055,795, partially offset by cash generated through working capital changes
at both the continuing and discontinued operations.
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No cash was used by investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to a use of $63,809 of
cash during the comparable period in 2008.  The $63,809 decrease in cash used was due primarily to no capital
expenditures made during the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to $77,316 of capital expenditures made
during the same period in 2008.

Cash generated by financing activities was $2,631,655 during the six-month period ended June 30, 2009 versus
$1,295,743 of cash generated during the comparable period in 2008.  The $1,335,912 difference was due primarily to
a $1,350,000 increase capital raised through the sale of equity-related securities during the period.

At June 30, 2009, the Company had, as part of its long-term liabilities, $3,941,875 face value of 10% Convertible PIK
Notes due December 2018.  The Company may sell similar notes in the future to raise cash to fund its operations.

As part of the Company’s decision to discontinue its contract mining operations, it is currently marketing for sale
certain pieces of equipment related to the contract mining division.  The potential net proceeds from the disposal of
this equipment would be used, in part, to fund the operations of the Company.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

There are no off-balance sheet arrangements between the Company and any other entity that have, or are reasonably
likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources that is material to investors.

ITEM 3.                      QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have no exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currencies, or other market factors.
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